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The [ovgst  Gonral

EVERY MEMBER OF THE BAR AND BENCH
MUST RECOGNIZE THEIR RESPECTIVE
RESPONSIBILITY *

By CHIEF JUSTICE RICARDO PARAS

T have been wondering whether your invitation for me to address
this National Convention of Lawyers is, witting'y or unwittingly, a
mere ruse of getting even with us, the members of the Supreme
Court, for subjecting lawyers to the ordeal of interpellations during
oral arguments which, though often giving credit to many, emkbar-
russ some to the point of showing their lack of preparation. The
lawyers may want to make it apvear that, by a poor speech he deli-
vers, a Justice is not after all as good a scholar and jurist as he
seems to be when confronting lawyers. With this apprehension T
will avoid rhetorical flights, dogmatic references and pentifical
assertiveness, and thus refuse to take the test, so to speak. The
expert consultants and members of this Convention have already
dwelt upon many subjects requiring academic and highly technical
deliberation and treatment, in addition to the brilliant guest speakers
that you have previously heard, and I am therefore left in a sitna-
tion where I have merely to limit myself to some -observations
gained from personal experiences or otherwise warranted by factual
considerations. At any rate, a modern version of Chancellor Lynd-
hurst’s definition of a good Judge — and a Jus‘ice for that matter
— is not, that he must be a great scholar and jurist, but is merely
the following: “First, he must be honest. Second, he must posses:
a reascnuble amount of industry. Third, he must have courage.
Fourth, he must be a gentleman. And then, if he has some kncwledge
of law, it will help.” I can perhaps invoke this definition to cover
up any shortcomings.

But one geod quality of a Judge is industry, and in an attempt
at exemplification, I have chosen to gather and present facts regard-
ing our bar and judiciary with a view.at least to provoking some
thought. \ .
To begin with T may inform you that, as of the year 1952, there
are in our country 12,823 lawyers, including the unknown dead. In
this connection ours is always a feeling of pride and satisfaction when-
ever groups of new lawyers are sworn in before the Supreme Court,
in great contrast to our disappointment whenever attorneys plead
before us in defense of themselves against disbarment proceedings.
Incidentally, since the liberation alone we have received 160 complaints
for malpractice and at least five lawyers have been reprimanded,
suspended or disbarred.

The increasing number of lawyers should not cause any alarm.
Those who have already an established lucrative practice need not
worry about ecompetition, and those who are new and merely forging
ghead in the field still have plenty of room because, with our popula-
tion of twenty millions, there are about 1,559 for every lawyer, even
assuming that all the lawyers listed in the Roll of Attorneys are
practicing, which is very far from the truth. On the other hand, as
of 1940 alone, there were in the United States (with a population
of 131,822,000) 189,000 lawyers, or 732 for every lawyer. As = matter
?E fact, many of our recorded attorneys have died or are not engaged
in the active practice of law, being employed in one capacity or an-
other in or-out the Government Service. According to statistics re-
leased by the Bureau of the Census, there are more physicians than
law practitioners and that there are only about 1,500 lawyers actually
engaged in the legal profession. Moreover, a great majority of law
fmdents are aiming merely to utilize the law course or membership
";'lt'};e bar as a means for cultural upliftment and general practical
utility.

The bench is not entirely free from blemish because also since
liberation 371 administrative cases have been filled against ju-tices
of the peace. The grounds are many and varied, ranging from the
minor and petty act of arrogance to the serious crimes of bribery and
extortion. During the same period there have been filed in the Sup-
reme Court 30 administrative cases against judges of first instance.

Now, to give you an idea of the dockets of our courts of first
instance throughout the Philippines, without mention‘ng the number
of finished cases, I may state that at the end of the year 1948, there
* Speech delivered by Chief Justice Ricardo Paras of, the Supreme Court at the

National Convention of Lawyers, December 30, 195:
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SPEECH DELIVERED BRPMR: J98TICE ~
SABINO PADILLA AT THE OATH TAKING
CEREMONIES OF THE 1953 SUCCESSFUL
BAR CANDIDATES ON 18 JANUARY 1954

Members of the Bar:

To the Chairman and Members of the Board of Examiners goes
the Court’s appreciation for the splendid work done. To the new
Members of the Bar go the congratulations of the Court.

The taking of oath on this solemn occasion has made you officers
of the Court. It is a milestone in your life. It is portentous. It
may mean success or failure. It lies in your hands to make it a
success. Your success would depend upon your efforts toc male
yourself worthy of the profession ycu have embraced. The successful
completion of your studies, your passing the examinations and ad-
mission to the bar mark only the beginning of your struggle for
success. What really and actually means is that you have to work
harder, honestly, ienti and i , if you expect to
succeed in our chosen profession. Your admiss‘on to the bar is a
sort of a degree that enables you to .pursue advanced studies. A
lawyer’s preparation is like that of & scholar in the coliege of liberal
arts who, after finishing the college courses, may pursue professional
studies. But the lawyer’s degree is, of course, on a higher plane,
because he may branch out in the university of practical iife into
different fields of human endeavor, for law permeates, influences
and controls every human activity. So that those who view with
anprehension the ever increasing number of lawyers should not be
alarmed, hecause not all those who have been admitted to the bar are
to practice law. They may venture into diverse ficlds of human
endeavor and their Jegal background is a good foundation which
enables them to perform more cfficiently and successfully their
duties and functions. In fact, a lawyer is better prepared to assume
greater and more complicated responsibilities. p

Learned men have considered noble the profession of a lawyer.
It is so when in the practice of his profession he is inspired by loftly
and noble ideals.

On occasions like this it seems customary and proper to give an
advice to the neophytes. There is no better advice than to follow what
in the oath you have solemnly declared, undertaken and promised
to do. Your oath is a solemn profession of faith to God by which
you have irrevocably undertaken and promised to owe and maintain
allegiance to your Republic; to support its Constitution and obey the
laws and the legal orders of the duly constituted authorities That
is your duty to the Government. You have vowed to do no falsehood
nor consent to the doing of any in ccurt; not to promote wittingly or
willingly any groundless, false or unlawful suit nor give aid nor
consent to the same. That is your duty to the courts. You have
rromised to delay no man for money or malice, to conduct yourself
as a lawyer according to the best of your knowledge and judgment
with all good fidelity to the courts and to your clients. You have
made these commitments freely and voluntarily without any mental
reservation or purpose of evasion. And as a fitting climax to all
these undertakings and promises you have asked, prayed and invoked
the help of God so that you may fulfill them. I ca"not think of a
more sublime act than the oath vou have just taken. You have
made it to the Supreme Court of the Republic as the lawful and
legitimate representative of God. Fulfillment by you of the promises
made in the oath would spell success. A violation of any of them
would bring about and result in failure. May the Almightly God
guide you in your efforts to fulfill them.

A good suggestion would be *o have this oath you have just
taken framed 2nd have it before you in your bedroom or study room.
After reciting your daily prayers and before you start the day’s
grind, you should read your oath a~d ponder on its significance. If
you realize what that oath means and try to live up to it, then n~
one of you would fail. .

The Court wishes you all Godspeed.
Manile, 18 January 1954,
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were pending 38,738 cases. This was increased to 40,973 at the
end of the year 1949. By the end of the year 1950, the number
reached 43,289, and this was enlarged at the end of the year 1951
when the total was 45,848. This upward trend continued until the
end of the year 1952 when the number of pending cases in said
courts became 52,171, Of this last figure, 13,245 are criminal cases;
and 23,632 are special proceedings and cases of miscellaneous nature.
Many of these cases are perhaps not ready for decision.

In the Court of Appeals the number of cases docketed from 1946
to 1953 is 12,104, as against 9,516 cases disposed of up to 1953. As
of December 28, 1953, the number of cases pending decision is 974.

Lest T may be charged with hiding the status of the docket of
the Supreme Court, allow me to tell you that from 1945 up to Decem-
ber 7, 1953, 7,304 cases have been filed and docketed. From 1945
up to yesterday, the Court has disposed of either by decision or by
resolution a total of 6,587 cases. I wish to inform you that, as of
today, the number of cases submitted to a pending decision by the
Supreme Court is 510. Of this number, 8 cases are of the 1950 calen-
dar; 4 cases pertain to the 1951 calendar; 53 cases are of the 1952
calendar; and 465 cases are of the 1953 calendar. You will note that
there are no cases older than 1950, and the cases before 1953 are
only 45 which, together with the 465 cases of the 1953 calendar, the
Court will take up and dispose of beginning January, 1954. Many of
these pending cases have been voted, awaiting the preparation of the
necessary opinions. After the summer of 1954, I estimate that we
shall have disposed of by penned decisions around 250 cases, and our
docket will then be almost up-to-date. In this connection I am pleased
to announce that in the year 1953 alone we have written “finis” to
957 cases, or an average of about three cases a day, which represent
perhaps, modesty aside, 2. good working record.

One reason for the improvement of the docket of our Supreme
Court, apart from the fact that every member has been working as
hard as he can, is undoubtedly the circumstance that, notwithstanding
its right to vacation periods, the Court continuously is in session
throughout the year, — something that perhaps makes it unique.
Allowed by statute to hold summer sessions in Baguio, with corres-
ponding appropriations from year to year, the Court, animated by the
temperate climate, is usually able to promulgate in two months aboit
one third of the total number of its decisions and resolutions in 6ne
year. Of course, by foregoing the yearly vacation period, every mem-
ber of the Court is able to accumulate as much as one-year vacatioh
leave; but as a matter of expedient policy and in the interest of the
service, the Court sees to it that not more than two members go on
leave at a time.

From the facts and figures I have just pointed out, I have drawn
a few observations which I want to present for what they maybe
worth. Let us begin with the increasing number of disbarment
proceedings which, as I have already mentioned, occasionally make
it our painful duty to impose certain disciplinary measures on erring
attorneys. If only to lessen the work of the Supreme Court, would
vot this Convention feel constrained to do something calculated to
minimize, if not eliminate altogether, the cause for suspension or
disharment? Of course, I cannot be mistaken when I state that one
sure way, of preventing complaints against lawyers is for the latter
to faithfully adhere to the oath of office which they are required to
take before their admission to the bar, and for them to comply strictly
with the duties of attorneys enumerated in section 19 of Rule 127 of
the Rules of Court. I need not refresh your minds as to the contents
of the lawyer’s oath and as to his reglementary duties, and I merely
hope that you have not forgotten them or, if you already do, yca
would occasionally read them over. There may be some humor in
this, but I have often heard the remark that, as a new lawyer is
sworn in and reads his oath before the Supreme Court, he feels ner-
vous and fzltering when he reaches that part which says that ““I shall
delay no man for money or malice,” because this is too much of an
obligation to impose upon him who intends to practice law. Stated
niore bluntly, the idea of depriving himself of the prospects of earn-
ing money in any way is too hard for a lawyer to swallow. Certainly
an attorney has to earn and live like any other professional, but
don’t we think that, if we cannot earn by justifiable methods, it
would be better to give up the law practice?
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SPEECH OF PRESENTATION
By FRANCISCO ORTIGAS, Jr.
(Member of the Bar)

January 18, 1954
MAY IT PLEASE THE COURT:

The honor of presenting to this Honorable Court, for admis-
sion to the Bar, the candidates who successfully passed the exa-
minations given last year has been bestowed upon me. Allow 1me
to acknowledge my appreciation of the privilege with the obser-
vation that there are other members of the Committee of Bar Exa-
miners, far more brilliant and experienced in the law than 1, who
could have lent greater prestige to this task.

Your Honors, before making my formal presentation, and as
is usual in occasions of this nature, let me express some thoughts
and hopes for these successful candidates. 1 shall be brief in
my remarks for, recalling my own reaction as one of the success-
ful Bar Candidates in 1931, I feel that the candidates I am now
in turn sponsoring are likewise aware only of the solemn formality
of these rites where they have to, first: listen to a speech of pre-
sentation by a member of the Committee of Bar Examiners; second:
take their oaths; and third and last: attend to words of advice from
the member of this Honorable Court designated to address them on
their admission to the Bar. Whatever substantial meaning there
might be to this gathering will be lost to these candidates either
spontaneously or within the passage of a vely meagre measure of
time. Most of them are perhaps even now wishing that these
ceremonies were over so that they can the sooner join their inti-
mates and loved ones. Indeed, it is not strange for young people
to live in improvident hopes for the future without realization that
the pattern of that which is to come is in the main worked out by
activities and preparations of the present.

Now-a-days, major undertakings are seldom pursued without
a plan. It is now generally conceded that a project should not be
left to improvisation as it takes its course to a conclusion. A com-
manding officer must even have a plan of retreat should the for-
tunes of war turn against him; otherwise, his forces may be total-
ly annihilated.

1 know that the course of an individual’s jife cannot be de-
liberately and exactly planned. Paraphrasing Shakespeare, we are
all like swimmers in the sea, and the ocean waves and currents
may cast us ashore or take us farther out; only the event will
tell in its coming. Be that as it may, planning for our lives is not
at all without value. The candidates I am sponsoring, for example,
lave planned to be lawyers, and they will be admitted to the Bar
in a few moments. My late and revered father was an almost in-
digent student in his day who could not finance his own schooling.
He wanted to be a Pharmacist, but the worthy fathers who gave
him his high school training recognized his aptitude for the study
of law. They offered him free tuiticn in the college of law, and
he had to take it in preference to the payment of fees in the School
of Pharmacy. It turned out to be good planning for him.

Planning for a lawyer, after his admission to the Bar, is dif-
ficult. I must confess T did not have the benefit of one. But I
had, instead, a human ideal in the person of my father by whose
standards 1 sought to guide my own behavior. My father once
remarked to Senator Laurel as follows: “If you have lost your
money, you have lost nothing; if you have lost your health, you
may have lost something; but if you lose your honor and integrity,
you will have lost everything”. That simple principle, inter alia,
has steered me to where I am; — not a very successful lawyer per-
haps, but one happy and at peace with his own self.

The establishment of an ideal to emulate is within the reach
of all these candidates. The lives of Arellano, Arautlo, Mapa and
many other luminaries in Bench and Bar are open books, and the
principles they followed belong to the realm of public property
which anyone, with the desire, can appropriate to himself. Unce an
jdeal has been fixed as a goal, it will serve as a guiding beacon
light and it should be relatively easy, once in a while, to stop and
ponder on whether or not the young lawyer is still going in the
direction of that goal, and how much progress he has made in the
meantime. With hard work and perseverance, and an objective in
mind, the chances for success would be much more than where
one is just drifting aimlessly in the struggle for existence.
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With respect to the ala*ung number of administrative cases
against justices of the peace and judges of first instance, I may say
that, in the majority of cases, the grounds are unfounded or more
or less motivated by dissatisfaction resulting from unfavorable deci-
sions. However, we cannot dismiss lightly the unwholesome effect of
such administrative proceedings, and the bar should impose upon
itself the duty of being alert about the conduct of all members of
the bench and, always consistent with fairness and truth, reporting
to the proper authorities anyone who is derelict in the performance
of his duties. Upon the other hand, if the members of the bench will
only perform rightly and firmly his judicial functions, he need
not worry about any administrative actions.

On matter of the increasing number of pending cases every
year, without touching on the point whether there are sufficient
courts and judges to cope with the judicial work, I think much can
be derived if every member of the bench, from the lowest justice of
the peace to the highest Justice of the Supreme Court, should assume
and feel that it is his responsibility to accomplish as much work
as is humanly possible. He need not kill himself by overwork, but he
can, if he wants, set a standard that is consistent with his capacity
and health, the amount of work to be done, and the saying that
“justice delayed is justice denied.” At this point I may return to
the modern version of the definition of a good judge by Chancellor
Lyndhurst requiring ‘‘that a good judge must possess a reasonable
amount of industry.” In other words, every member of the bench
is expected to display at least a reasonable amount of industry, and
when he can no longer meet this, for the good of the service and
of himself, he should retire. I am happy to admit that the Govern-
ment has shown its liberality and earnestness to provide for an
adequate system.

Hand in hand with the efforts exerted by the members of the
bench towards disposing of as many cases as possible, the members
of the bar are called upon to give the court all the aid necessary
to achieve the purpose. The lawyer should realize that, as the one
in effect controlling the progress of a trial or of a proceeding on
appeal, he is responsible — perhaps more than the court — for
clogging the judicial docket. The court can decide, under crdirary
circumstances, only as fast as the lawyers can submit a case fo:
decision. And while courts are established to administer justice,
not infrequently, justice can be achieved and secured ouiside of a
judicial tribunal. Sometimes a just and amicable, extra-judicial,
settlement or compromise, satisfactory not only to your client but
also to the adverse party, can be arrived at, with the use of a little
tact and patience. If that is achieved, you will be saving the cougts
of time and unnecessary labor, and also expense, time and worry
to your client, at the same time promoting peace and good will in
the community. This is specially true in cases involving partition,
inheritance, probate of wills, ete., where the parties are close rela.
tives, even brothers and sisters. Of course in those cases you cannot
expect as much remuneration as in prolonged court litigation, includ-
ing appeals, but, for your inner satisfaction, you may dwell in the
consoling thought that you are not engaged in a business, to make
money, but you are practicing a profession, a noble one.

There is one other point, somewhat detached from the subject
already mentioned, which in passing I would like to bring te your
attention. The complexities of modern life have necessitated the
creation of administrative, quasi-judicial agencies to operate in a
field lying between the known legislative and judicial functions on
one side and the common executive powers on the other. Commissions
and boards, like the Securities and Exchange Commission, Public
Service C i Workmen’s C ion Ci ission, Board of
Tax Appeals, Patent Office, Court of Industrial Relations, — paren-
thetically T may state that jurisdiction over appeals from these
commissions and boards has grestly increased the work of the
Supreme Court, — have from time to time been blished to handle

SPEECH OF . . .

Admission to the Bar is technically the culmination of pre-
paration; it is also technically the start of operation. But the
field of law is so vast that we can never say that the activity of
preparation or study is really ended. A lawyer continues to study
and still learn as he works. I am reminded of the following incident
in my father’s life. After his own admission to the Bar, he ap-
plied for a law clerkship in the law office of the deceased De Icaza.
Mr. De Icaza took my father to his library and asked him if he had
read all the books there. My father, of course, replied in the nega-
tive. Mr. De Icaza then told my father that in order fo be a success-
ful lawyer, he must read all these books. The incident is an extreme
example, but it portrays the necessity on the part of the lawyer to
work hard and to be constantly wide-read in the literature of his
profession.

A lawyer should not cultivate only the factors that make for
success. He must also strive to have traits that will make him a
happy man and a good citizen. He must be fair to his adversaries;
he must be true and loyal to his friends. He must possess a civie
consciousness. And with *significant emphasis, I wish to stress
the fact that he must also fully appreciate the quality of gratitude.
Tle man who knows how to be grateful to those who have helned
him is the man who will reap success and happiness together. Grati-
tude is a tender memory of the heart. I trust, above all, that
these candidates will never for an instant forget the debt they owe
their parents or any other people who have made it possible for
them to be present at this oath-taking.

As a rule, the average man is more emotional than rational.
The requirement for lawyers is quite different. He must always
be rational, never emotional. Justice is fourded on reason, never
on emotion. There is no known way by which human justice can be
dispensed by agencies without the aid of the human judgment, and
for this reason the administration of justice can mnever be perfect.
Human judgment cannot be infallible. This circumstance should
all the more inspire these candidates to seek truth and justice with-
out emotion. They might do well to ever repeat this prayer to St.
Thomas More, patron saint of lawyers:

“O Almighty and Eternal God, Judge and Lawgiver,,
« send your Holy Spirit upon me that I may have light to know
what is right, wisdom to analyze and interpret the tangled
strands of human perplexities, and strength to act upon my
honest convictions. Never let me use any situation or informa-
tion to my own unfair advantage. Let me be fearless in de.
fense of justice. O good St. Thomas More, give me of your
fortitude and wisdom. Pray that our country may have just
laws and wise men to decide and strong to execute. Amen.”
With that prayer to St. Thomas More, let me now respectfully
move before this Honorable Court, on behalf of the Chairman and
the Committee of Bar Examiners for 1953, that the candidates who
guccessfully passed the examinations given in August of last year
be admitted to the Philippine Bar.

e

large, partly perhaps, because their actuations have usually been
subject to judicial review, which besides scrutinizing the law avplic-
able to the matter, has Jaid special emphasis on the query whether the
adjudication had been made under conditions meeting the due process
clouse, and the tenets of fair and impartial investigation. To
proceedings before these agencies the Rules of Court are not, of
course, applicable ex propio wigere. Wherefore the time is ripe
may be for the bar to take interest in the adviszbility or possibility
of devising and recommending some kind of uniform procedure for
the regulation of the practice before these administrative agencies,
as has been done in the United States.

In closing, permit me to lay spccial stress on the need for every
member of the bar and the bench to recognize their respective res-
ponsibility, and for them to assumc without any reservation such
T ibility, in relation to our judicial system. We cannot relax

certain relationships resulting from the tides of expanding agricul-
tural, commercial and industrial development, which regular judicial
and legislative ds could mnot and expeditiously
meet. Misgivings were at first aired about the possible courts of
law, their expansion and multiplication having been oftentimes
debated, specially in the United States. So far, however, in our
country they have generally inured to the benefit of the puople at
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without jeopardizing the administration of justice. To the extent

that the lawyer is true to his oath of office and to the cause of his

client, and to the extent that every member of the bench conscien-

tiously discharges his judicial functions and fast enough to avoid

unnecessary delay, the people’s confidence ‘will remain firm and

unshakable in the so-called last bulwark of democracy, the Judieiary
(Continued on page 149)
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MR. BROWNELL’S OPINION ON U.S. BASES

Following is the full text of the legal opinion of U.S. Attorney
General Herbert Brownell Jr., claiming the United States has title
to raval and mlitary bases in the Philippines. It was submitted
to the Secretary of State on August 28, 1953

The Honorable
The Secretary of State
My dear Mr. Secretary:

This is in response to the re-
quest of your legal adviser,
dated April 17, 1953, for an
opinion respecting title to Uni-
ted States military bases, in-
cluding naval reservations and
fueling stations, in the Philip~
pines. The request 1s appa-
rently joined in by the secreta-
ries of the navy and air force
and the director of the budget

bureau, who ave ‘represented
with you in an interdepart-
mental committee considering

the Manila joint staff commit-
tee report (August 13, 1952)
for the settlement of United
States property rights and re-
lated problems in the Philip-
pines. Accompanying the re-
quest for an opinion is a memorvandum of the legal adviser, which
the navy and air force consider to be a fair and full statement of
the legal issues, together with a considerable number of support-
ing classified documents.

Muncipal question is whether the United States retains
title="the proprietary interest as distinguished from sovereignty—
in the lands or areas in the Philippines comprising the military
and naval bases, reservations, and stations which it held as such
immediately prior to Philippine independence, achieved July 4, 1946.
(There is, of course, no issue as to the parts of such lands or areas
which have since been conveyed by express, formal grant of the
United States to the Philippine government.) If the answer is
that the United States continues to own the base lands or areas,
the further questions are whether the United States is under ob-
ligation to transfer them to the Philippine government presently
without compensation, or if there is no such obligation, whether the
President is authorized to make such a transfer.

MR. BROWNELL JR.

I

The problem begins with the Philippine Independence act—
also known as the Tydings-McDuffie act—of March 24, 1934. In
preparation of Philippine independence, provision was made for a
commonwealth government as a bridge to complete independence,
and for complete independence on the fourth day of July following
a ten-year period of commonwealth government. The common-
wealth government came into existence on November 15, 1935, so
the contemplated and actual date of independence became July 4, 1946.

The Philippine Independence act, in section 5, transferred to
the commonwealth government all the property and rights ac-
quired in the Philippine Islands by the United States under the
treaties of 1893 and 1900 with Spain, “except such land or other
property as has heretofore been designated by the President of the
United States for military and other reservations of the govern-
ment of the United States,” and except such land or property as
may have been sold. Previous acts of congress had placed under
the control of the then governments of the islands all property
acquired by the United States under the treaties with Spain,
except such land or property as might be designated by the Pres-
ident for military or other reservations. Section 12 of the Act
of July 1, 1902, (32 Stat. 691, 695) substantially reenacted by
section 9 of the Act of August 29, 1916, (39 Stat. 545, 547) and,
from time to time by executive orders of the President, certain
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MR. RECTO STATES THE PHILIPPINE CASE
!

Memorandum of Senator Claro M. Recto to the Secretary of Foreign
Affairs in reply to the United States claim of ownership over its
naval and military boses in the Philippines. It was dated March
8, 1954, and incorporated points menlioned in an eariier memo.an
dum by Mr. Recto,

Dear Secretary Garcia:

My attention has been called
to the opinion dated August 28,
1953 of Mr. Brownell, the in-
cumbent attorney general of
the United States, on the ques.
tion of whether the United
States has retained the “pro-
prietary interest or title as dis-
tinguished from soverzignty,”
in the “lands or areas in the
Philippires comprising the mi-
litary and naval bases, reser-
vations, and stations” notwith-
standing the grant of indepen-
dence.

His cpinion is that the United
States retained, after the grant
of indopendence, the title or
proprietary interest to the base
lands, that is to say, that the
Republic of the Philippines is
not the owuer of the lands where the United States military bases,
reservations and fueling stations are presently located.

MR. RECTO

The argument supporting Mr. Brownell’s opinion m2y be

summarized thus:

That under section 5 of the Tydings-McDuffie Law the Com-
monwealth government acquired all the property and rights wkich
the United States acquired from Spain, except mlitary and other
reservations; that under section 2(a)(12) and section 5. title to
said reservations was retained during the Commonwealth reriod;
that under section 10(a) of the same law, it was originally -
tended to transfer to the Philinpines the title to mil'tary reseva.
tions upon the proclamation of independence; that under section
10(b) all uestions relating to naval recerv-tions and fueling sta-
tions would be adiusted and settled within two years after the
proclemation of independence, in neeotiations between the President
of the United States and the Philiprine government: that under
section 10(c), added to the law in 1939, the United Stotes would
retain title to its promerties used for diplomatic and consular
establishments in the Philinnines after the grant of independence;
that Joint Resolution 93 of the United States Congress dated Jnne
29. 1944 changed the policy of the United States with respect to
military reservations by providing in effect that. irstead of trans-
ferring title to said reservations upon the grant of indepenerce,
as originally intended, the title to such reservations would be re-
tained even after the grant of indenmendence; that such change
of policy is 2lso evidenced by the Philippine Propertv Act of 1946,
passed by the United States Congress on July 3, 1946, one day
before the proclamation of independence, which provided that title
to all United States properties in the Philinpines would rem~in
vested in the United States even after independence and such
properties included military and other reservations; that there has
been no adiustment of the property rights of the United S*ates in
the Philippines as contemplated in section 2(b) (1) of the Tvdings-
McDnffie Law, as shown by article VI of the Treoty of General
Relations; that the proclamation of Philippire independence was®
subject to the reservations contained in the Tydings-McDuffie Law
and other laws of the United States Congress; that the Bases Agree-
ment concerns the use of the bases and did not settle directly the
title to military and naval bases; that, therefore, the titles to all
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arveas were designated as military or naval reservations. Exercise
of the authority granted to the President to designate land for
military and other reservations vested title to the designated land
in the United States until otherwise disposed of by the President
(28 Op. A.G. 262, 1910).

Section 10 (a) of the Philippine Independence act provided
for the recognition of Philippine independence and the withdrawal
of American sovereignty. On the specified fourth day of July,
11946) the President of the United States by proclamation was to
withdraw and surrender “all right of possession, supervision/!
jurisdiction, control, or sovereignty then existing and exercised by
the United States in and over the territory and people of the
Philippine Islands, including all military and other reservations
of the government of the United States in the Philippines (except
such naval reservation and fueling stations as are reserved under
Section 5),”” and was to recognize the independence of the Phil-
ippine Islands as a separate and self-governing nation. Under
section 10 (b), the President was authorized to enter into nego-
tiations with the government of the P}nhppme Islands not laver
than two years after his procl
for the ‘“adjustment and settlement of all questions relating to
naval reservations and fueling stations of the United States in
the Philippine Islands, and pending such adjustment and settle.
ment the matter of naval reservations and fueling stations shall
remain in its present status.”” Under section 2 (b) (1) and (5
it was required that the Philippine Constitution provide, effective
upon independence, that the property rights of the United States
and the Philippine Islands shall be promptly adjusted and settled:

ion r
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the bases still remain in the United States, there having been no
transfer thereof to the Philippines; and that, finally, the President
of the United States has complete discre'ion to decide whether the
titles to such bases would be transferred to the Philippinzs and
whether the transfer should be with or without compensation.

I have carefully read Mr. Brownell’s 21-page opinion, and I
have found no justification for changing my stand that the so-called
“base lands or areas” (as distinguist from the i
thereon in the form of buildings and otker types of real property)
are now owned by the Republic of the Philippines and not by the
United States.

My stand is supported by the provisions of the Tydings-McDuf-
fie Act, and the stipulations of Treaty of Gereral Relatinns en-
tered into between the Philippines a~d the Unit-d Stat~s on July
4, 1946 and the bases agreement te‘ween the two countries executed
on March 14, 1947. The implictions of the two trea‘ies on the
question of title to the base lands were not fully consid.red in
Mr. Brownell’s opinion.

The Tydyings-McDuffie Law of March 24, 1934 nrovides that
“the Philippine Tslands recognizes the right of the United St-tes
. . te maintain military and other reservations”; that “all the
property and rights which mav have been acquired in the Phil-
ippine Islands by the United Staves . .. excent such lard or
other property as has heretofore been designated by the Pres-
ident of the United States for military and other reservations of
the government of the United States” are granted to the Common-
wealth government; that unon the proclamation of Philippine In-
depend. on July 4, 1946 “the President of the United States

ts

and that by way of further assurance the Philippine g
would embody the foregoing provision. and certain others, in =«
treaty with the United States.
The words of section 10 (a) rm thelr face appear to be a relin.
to the Philippine b of sovereignty over the
Philippine territory, including military and other reservations of
the United States but excluding United States naval reservations
and fueling stations, and not a relinquishment or conveyance  of
title or proprietary right, such as was made in the language of
section 5 to the commonwealth government. Except for the military
and other reservations, this phraseology of section 10 (a) was
entirely consistent with section 5. There was no ambiguity since
the commonwealth government was vested with title to public prop-
erty to which the independent republic would succeed, and it need
ed only the session of sovereignty to complete its absolute contrcl.
But the military and other reservations designated by the Pres-
ident of the United States had not been conveyed to the com-
monwealth government by section 5. Hence, without a further
explanation, it would seem that the force of section 10 (a), inso-
far as United States military reservations were concerned, was
a grant of sovereingty to the Philippine Republic but leaving
title to the fee in the United States.
However, it appears. that more was intended. The 1934
Tydings-McDuffie Philippine Independence act, which required and

shall by proclamation withdraw and surrender all right of pos-
session, supervision. jurisdiction, control, or sovereignrty then ewist-
ing and exercised by the United States in and over the territory
and people of the Philippine Islands, including all military and
other reservations of the Government of the United States in
the Philippines (except such maval reservations and fueling sta-
tions as are reserved under section 5)”’: and that “the President
of the United States is hereby authorized and emnowered to enfer |
into negotiations with the Government of the Philinpine Islands,
not later than two years after his proclamation recoonizing the
i d of the Philip Islands, for the adiustment and
settlement of all questions relating to naval reservations and fuel-
ing stations of the United States in the Philippine Islands, and
pending such adiustment and settlement of the matter of naval
reservations and feuling stations shall remain in its present status.”

Because only naval reservations and fueling stations were
provided for in the Tydings-McDuffie Law, the right of the
TUnited States to mesotiate for additional bases was implement-
ed in the Joint Resolution of the United States Coneress of June
29. 1944. In concnrrence with this action of the U.S. Congress,
the Conoress of the Philinnines approved Joint Resolntion No.
4 on July 28, 1945 authorizing the President of the Philipnines
tn negotiate with the President of the United States the estab-

of the aforesa’d bases, fo as to insnre the territovial

had received the acceptance of the Philippine Leg: e, was the
reenactment with some few changes of the Hare-Tlawes-Cutting
Act of January 17, 1933. Like the Tydings-McDuffie Act
the 1933 act called for acceptance by the Philippine Legisla-~
ture but had been rejected by the Philippine Legislature on sev-
eral grounds, one of which was the issue of military reservations.
Under the Hare-Hawes-Cutting Act, the section 5 grant to the
commonwealth government of ownership of property except mili-
tary and other reservations of the United States was the same as
appeared in the later act. But while the section 10 grant of
sovereignly included military and other reservations of the United
States, it permiited the President to redesignate and thereby re-
tain for the United States any or all of the land reserved under
section for the United States within two years after the procla.
mation of independence (47 Stat. 768). As stated by the managers
of the bill for the house of representatives:

“The effect of the conference agreement is to reserve to the
United States upon final withdrawal of the sovereignty of the
Urited States from the Philippine Islands, such land or other
property which has heretofore been designated for military and
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inteerity of the Philinnines. the mutnal protection of the Phil.
inpines and the United States, and the maintenance of peace in
the Pacific.

On July 4. 1946, President Truman proclaimed the inderen-
dence of the Philippines. Pursvant to the nrovision of seetion
10(a) of the Tvdmgs-McDufﬁe Law. he withdrew znd surrender-
ed “all rights of rvision, jurisdi , control or
sovereignty of the United sz‘ee of America in and over the
territory and people of the Philipnines excent certain reserva-
tions therein and thereafter authorized to be made.”

Under article I of the Treaty of General Re'ations the United
States withdrew and snrrendered to the Republic of the Phil-
ippines “all right of upervision, jurisdietion, control
of sovereignty existing and Pxerﬂied by the United States in
and over tha tlerritory and people” of the .Philippines, ‘excep‘
the use of such bases. necessary appurtenances to such bases, ani
the rights incident thereto, as the United States of America by
agreement with the Republic of the Philippines, may deem ne-
cessary to retain for the mutual protection” of the two coun-
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I

cther purposes as may be redesignated by the President of the
United States within two years after the date of independence.”

This retention of military reservations was unacceptable to
the Philippine Legislature which, in declining to accept the act,
included among its reasons a statement that “the military, naval,
and other reservations provided for in the said act are inconsist-
ent with true independence, violate national dignity, and are sub-
ject to misunderstanding.”

There were other reasons for rejection. But it appeared that
the best compromise that the President was able to offer at the
time was a request to congress to remove the more objectionable
features from the military base provisions and to correct at some
later date, after hearings, whatever imperfections or inequalities
existed in the sections of the Hare-Hawes-Cutting Act. According-
ly, on March 2; 1934, the President provosed the following changes
in the Hare-Hawes-Cutting Act:

“As to the military bases, I recommend that this provision be
eliminated from the law and ' that these bases be relinquished
i ly with the ish of final Philippine in-
dependence.

“As to the naval bases, I recommend that the law be so
amended as to provide for the ultimate settlement of this
matter on terms satisfactory to our own government and that of the
Philippine Islands.”

In the support of these recommendations the Tydings-McDuffic
act was enacted. It removed from the first paragraph of section
10 of the old act the option of the United States to redesignate
and retain any or all of the land or property reserved for mili-
tary or other reservations, and retained for the United States
only “such naval reservations and fueling stations as are reserved
under section 5.7 Also there was transferred from section 10 to
section 2 the provisions to be included in the Philippine Constitu-
tion, including the provision to be effective upon independence
that property rights of the United States in the Philivpine TIs-
lands shall be promptly adjusted and settled. In their place there
was inserted a second and final paragraph:

“(b) The President of United States is hereby authorized and
emnowered to enter into negotiations with the government of the
Philippine Islands, not later than two vears after his proclamation
recognizing the independence of the Philippine Islands, for the ad-
justment and settlement of all questions relating to naval reserva-
tions and fueling stations of the United States in the Philippine
Islands, and pending such adiustment and settlement the matter
of naval reservations and fueling stations shall remain in its pre-
sent status.”

In describing the effect of these changes, the house committee
on insular affairs and the senate committee on territories and in-
suler affairs gave identical explanations as follows:

“5. The United States agrees to relingish all reservations now
designated for the use of the United States Army after the in-
stitution of the independent government, but reserves the right,
at its diseretion. to retain and maintain naval bases and fueling
stations in the Philipnine Islands.

“6. The feasibility of further retaining and maintaining naval
bases and fueling stations in the Philippine Islands after the in-
dependent government is constituted, will be the subject of con-
ferences between the two governments.”

In addition, both reports included the following statement re-
garding the purpose and intent of the new measure:

“The pending hill (M.R. 8573) is a proposal o veenact the
Hare-Hawes-Cutting bill, with the exception that the United
States agrees, after the establist of the ind d 2OV
to withdraw its sovereignty and relinquish ail lands now constitu-
ting reservations for the United States Army in the islands and
all other reservations, excepting those which have heretofore heen
designated for the use of the United States Navy and for fueling
stations,”  (Underscoring supplied.)

It would thus appear that it was intended, after the common-
wealth period, that the United States would give up its property
and rights in military reservations including the right to main-
tain them as bases; but that the United States would retain its

114

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL

MR. RECTO STATES . . .

{ries. I have underscored the word “use” because it discloses
the nature of the interest retained by the United States in the
bases and it implies that the title to the bases is in the Repub-
lic of the Philippines as the sovereign grantor of their use to
the United States.

It is inferable from article I of the treaty that there had al-
ready been a grant or surrender to the Philippines of the title
held by the United States to all the base lands at the time of the
proclamation of Philippine independence.

The subsequent agreement referred to in the said treaty of
General Relations is the Bases Agreement concluded between the
two countiies on March 14, 1947.

The trealy uses the word “bases” without qualification, thus
indicating that it refers indiscriminately to military, naval and
other kinds of bases.

The Bases Agreement, as an implementation of the Treaty
of General Relations and as the culmination of negotiaticns for
bases in the Philippines after the withdrowal of American sov-
ereignty, unreservedly confirms the view that the Philippines owns
the lands or areas where the bases are situated. The subject
of the Bases Agreement according to its preamble is the “grant
to the United States of -America by the Republic of the Philip-
pines, in the exercise of ils title and sovereignty, of the use, free
of rent, in furtherance of the mutual interest of bolh countries,
of certain lands of the public domain.”” Tt may be uoted that the
preamble recognizes that the “title” to the bases is held by the
Philippines and that the United States acquires only the “use”
of certain lands of the public domain. The juxtaposition of the
words “title” and ‘‘sovereignty” signifies that these two concepts
are inseparably linked.

Article 1, paragraphs 1 and 2, of the Bases Agreement pro-
vides that the “Government of the Philippines grants to the Gov-
ernment of the United States of America the right to retain the use
of the bases in the Philippines listed in Annex A attached hereto”;
and to use the bases listed in Annex B. TUnder Article XXI the
DUnited States retains the right to occupy temporary quarters and
installations existing outside the bases. The duration of the use
and occupancy is 99 years.

Article XVIIT specifically assumes that the bases will be re-
linquished and turned over by the United States to the Phil-
ippines upon the termination of the agreement, or at any earlier
date chosen by the United States.

Other provisions of the Bases Agrecment indicate that the
United States has merely the use, possession, and accupancy, but
not the ownership of the base lands. Indeed, the Bases Agree-
ment contains several stipulations, which are premised on the as-
sumption that upon the proclamation of independence there had
been a transfer to the Republic of the Philippines of all the title
and proprietary interest previously held by the United States in
the base areas. The same assuniption is made by the Philipvine
secretary of foreign affairs in his notes to the American Am-
bassador, relative to the transfer to the Philippine government
of Fort Mills, Mariveles quarantine reservation, Nichols Field and
the Zamboanga Pettit barracks. The secretary of foreign affairs
in his notes clarified that the transfers were a “formalization” of
the withdrawal of United States sovereignty over said bases as
effected in the Treaty of General Relations. The stand of the
secretary of foreign affairs is consistent with his note of March
14, 1947 (upon the signing of the bases agreement) wherein he
did not concede the existence of any rights or titles of the United
States to the real property in the bases.

There is one feature of the Bases Agreement which deserves
special mention.  Although the title of the agreement mentions
“military bases” only, in reality it also includes such naval reser-
vations as the Leyte-Samar Naval Base, Subic Bay, Northwest
Shore Naval Base, Olongapo Naval Reservation, Baguio Naval
Reservation, Tawi-Tawi Naval Anchorage and Naval Base, Cafia-
cao-Sangley Point Naval Base and certzin naval air bases. The
Bases Agreement is therefore consistent with the Treaty of Gen-
eral Relations whose article I, as already 'moted, speaks of the
use of “bases,” without qualification.

Furthermore, the agreement in a way represents and consti-
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property rights in naval reservations and fueling stations and the
right to maintain them, subject to further discussions and the
changes effected, if any, by a final adjustment and settlement
of all questions pertaining to naval bases. The discussions were
te be begun within two years after the proclamation of inde-
pendence, but there would be no change in status of the naval re-
servations and stations until and unless the final settlement pro-
duced a change The Philippine Independence Act on May 1,
1934, and followi doption of the Ct itution and its ap-
proval in a pleblcxte in 1935, the Commonwealth regime was in-
augurated.

The contemporary opinion of authoritative sources supported
the view that section 10 intended a transfer to the new republic
of property rights in United States military reservations, as well
as the grant of sovereignty, when indi was 1o be achieved.
For example, the joint preparatory committee on Philippine af.
fairs, created April 14, 1937, pursuant to an arrangement hetween
the President of the United States and the President of the Phil-
ippines, included in its report a statement on United States gov-
ernment property in the Philippines. After referring to sections
5, 10, and 2 of the Philippine Independence act, the committee
made the following statement:

“After the ind d is on July 4,
1946, the govemment of the United States will require, for its
official establishments in the Philippines, properties such as a
government normally maintains in the territory of a foreign coun-
try. For instance, the government of the United States now con-
templates the erection of certain buildings on a portion of the
Camp John Hay military leservatlun. near the city af Baguio, for
the use of its official in the Philippi during:
and following the Commonweelth period. Unless some arrange-
ment is made before the independent government comes into exist-
ence, this property, as a part of a military reservation, must be
surrendered to the independent government. In view of the ex-
tensive propertics which will be turned over to the independent
gevernment under existing law, the committee also recommends,
as a matter of equity, that, prior to the estaklishment of the govern-
ment, some arrangement be made under which title to such prop-
erties as the United States may require for the aforementioned
purpose would either be ‘retroceded to the United States with-
cut compensation, or be acquired by the United States through an
exchange of properties.”

This report became the basis for the 1939 amendments of the
Philippine Independence Act. Significantly, in regard to the prop-
erty amendments effected by the 1939 act, it was section 10 of the
basic act which was amended. (Act of August 7, 1939, 52 Stat.
1226, 1230-1231) A new subsection (¢c) was added to section 10,
which authorized the President, among other things, to designate
properties of the United States in the Philippines suitable for
diplomatic and consular establishments. It was provided that the
property so designated “shall continue to be vested in fee-simple
in the United States notwithstanding the provisions contained
in subsection (a) of this section.” Likewise, title to the lands and
buildings constituting the official residences of the United States
High Commissioner was to continue to be vested in the United
States after July 4, 1946, notwithstanding the provisions con-
tained in section 10(a). The senate and house reports indicated
that it was necessary to make these previsions, else all proper-
ties held or owned by the United States in the Philippines would
be transferred to the independent government of the Philippines.

Thus, prior to the war with Japan, contemporary interpreta-
tion and expectation was that upon achievement of Philippine in-
dependence the United States would relinquish operation and own-
ership of military and other reservations in the Philippines, re-
taining only 1) operation and ownership of naval reservations and
fueling stations, subject to subsequent negotiations with the Phil-
ippine Republic, and 2) ownership of consular and diplomatic
properties, including the residences of the former high commission-
er. It was also contemplated, pursuant to section 2(b) of the
Philippine Independence act and article 16 of the Philippine Con-
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tutes the very “adjustment and settlement” of questions regard-
ing naval reservations, which, under Section 10(b) of the Tydings-
McDusfie Law, the President of the United States was supposed
to negotiate within two years from July 4, 1946. Mr. Brownell’s
opinion erroneously presupposes that there has been no such ad-
justment yet.

It appears to me that to resclve the question regarding the
title to the base lands there is no need to consult other documents,
laws or agreements, nor to consider other antecedent and colla-
teral circumstances, which would only tend to mislead or obscure
the issue. The two treaties I have mentioned, viz., the Treaty of
General Relations and the Bases Agreement, are covenants which
are in full force and cffect and have not been modified or altered.
They are law-making treaties conclusive on the high contracting
parties and are the scle repository and the best evidence of the in-
tention of the two countries with reference to the status of the
bases. Their language as to the nature of the United States’ in-
terest in the base lands is clear and unmistakable.

In a recent decision the Philippine supreme court categorically
ruled that the Republic of the Philippines retains its sovereignty
or ownership of the bases held by the United States. Said the su-
preme court:

“By the agreement, the Philippine government merely consents
that the United States exercises jurisdiction in certain cases. This
censent was given purely as a matter of comity courtesy, or ex-
pediency. The Philippine government has not abdicated its sov-
ereignty over the bases as part of the Philippine territory or divest-
ed itself completely of jurisdiction over offenses committed therein.”
(People v. Acierto, January 30, 1953.)

The court also noted in the Acierto case the significance of
the provision of the Bases Agreement in Article XIII, paragraph
3, that in case the United States renounces the jurisdiction re-
served to it in paragraphs 1 and 6 of said article, the American
officer holding the offender in custody should notify the corres-
ronding prosecuting officer of that fact. According to the court,
said provision “is an cmphatic recognition and reaffirmation of
Philippine sovercignty over the bases.”

I notice that Mr. Brownell’s opinion fails to mention the
proviso in article I of the Treaty of General Relations that the
United States would be allowed only the “use” of the bases. On
the other hand, he characterizes as a “difficult-to-explain ambigui-
ty” the statement in the preamble of the Bases Agreement that
the Republic of the Philippines, “in the exercise of its title and
sovereignty,” was granting to the United States merely the “use”
of the bases. While he admits that “the purpose of the- agree-
ment was to cover the use of the properties (meaning the bases)
for military purposes,” his opinion misses the significance of the
term “use” as employed in the agreement and bypasses those pro-
visions which impiy that the title fo the base lands remains in the
Philippines.  Contrary to the Attorney General’s insinuation, the
title to the base lands is assumed by the two treaties to be held
by the Republic of the Philippines and was not left to future
determination.

The term ‘‘use” in its ordinary and legal acceptation (whe-
ther in the common law or civil law) is not synonymous with
title or dominion. It connotes a right included in, and therefore
inferior to, title or ownership.

I have already stated in a previous communication that the
right of the United States in the base lands is only a “jus utendi”
and that the transaction covered by the Bases Agreement is a
“lease.” I said it is a lease hecause the 99-year term of the
use reminded me of the 99-year lease of Atlantic bases obtained
during the last war by the United States from Great Britain in
censideration for some old destroyers. From the standpoint of
our municipal law, however, the right of the United States to
use the bases free of rent resembles the contract of commodatum
or the servitude of use. The comparison might help in under-
standing the view that Philippine ownership of the bases is not
incompatible with the United States right to mamtam and operate
them.

In the exchanges of notes between the American Ambassador
to the Philippines and the Philippine secretary of foreign affairs,
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stitution, that the property rights of the United States in the
Philippine Islands would be promptly adjusted and settled follow-
ing the recognition of independence of the Philippine Islands; and
by way of further assurance, the government of the Philippines
would embody this provision in a treaty with the United States.

The advent of war with Japan brought a complete change in
the mutual relationship between the United States and the Philip-
pines. The occupation of the Islands by Japan wmade it neces-
sary for United States forces to drive out the invaders. It was
obvious to the people and governments of both the United States
and the Philippines that, even after Philippine independence was
achieved, there would be need for more adequate military in-
stallations in the Philippines than was contemplated by the Inde-
pendence Act for the protection of the Island. Discussions re-
garding future American bases in the Philippines arose in 1943
and culminated in the adoption of senate joint resolution 92 of
the 78th congress. which became P. L. 380, approved June 29, 1944
(58 Stat. 625. Section 2 provided.)

‘“After negotiation with the President of the Commonwealth
of the Philippines, or the President of the Filipino Republic, the
President of the United States is hereby authorized by such means
as he finds appropriate to withhold or to acquire and to retain
such bases, necessary appurtenances to such bases, and the rigkis
incident thereto, in addition to any provided for by the act of
March 24, 1934, as he may deem necessary for the mutual pro-
tection of the Philippine Islands and of the United States.”

The President also was authorized in section 3 to advance the
date for granting independence prior to July 4, 1946, but this was
never done.

As noted by the senate and house committees which recom-
mended the adoption of S. J. Res. 93:

“This joint resolution deals with the subject of Filipino inde-
pendence and the future security of the United States and the
coming Philippine Republic. The whole subject of the Philippine
matter, both present and future has been considered by President
Roosevelt; President Manuel Quezon, of the Philippine Com-
monwealth, now ng in Washingten; various departments of
cur government interested in the Philippines; and by members and
committees of congres.* * *

“First, the President of the United States is authorized, after
negotiation with the President of the Commonwealth of the Phil-
ippines or the President of the TFilipino Republic, to withhold or
to acquire and retain such bases, necessary appurtenances to such
bases, and the rights incident thereto, in addition to any wvro-
vided by the Tydings-McDuffie law, as he may deem necessary
for the full and mutual protction of the Philippine Islands and the
Unrited States.”

The concept of the Tydings-McDuffie Act that the United
States would withdraw almost antirely from the giving of mili-
tary protection to the Philippines was thereby erased, and by mu-
tnal understanding. On their part. the Philippine leadership
and legislature accepted the snirit and the letter of Joint Reso-
lution 93.  Culminating necotiations hetween President Truman
and Philipnine President Osmefia, both signed an agreement on
Mav 14, 1§45 setting forth a preliminary statement of general
principles pertainine to the United States military and naval base
system in the Philippines to he used as a basis for detailed dis-
cussions and staff studies. Among the provisions of this prelimi-
nary statement were the following:

“6. Pending development of the detailed plan, the TU.S. will
vetain all sites which were held by U.S. armv as military reser-
vations on 7 December 1941 and by the U.S. navy except at
Cavite, and will be accorded rights to sites in the localities shown
on the attached appendix.

“T. The U.S. will have the right to retain, or to exchange
for sites listed in paragraph 6 above, those sites wherein are lo.
cated bases. installations, or facilities which have bheen or may
be developed in the course of the present war, to acquire add‘tion-
al sites and to acquire such sites in the future as may be required
by changes in the means and methods of warfare, including the
development of new weapons. The U.S. will have the right to
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concerning the transfer of Fort Mills (Corregidor) znd islands in
the vicinity thereof, Pettit barracks in Zamboanga, the Mariveles
Quarantine station, a portion of Nichols Field, and the U.S. armed
forces cemetery No. 2 in San Francisco del Monte, the American
Ambassador generally declares that the ‘‘the government of the
United States of America transfers to the Republic of the Phil-
ippines all right, or title to .or interest in’> the aforesiad proper-
ties. The implication is that prior to said transfer, the “title to,”
or ownership of said bases or reservations belonged to the Govern-
ment of the United States.

However, it will be noted that the above installations are not
included in Annexes A and B of the Bases Agreement, as among
the military bases whose use is reserved or granted to the United
States. Hence, as corrvectly qualified by the Philippine Secretary
of Foreign Affairs in his replies to the aforesaid notes of the
/American Ambassador. such transfers of “the right, title to or in-
terest’” of the United States government in the bases and reserva-
tions known as Fort Mills and islands surrounding it, Pettit bar-
12cks in Zamboanga, the Mariveles quarantine station, ete., were
merely “a formalization of the tronsfer and surrender of posses-
sion, supervision, conlrol or sovereignty over these areas already
made by the United States in favor of the Philippines in the
Treaty of General Relations” and in the Proclamation of Inde-
pendence.

The component elements of ownership are the jus fruendi, jus
utendi, jus di: di, jus vindicandi, and jus tendi. It is evi-
dent from the terms of the Bases Agreement that the United States
acquired only the jus utendi, which right, in law and jurisprudence
anywhere is separable from ownership.

On the other hand, the Act of August 7, 1939, amending section
10 of the Tydings-McDuffie Law, provides that the properties
which may be acquired by the United States under this act, as
contradistinguished from military bases and other reservations,
shall belong in absolute ownership (“shall be vested in fee simple’”)
to the United States.

If it had ever been intended to vest in the Unifted States the
ownership of military bases and other reservations in the Philip-
pines, that intention could have been clearly and unequivocally ex-
presed by the United States Congress in the same Tydings-McDuf-
fie Law; in the Joint Resolution of the U.S. Congrass of June 29,
1944, authorizing the President of the United States to acquire
bases for the mutual protection of the United States and of the
Philippines; in the Treaty of General Relations between the United
States and the Phiiippines signed on July 4, 1946, and in the Bases
Agreement itself, in the same marner as its intention with respect
to the properties contemplated in the Act of Congress of August 7,
1929. Since the Treaty of General Relations and the Bases Agree-
ment merely speak of the grant of the use of the bases to the
United States, said grant ecan by no means be construed as a re-
linquishment of ownership. In short, the bases were in effect
leased to the United States, for 92 years and only their possession
was transferred thereby, inasmuch as there is no transfer of own-
ership in lease.

As I have said, both the Treaty of General Relations and the
Bases Agreement are adequate to the resolution of the question of
title to the base lands. Nevertheless, I would like to set forth
hereunder some additional observations on the points discussed in
Mr. Brownell’s opinion.

1. It is argued that a distinction should be made between
“proprietary interest’” and “sovereignty” in the bases, the premise
being that while the Philippines has sovereignty over the base
lands, the United States hds the title. The distinction has no basis
because, as has been said, the acquisition of territery by a state
“can mean nothing else than the acquisition of sovereignty.” (Op-
penheim’s Int. Law, Lauterpacht, Vol. I, 6th ed., p. 496; 1. Hach-
worth’s Digest of Int. Law, p. 895). To concede that the United
States retained title to the base lands after the proclamation of
independence, is to concede her right to exergise sovereignty over
ihe same to the exclusion of the Philippine government. The re-
sult would be a species of obnoxious extraterritoriality, impair-
ing the status of the Republic of the Philippines as a sovereigr:
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acquire sites and install, maintain and operate thereon, the re-
quired communication and navigation facilities and radar instal-
Jations.”

In addition, the Philippine legislature acted on the matter
when it passed Joint Resolution 4, approved July 28, 1945. Noting
that the United States government had enacted joint resolution
93, and that such action had been ‘“‘concurred in by the gov-
ernment of the C of the Philippi then establish
in Washington, it resolved “that the congress of the Philippines
adhere to the policy and intent” of joint resolution 93. Further:

“That in order to speedily effectuate the policy declared by
the congress of the United States and approved by the government
of the Commonwealth of the Philippines, the President of the Phil-
ippines is authorized to negotiate with the President of the United
States the establishment of the aforesaid bases, so as to insure
the territorial integrity of the Philippines, the mutual protection
of the Philippines and the United States, and the maintenance of
peace in the Pacific.”

Thus it appears that the intentions of the Philippine Independ-
ence act respecting military reservations were mutually altered
in favor of a policy looking toward the expansion of military,
naval, and air bases in the Philippine—a policy wholly inconsist-
ent with the idea of an automatic transfer of the property consti-
tuting the bases upon the achieving of independence. Not only
was the President of the United States authorized to withhcld and
retain or acquire and retain bases in addition to any provided by the
Tydings-McDuffie law, but he was authorized to do these things in
negotiation with the President of the future Republic of the Philip-
pines as well as the then President of the Commonwealth of the
Phlippines; making it quite clear that ownership and operation
were to continue well after independence was achieved. And this
broad pattern for the continuance and expansion of bases was ac-
cepted, though no acceptance was technically required at the time,
by the President and legislature of the Philippines.

In my view, the change wrought by the joint resolution of Junc
29, 1944, is decisive of the intention to retain title, and of the
fact that title was retained, in the United States, to the property
owned and used or reserved by the United States prior to Philip-
pine independence as military and naval reservations, bases, or
stations. However, if further evidence of this purpose and fact is
needed, it is supplied by the second section of the Philippine
Property Act of 1946 (Act of July 3 ,1946, 60 Stat. 418).

In addition to the post-war military defense problems there
were a host of post-war rehabilitation and restoration problems
in which United States help was essential even after independence
of the Philippines was achieved. Congress had enacted a Philippine
Rehabilitation act providing for the conduct of many federal ser-
vices in the islands. It was necessary for these agencies to
cccupy real property and use personal property owned by the
United States. Otherwise, the agencies’ appropriations would be
diverted to the purchase or rental of the needed space and equip-
ment. Our government had brought into the Philippine large
stores of supplies and equipment for purposes of the war and re-
habilitation. In addition, the alien property custodian held larvge
amounts of property seized from enemy aliens.

In view of all the changes in circumstances and in the nature
and extent of United States property holdings, it was deemed
“manifestly improper to permit title to pass automatically to the
Philippine Republic on July 4 of this year (1946).””

As a consequence, there was enacted the Philippine Property
Act of 1946, dealing “only with the proprietary interests of the
TUnited States in real or personal property within the boundaries
of the Philippines.” Section 2 of the act provided:

“There shall remain vested in the government of the United
States or its agencies or instrumentalities all the right, title, and
interest of the said government or its agencies or instrumental.
ities to all real and personal property within the Philippine
Islands as may now be vested in, or later be acquired by the gov-
ernment of the United States or any of its agencies or instrument-
alities.”
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state and contrary to the letter and spirit of the independence
Jaw and the professed altruistic policy of the United States to the
Islands.

2. Mr. Brownell admits that under the Tydings-McDuffie
Law, the original intention was to transfer the title to the mili-
tary bases upon the proclamation of Philippine independence.

But it is contended that Joint Resolution 93, adopted by the
United States Congress on June 29, 1944, wrought a change in
the policy of the United States with respect to the bases. Said
resolution authorized the President of the United States to nego-
tiate with the President of the Philippines for additional bases.
The Philippine congress in its Joint Resolution No. 4, dated Juiy
28, 1945, assented to the Joint Resolution 93. The attorney general
claims that said Joint Resolution 92 is *decisive of the intention
to retain title, and of the fact that title was retained,” in the bases
after the grant of independence.

The contention is not well-taken. Section 5 of the Tydings-
McDuffie Law, in providing for the grant or transfer to the Com-
monwealth government of all the property and rights acquired by
the United States from Spain, may be construed as a complete con-
veyance of whatever title or proprietary interest was held by the
United States in Philippine territory.  The proviso, excepting
military bases and naval reservations from the grant, may be cons-
trued as allowing the retention by the United States of the use,
possession or occup@ney of said military and other reservations,
but not of the ownership or title.

This interpretation is in harmony with section 10¢a) which
speaks of the relinquishment of “possession” (not title) of mili-
tary bases upon the praclamation of Philippine independence, the
implication being that during the commonwealth period, the United
States retained only the possession or occupancy of the bases and
that their ownership had become vested in the Commonwealth gov-
ernment, as contemplated in Section 5.

There is one practical consideration justifying the abcve in-
{erpretation. It is that, in order to maintain and orerate military
bases and other reservations during the commonwealth period and
after independence, it was not, and it would not be necessary for
the United States to vetain the title or ownership of the base lands.
Possession or control thereof is sufficient for the purpose, so it iz
improner to assume that more than this richt was conveyed. The
principle of in dubio mitius is applicable to the problem at hand,
if there is at all a problem of construction involved in this case.
This rule of interpretation holds that if the meaning of a stipu-
lation is in doubt, that meaning is to be preferred which would
be less onerous for the party assuming an oblication, or which
interferes less with the territorial and personal supremacy of a party.

There is nothing in Joint Resolution 93 which directly sup-
ports the theory that the United States retained ownership of the
Jands. On the contrary. the resolution should likewise be com-
strued as entitling the United States to retain mervely the use
and mossession of additional base lands, in view of the fact that
the Bases Agreement itself which defines and limits the nature of
United States interest in the base lands, makes specific reference
te Joint Resolution 93. )

In a comparatively recent book on American foreign policy,
the authors, in citine Joint Resolution 93. deseribes it as reser-
ving to the United States “the right to ‘use’ sites for military,
naval, and air boses in the Philippine Islands after July 4, 1916,
when they would have gained their freedom and would be able to
negotiate as an independent nation.”

Had it been the intention of the United States to retain the
ownership of the base lands after the recognition of independence,
that intention could and should have been clearly stated in sec-
tion 10 of the Tydings-McDuffie Law, in Joint Resolution 93,
and in the two treaties already cited. The United States would
not have left the matter to inference or interpretation. In its
Act of August 7, 1939, amending section 10 of the Tydings-Mec-
Duffie Law, there is a specific and categorical provision that the
propert)es in the P}uhppmes acquired by the United States for

or la ts “shall conti to be vested
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Sections 8 and 5 dealt with disposition of p)opertles acquired
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m fee mnple in the United States” motwithstanding the grant of
The absence of a similar provision with respect to

by the alien property custodian, and provided for i trans-
fer of agricultural lands and immediate or ultimate transfer of the
others of such properties to the Philippine government.

Section 4 authorized the President in his diseretion,
such terms as he deemed appropriate, to transfer title to the
Philippine Republic of other properties of the United States in the
Philippines not within the scope of Section 8. Section 6 provided:

“Nothing contained in this act shall be constraed as amend-
ing t'he p)ovlsmns of the Act of March 24, 1934 (48 Stat. 456), as

i naval re: and fueling stations, and
dlplomatlc or consular property, and the property of the high
commissioner to the Philippine Islands, nor as amending the pro-
visions of the jeint resolution of June 29, 1944 (Public Law 380,
Seventy-eight Congress), respecting bases for the mutual protec-
tion of the Philippine Islands and the United States.””

The only explanation of this provision appears, identically, in
the senate and house committee reports, linking section 6 to sec-
tion 4 in this fashion:

“6. The President of the United States is authorized in his
diseretion to dispose of all other properties held by the United
States government in the Philippines, other than diplomatic and
consular establishments and others covered by the independence
act, to the Philippine government.”

Apropos of the retention of property titles in the United States,
as provided in section 2 of the act, the house report said:

“Some have interpreted the Independence act of 1934 as nrovid-
ing for the relinquishment of all property titles now vested.in the
United States government to the government of the Philippines
efter July 4, 1946, the date set by law for achievement of Phil-
ippine independence. In the minds of others, this interpretation
is questioned. Yet it is the feeling of this committee that this legis-
lation is vitally necessary to clarify any doubts as to the preient
meaning of existing law.”

And in regard to the effect of section 2, both committee reports
said:

“7. Agencies of the United States government are granted
the right to retain title to properties presently owned and to ae-
quire new properties for discharge of Federal functions in the Phil-
ippines after the date of independence except in the instances of
enemy properties which are otherwise provided for.”

In one of this explanation of sections 2, 4, and 6 of the Philip-
pine Property Act does there appear to be any limitation on the
sweep of the plain words of secticn 2 under which there remains
vested in the government of the United States, or its agencies
or instrumentalities, all right, title, and interest to real and per-
sonal property now (July 2, 1946) vested in the government ov its
agencies or instrumentalities. Plainly, this reservation of title in-
cludes real and personal property of the United States used for
military and naval purposes. Even applying section 6 to section 2,
as we lieterally must in testing its meaning, section 6 effects no
change in the scope and breadth of section 2. For, the provisions
of the Independence act as amended, and the provisions of the
joint resolutions of 1944, which are named and expressly save from
amendment by section 6, are the provisions of those laws which re-
serveserve the title of the United States, beyond the independence
date, to naval reservations and fueling stations, to diplomatic and
consular property, and to base generally.

Thus, section 2 of the Philippine Property act overlaps and
has confirmed the reservation of United States title to military
and naval bases; and section € of the Property act has a limiting
significance, as the house and senate committees quite logically
indicated, only upon section 4. As a result, section 4 is authority
for the disposing of United States property in the Philippines
to the Philippine Republic, other than: 1) property acquived by
the alien property custodian (covered by section 3 and 5); 2) dip-
lomatic and consular property including property of the high com-
missioner (excluded by section 6), and, 3) property constituting
raval reservations, fueling stations, or military bases of the United
States (excluded by section 6). However, as already noted and

and on

rvation:

118

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL

]ﬂnds indicates that it was never intended to vest title to them
in the United States after July 4, 1946.

3. The attorney general, in further justification of his theory,
cites the Philippine property act of 1946, passed by the United
States congress on July 3, 1946. The avowed purpose of the 1946
law is “for the retention by the United States government or its
agencies or instrumentalities of real and personal property within
the Philippines x x x subsequent to independence.” Sections 2 to
5 of the law describe the propertics embraced in the provisions
of said law, as those held by the President of the United States,
the Alien Property Custodian, or any suech officer or agency as the
President of the United States may designate under the Trading
with the Enemy Act, as amended. Nevertheless, the Attorney Gen-
eral argues that title to the base lands remained in the United
States subsequent to independence by reason of section 2 of said law.

This argument is manifestly untenable. Not only because it
has been shown in the preceding discussion that under the Tydings-
MecDuffie Law and Joint Resolution 93 only the use or possession
of the bases has been retained by the United States, but also
because the Philippine Property Act itself, in its section 6, ex-
pressly provides that it shall not affect the disposition of the
bases held by the United States under the Tydings-McDuffie
Law and Joint Resolution 93.

4. The rest of the opinion of the Attorney General is de-
voted to a discussion of the power of the President of the United
States to deliver to the Philippine government the title to the
base lands and base properties with or without compensation

He says that there is nothing in the Bases Agreement making
provision for the conveyance of title because the agreement is con-
cerned only with the use for military purposes of the bases rather
than their ownership.

However, it should be evident from what has alveady been
stated, that the omission or failure of the Bases Agreement to
include provisions for the conveyance of title to the base lands
is due precisely to the simple reason that such title is deemed to
be in the Philippines, as the sovereign grantor of the use of the
base lands. The Philippines could not have granted the use of
‘he base lands if it were not in the first place, the owner there.
of.  Under a well known principle of the law of lease, the
United States government as the lessee or beneficiary of the use,
is estopped to deny the title of the lessor or grantor.

I have refrained from discussing the point raised by the At-
torney General regarding the adjustment of the property rights
of the United States, as contemplated in section 2(b) (1) of the
Tydings-McDuffie Law, which is paragraph (1), section 1, Axrticle
XVII of our Constitution. He says that there has as yet heen
no adjustment of the property rights of the United States in
the Philippines, and cites as evidence thereof, the note of the Am-
erican Ambassador, dated March 14, 1947, announcing that it was
“the understanding of my government x x x in signing the agrce-
ment of March 14, 1947, x x x that the question of the adjustment
of any rights and titles held by the United States x x x to real pro-
perty in any of the bases covered by the aforementioned agreement
or any naval reservations or fucling stations not so covered is
reserved and will be settled subsequently x x x.” He advances
this conclusion to synchronize with his theory that the title to
the base lands, being a United States property right, has not
been transferred to the Philippines.

It should be observed, however, that the note of the American
Ambassador reserved the right to adjust and settle the “rights end
titles of the United States to real property in any of the bases,”
but mot its title to the base lands themselves. The base lands
should not be confused with the improvements and other forms of
real property installed or constructed therein at the expense of
the United States for military and naval purposes.

As repeatedly stated, the Bases Agreement correctly assumes
that the title to the base lands had become vested in the Philip-
pines, if not upon the inauguration of the Commonweaith Gov-
ernment -in 1935, then as a direct and immediate consequence of

March 31, 1954



MR. BROWNELL'S

as is discussed more fully later, the Tydings-McDuffie act as
amended, and the joint 1esolutmn of June 29, 1944, already had
made p; i for the di i after ind d of the
sceond and third categories of property mot covered by section 4
of the Philippine Property act.

Events that have transpired since the enactment on July 3,
1646, of the Philippine Property act, add further confirmation to
th: continuance after Philippine independence of United States
title in the base properties. On July 4, 1946, the President of the
United States proclaimed the independence of the Philippines as
a separate and self-governing nation. The proclamation recites
that “in accord with and subject to the reservations provided for
in the applicable statutes of the United States” the United States
withdraws and surrenders all rights of possession, supervision,
Jurisdiction, control, or sovereignty in and over the territory and
people of the Philippines. (Proclamation No. 2695, 11 F. R. 7517,
60 Stat. 1352).

The treaty of general relations between the United States and
the Philippines, signed July 4, 1946 (effective October 22, 1946),
(TIAS No. 1568, 61 Stat. 1174) repeats in Article VI the provi-
sions of the Tydings-McDuffie act, section 2(b) (1), that the prop-
erty rights of the United States of America and the Republic of the
Philippines shall be promptly adjusted and settled by mutual agree-
ment.. The protocol attached to the treaty says expressly that
“this treaty does not attempt to regulate the details of arrange-
ments between the two governments for their mutual defense; for
the establishment, termination or regulation of the rights and du-
ties of the two countries, each with vespect to the other, in’the
settlement of claims, 2s to the ownership or control of real or
personal property,” ete. Further, “it is understood and agreed
that the conclusion and entrance into force of this treaty 1s not

One of the recitals of the preamble to the Military Bases
Agreement might have raised a difficult-to-explain ambiguity re-
garding the title were it not for the surrounding circumstances.
The clause stated that the two countries were desirous of cooperat.
ing in their common defense, “particularly through a grant to the
United States of America by the Republic of the Philippines in
the exercise of its title and sovereignty of the use, free of rent,
in furtherance of the mutual interest of both countries, of cer-
tein lands of the public domain.”

An exchange of notes between the United States and the Phil-
ippines, simultaneous with his signing of the agreement, makes
clear that this reference to Philippine title is not to all of the
lands comprising the bases and temporary installations, but is to
the parts of those lands and any additional lands that the United
States - might require in expansion or exchanges, which happen
to be undisputed Philippine public lands. The American ambas-
sador’s note of March 14, 1947, said:

“I have the honor to state, in signing the agreement of March
14, 1947, between the United States of America and the Republic
of the Philippines concerning military bases, the understanding
of my government that the question of the adjustment of any
rights and titles held by the United States pursuant to the provi-
sions of the act of congress of March 24, 1934 as aminded,
specifically section 10(b) thereof, the joint resolution of the con-
gress of June 29, 1944, and- the act of congress of July 3, 1946,
and treaties and agreements heretofore entered -into between the
United States and the Philippines, to real property in any of
the beses covered by the aforementioned agreement or any na-
val reservations or fueling stations not so covered is reserved and
will be settled subsequently in accordance with the terms of tkre
acts and joint resolution of the congress mentioned above.”

exclusive of further treaties and executive agreements p
for the specific regulation of matters broadly covered hezem.”
The treaty and protocol clearly reserved the question of United
States property titles for future settlement.

On March 14, 1947, there was signed the agreement betv»eex"
the United States and the Philippines concerning military bases
in the Philippines, which entered into force March 26, 1947.

The tenor of this fairly detailed agreement was that the Philip-
pine Republic granted to the United States the right to retam
the use as bases of some 16 bases or military or naval reservations
listed in Annex A (in general descriptive terms, not by metes
and bounds), and agreed to permit the United States, upon mo-
tice, to use some seven additional bases similarly listed in Annex
B, as the United States should determine to be required by mili-
tary necessity. It was further agreed that the United States
might expand such bases, exchange them for other bases, ac-
quire additional bases, or relinquish rights to bases, as the mili-
tary exigencies require.

The acknowled of the same date by the Philippine sec-
vetary of foreign affairs set out the United States note in full
and then said:

“T have the honor to state that, without conceding the existence
of any rights or titles to the real property herein’ referred to, my
government concurs with the understanding above set forth.’”

So that again the matter of the United States title in and to
military base land and military or naval reservations or fueling
stations was not settled directly or indirectly in the military bases
agreement, and the titles remained in the United -States subject
to future negotiation and settlement.

Nowhere in this background of conduct and transactions is
there any basis for as much as implying a. general passage of
the title of the United States to the Philippine government in and
to the properties comprising the United States military and na-
val bases in the Philippines. Even if some basis could be developed
for implying a grant, it would be of no legal consequence in the
face of the well-established principle of law concerning grants of
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the grant of independence and the total withdrawal of Amer-
ican sovereignty in the Philippines on July 4, 1946. There has,
however, been no formalization of the tvansfer in the sense that
the muniments of title to the bases if any, have not been actually
delivered to the Philippine government.

I have also refrained from discussing the fundamental question
of whether, as between the United States and the inhabitants of
the Philippines, the former, in strict legal theory, really acquired

Bases Agreement, but is irreconcilable with the traditional Am-
erican policy toward the Philippines. ~ That policy. found vivid
expression in Taft’s announcement of ‘‘the Philippines for the
Filipinos.” It was reiterated in the preamble of the Jones Law
wherein the Unitcd States Congress clarvified that the acquisition
of the Philippines was not “for territorial aggrandizement” and
that it has always been the purpose of the American people to
withdraw their sovereignty over the Islands and to recognize their

any absolute proprietary title to the Phili territory which
Spain ceded to her under the Treaty of Paris. This point was
touched upon, but not definitely resolved by Justice Holmes in
the cuse of Carifio V. Insular Government. It is tied up with
the doctrine of the insular cases to the effect that the Philippines
was an unincorporated, as distinguished from incorporated, ter-
vitory of the United States, and was foreign to the United Stat
in a “domestic sense,” althcugh a part thereof in the “internation-
al” sense.

I wounld like to venture a final observation, by way of conclu-
sion, that the belated assertion by Federal officials of the retention
of title by the United States in the base lands after the recogni-
tion of independence is mot only in plain contravention of the un-
ambiguous terms of the Treaty of General Relations and the
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ind, ds The policy culminated in the recognition of in-
dependence on July 4, 1946, an independ which is
to be full and complete.

The claim of title to the base lands, after the recognition of
independence, would make that same independence incomplete, and
impair the territorial integrity and sovereignty of our Republie.

The retention by the United States in the Philippines of the
use and possession of military and naval bases is a matter of
expedieney, dictated by the mneeds ‘of the ‘two countries for mutual
defense and protection, not to serve and foster any other inter-
est of the United States. For the attainment of that objective,
it is wholly unnecessary for the United States to have title of
ownership to or proprietary -interest in the base lands.
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land by the sovereign, that a grant of the sovereign must be
explicit and nothing passes by implication. Northern Pacific Rail-
way Co. v. Soderberg, 188 U.S. 526, 534 (1903) Great Nortliern
Railways Co. v. United States, 815 U.S. 262, 272 (1942).

Indicative of the clear understanding regarding the actual
state of facts, and possibly the law, were the express, formal con-
veyances to the Philippine Republic in 1947 and 1949, following the
execution of the Military Bases agreement, of the title of the
United States to some 30 or more military reservation or proper-
ties deemed to be in excess of United States military requive-
ments. The transfers were effected by notes from the United
States embassy at Manila and accepted by the Philippine depart-
ment of foreign affairs in reply notes. The notes referred expli-
citly to each property conveyed, and accompanying the United
States notes were lists of executive orders and Torrens certificates
of title under which the United States had claimed title to the mili-
tary reservations conveyed.

A subsidiary question has been raised regarding title to the
areas embraced in the temporary installations provided for by Arti-
cle XXI of the Military Bases agreement. Most of these properties
apparently have already been conveyed to the Philippine govern-
ment by the specific conveyances referred to above. However, the
legal adviser’s memorandum indicates that there remain two such
properties held by the United States, the Fort McKinley reserva-
tion and the Port of Manila Reservation. ;

Under Article XXI it was agreed that the United States
would retain the right to occupy temporary quarters and installa-
tions existing outside of the bases listed in Annexes A and B, for
a reasonable time not exceeding two years as might be necessary
to develop adequate facilities within the bases for the United
States armed forces. It was provided that the temporary period
might be extended hy mutual agreement, and there has been one
such extension for three years from March 26, 1949. There is
no express agreement for transferring title to these properties,
and there has been no blanket transfer of the United States title
in such temporary installations to the Philippine government. How-
ever, there have been the specific transfers of most of the pro-
perties individually, as indicated. The suggestion is offered in the
legal adviser’s memorandum that possibly the exchange of notes,
which took place concurrently with the signing of the Military
Bases agreement. purnorted to reserve only the adiustment of titles
te those properties listed as Annexes A and B bases and naval
reservations and fueling stations, thereby excluding Article XXI
temporary installations and implying an obligation to transfer
them to the Philinpine government. The history of the nego-
tiations underling the agreement and the simultaneous exchange of
notes, which is set ont in detail in the state department research
project No. 319 of February 1953 (The negotiation of the United
States-Philippines Military Bases agreement of 1947} negate this
speculation. It is quite clear that the purpose of the agreement
was to cover the use of the properties for military purposes, and
the purpose of the notes was to leave onen for future settlement
the rights and titles to real property. Thus, no fine or technical
distinction between Annexes A and B bases and any other type
of military installation was intended in reserving for the future
the issue of title.

I therefore am of the opinion that, except for such military or
naval properties as the United States has expressly and formally
conveyed to the Philippine republic, as in the exchange of notes
contained in TIAS 1963 and TIAS 2406, the United States now
has whatever title it had prior to July 4, 1946, in the land or areas
comprising the bases listed in Annexes A and B of the Military
Bases agreenment of March 14, 1947, in the naval reservations
and fueling stations not so listed in that agreement, and in the
areas covered by Article XXI of the agreement. b

Furthermore, I am of the view that there has been no adjust-
ment and settlement of the property rights of the United States
in the Philippines within the meaning of the Tydings-McDuffie
Act. The matter has been reserved for future disposition severa!
times and remains yet to be adjusted and settled.
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You have also asked whether, under our agreements with the
Philippines and our statutes, the United States is obligated to trans-
fer presently without compensation any of the titles to Annexes A
and B bases of the 1947 agreement, to naval reservations and fueling
stations, and to Article XXI (1947 Agreement) temporary installa-
tions; and if there is mo obligation, whether the President of the
United States is authorized by law to make such a transfer.

I believe there is little question ,from the history already re-
viewed, that the congress which enacted the Tydings-McDuffie Act
in 1934 intended that title to, and any further operation of, the mili-
tary reservations of the United States in the Philippines, except
naval reservations and fueling stations, should pass to the new
Philippine Republic upon its establishment in 1946. Conversely,
as to naval reservations and fueling stations, it was contemplated
hat title in the United States, as well as operation by the United
States, would be continued for at least two years; and thereafter,
pending the conclusion of negotiations begun in that period by
the President, title and operation would remain with the United
States for such time as would be agreed upon by the adjustment
and settlement between the President of the United States ana
the government of the Philippines. Nothing in the statute preclud-
ed the making of an arrangement for either permanent retention
or complete transfer of the naval properties by the United States,
or for some intermediate solution. iy

As to the naval reservations and fueling stations, there has
been no change in the law or their status as United States property.
Subsequent acts and agreements of the United States and the Phil-
ippines have reserved the issue for the future. The President of
the United States continues to be authorized to make the finas
settlement with the Philippine Republic which will decide for how
long and upon what conditions the naval reservations and fueling
stations, veserved under the Tydings-McDuffie Act, will remain the
property of the United States or be transferred to the Philippine
Republie. The President is under no obligation to give these
properties to the Philippine government, or to transfer them
for compensation. He is vested witk. complete discretion in the
matter.

If he concludes that it is in the interest of the United States to
convey to the Philippine government title to any of the naval re-
servations and fueling stations in the islands, with or without

i he enjoys complete authority to make the conveyance
under section 10 (b) of the Tydings-McDuffie Act, 48 Stat. 462.
His authority extends to “the adjustment and settlement of all
Guestions relating to the naval reservations and fucling stations.”
The word “settlement” in its general sense signifies ‘‘the act of
conferring anything in a formal and permanent manner; a bes-
towing or granting under legal sanction.” (80 C.J.S. 125). Since
a settlement of the questions under section 10(b) might well in-
clude relinquishment of titles, the President has obviously been
authorized to make any necessary conveyances. The reference
in section 10(b) to his entering into negotiations with the Phil-
ippine government in no wise detracts from this full authority
The language is significant only in the matter of time (.e., he is
to commence negotiations within two years after independence)
since as this government’s organ in foreign affairs the President is
authorized by the Constitution to negotiate on any appropriate
subject for negotiation with a foreign government.

Moreover, as noted at a later point in this opinicn, I am of the
view that the authority conferred upon the President by the joint
resolution of June 29, 1944 tends to confirm, if not augment, his
discretionary authority te agree with the Philippine government
and convey to it any of the naval reservations and fueling stations
in the Philippines.

As to the military reservations of the Tydings-McDuffie act,
there has been a complete change in the law and status as provided
for in 1984. In place of their passage to the Philippines upon
the achievment of independence the President has been authorized
under the joint resolution of June 29, 1944, after negotiation
with the President of the Philippine Commonwealth or the Pres-
ident of Philippine Republic, to withhold and to retain as bases,

(Continue on page 159)
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SUPREME COURT DECISION

I
Natividad I. Vda. De Roxas, Pelitioner-Appellant, vs. Marin Roxas,
¢t al., Oppositors-Appellees, G. R. No. L-2396, December 11, 1950.

1. WILLS; PROBATE; TESTIMONY OF ATTESTING WIT-
NESSES, WHEN ENTITLED TO FULL CREDIT. — Where
the reputation for probity of the three attesting witnesses
has not been impeached their testimony confirmatory of

the due execution of /the will, deserves full credit.

2. ID.; ID.; ID.; RELATIVES OF TESTATOR OR HEIR NOT
DISQUALIFIED TO ACT AS ATTESTING WITNESSES. —-

The law does not bar relatives either of the testator or
of the heirs or legatees from acting as attesting witnesses
to the will. v

8. ID.; ID.; ID.; “FINDINGS OF TRIAL COURT ENTITLED

TO GREAT WEIGHT; EXCEPTION. — Ordinarily, the find-
ings of fact of a trial court, because of the benefit of having
seen and heard the witnesses, are entitled to great weight.
But it is not so, where the court relied on the conclusion
of experts and failed to analyze the oral evidence.

4. ID.; ID.; ID.; POOR STATIONARY, LACK CF COPY, OR
NON-INTERVENTION OF LAWYER OR NOTARY, DOLS
NOT AFFECT VALIDITY OF WILL. — The validity of a

will is not affected by the fact that it is written on poor
stationary, that it was not prepared by a lawyer or notary
public, or that no copies were made.

5. ID.; ID.; ID.; TESTIMONY OF ATTESTING WITNESSES
TO PREVAIL OVER EXPERT OPINIONS. — The positive

testimony of three attesting witnesses in favor of the due
execution of the will ought to prevail over expert opinions
which cannot be mathematically precise but which, on the
contrary, are subject to inherent infirmities. The law,
in requiring the p)oductmn of all the attesting witnesses
present in the Phili T i the almost
conclusive weight of their testimony.

6. ID.; ID.; ID.; WILL NEED NOT BE WRITTEN IN O’\'E
CONTINUOUS ACT. — The law does not require that the will

should be written in one continuous act.

7. ID.; ID.; ID.; REVOCATION; CRUMPLING OF WILL BY
TESTATOR WITHOUT INTENTION TO REVOKE. — The

fact that the testator erumpled the will does not amount to
revocation unles it is shown that the crumpling was caused
with intention to revoke.
Claro M. Recto and Francisco A. Rodrigo for appellant.
Vicente J. Francisco, Estanislao A. Fernandez, Jr., and Gerardo
M., Alfonso for appellees.
DECISION

PARAS, J.: .

Pablo Roxas died in the Municipality of Bulacan, province of
Bulacan, on July 14, 1946. On August 10, 1946, Natividad Icasiano
(the widow) filed in the Court of First Instance of Bulacan a pe-
tion for the probate of a will alleged to have been left by Pablo
Roxas, devising all his properties to Natividad Icasiano and Rey-
naldo Roxas (an adulterous son). The will is typewritten and word-
ed in Tagalog and the attesting witnesses are Jacinto Y. Enriquez,
Fortunato R. Gupit and Martin Rodrigo. The will is dated, in
the body, January 1, 1945. No date is given in the attestation
clause.

An opposition was filed by Maria Roxas and Pedro Roxas
(sister and brother of Pablo Roxas) on the ground that the al-
leged will was not executed and attested as required by law,
and that, in any event, it was intended as a mere formal re-
quest which was, however, subsequently revoked as shown by the
fact that it was crumpled with intent to destroy. Upon motion
for bill of particulars filed by the petitioner Natividad Icasiano),
the oppositors (Maria and Pedro Roxas) alleged that the will
is vitiated by the following formal defects: ‘““(a) The alleged
last will and testament was not attested and subscribed by three
or more credible witnesses in the presence of the testator and
of each other; (b) The testator and the instrumental witnesses
did not sign the only page of the will on the left margin, nor
was the page numbered in letters on the upper part of the sheet;
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(¢) The attestation clause does not state that the alleged wit-
nesses thereto witnessed and signed the will in the presence of
of the testator and of each other.”

After trial, the Court of First Instance of Bulacan rendered
a decision disallowing the probate of the will. The lower court
concluded that the body of the will was typewritten and signed
by the testator on a date or occasion different from and an-
terior to the date or occasion when the attestation clause was
typewritten and signed by the attesting witnesses, with the result that
the will was not signed by the testator in the presence of the
witnesses, and by the latter in the presence of the testator and
of each other, as required in section 618 of Act No. 190 as
amended by Act No. 2645. This conclusion was motivated by
the following circumstances enumerated in the decision: “(a) That
the paper on which the alleged will, Exhibit D, is written has
been folded and crumpled; (b) That the body of the will was
typewritten before the signature of Pablo M. Roxas had been
affixed thereon and before it had been folded and crumpled; (¢) That
after it had been folded and crumpled, it was smoothened in or-
der to eliminate or minimize as much as possible the folds and
wrinkles, preparatory, to the writing of the attestation clause
cn the same typewriter which was used in typewriting the body
of the will; (d) That the attestation clause was typewritten,
single space, and a deliberate effort was exerted to make it ap-
pear that it was written by the testator himself at the same
time with the body thereof, but the tell-tale letter ‘o’ and the
inequality of the marginal alignments of both the body and the
attestation clause have betrayed the vain effort; (e) That the
texture and fiber of the paper on the portion on which the sig-
nature of the attesting witnesses were affixed had been dis-
turbed and affected by the interval of time and the ordinary
exposure of the paper to the atmosphere between the signing of
the testator and the attesting witnesses, which fact is revealed
by the greater penetrations of the ink in the signature of Pablo
M. Roxas; (f) That had the testator and the attesting wit-
nesses signed on the same occasion, the probability was that
cne or two fountain pens only should have been used instead
of three as testified to unanimously by the expert witnesses
both for the proponent and the oppositors.”

The petitioner has appealed. Her counsel insist that the
testimony, unanimous in all essential points, of the three attest-
ing witnesses should be given controlling weight. Counsel for
oppositors, upon the other hand, argue that the testimony of
Maria Roxas, in conjunction with the opinions of experts, should
prevail,

The testimony of Fortunato Gupit, Jacinto Y. Enriquez and
Martin Rodrigo (the attesting witnesses) tends tc show that
they were in the house of Rosario Vda. de Tcasianc (mother-in-
law of Gupit) in barrio Sta. Ana, municipality of Bulacan, prov-
ince of Bulacan, on January 1, 1945. Between two and three
in the afternoon Pablo Roxas showed up and, approaching Gu-
pit who was then reading a book, asked him to go to the Sala
with Roxas. -The latter got from his hip pocket a folded sheet
of paper (the will here in guestion) and asked Gupit to read it.
In the meantime Roxas proceeded to the dining hall where a
mahjong game was being played and called Enriquez and Ro-
drigo who thereupon went to the Sala and were asked to read
the will previously handed to Gupit. Roxas then made the re-
quest for the three to act as witnesses. Roxas, using his foun-
tain pen, signed it in the presence of Gupit, Enriquez and Ro-
drigo.  Gupit then signed with his own pen and, noticing that
ink in his signature was spreading, asked for a blotter. Roxas
got a blotter from a nearby writing desk and gave it to Gupit
who accordingly applied it. Enriquez and Rodrigo, using the
ren of Gupit, took their turns in signing the will, the blotter
being also applied.  Thereafter, Roxas refolded the document
and inserted the same in his hip pocket.

Fortunato A. Gupit is a certified public accountant. He is
the dean of the College of Business Administration and the comp-
troller of the Arellano University. Jacinto Y. Enriquez comes
fiom a distinguished family in Bulacan and is a student in the
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University of Santo Tomas. Martin Rodrigo is a businessman
and landowner. Gupit is the husband of a half-sister of the
petitioner;  Enriquez is a second cousin of petitioner; and Ro-
drigo is the husband of a deceased cousin of petitioner.

The testimony of oppositor Maria Roxas tends to show that
on December 30, 1944, Pablo Roxas asked from her a sheet of
typewriting paper. At about one in the afternoen of January
1, 1945, Pablo Roxas came back to the house of Maria and
showed the will in question signed by Pablo, clean and un-
crampled, and without any attestation clause. Pablo executed
the will as it was shown to Maria, as a mere ruse to make the
petitioner continue loving Reynaldo Roxas (adulterous son of
Pablo Roxas).

Two handwriting experts (Amadeo M. Cabe and Jose C. Es-
pinosa) were pl d by the i and their testi tends
to support the theory that the body of the will up to the sig-
nature of Pablo Roxas was typewritten on a plain sheet of paper;
that the sheet was subsequently removed from the typewriter
and signed by the testator; that the sheet, after being crumpled
and folded, was reinserted in the typewriter for the insertion of
the attestation clause which was signed afterwards by the three
attesting witnesses. This expert opinion is based more or less
on the circumstances enumerated in the appealed decision here-
inbefore quoted, except that while the trial court observed that
there are ‘‘greater penetrations of the ink in the signature of
Psblo M. Roxas,” Espinosa and Cabe found that there is greater
diffusion of ink in the signatures of the attesting witnesses.

After a careful examination of the record in the light of
contentions of the parties, we have no hesitancy in holding that
the appealed decision is erroncous. This case is one in which
the will is couched in a language known and spoken by the tes-
tator and the signature of the testator and the signatures of
the three attesting witnesses are admittedly genuine. Such be-
ing the situation, the question that arises, far from requiring
the intervention of experts, is one merely of credibility of wit-
nesses. In our opinion, the testimony of the three attesting wit-
nesses — confirmatory of the due execution of the will — de-
serves full credit, not only because of their qualifications (herein-
before pointed out)' but because their reputation for probity has
ot been impeached. The fact that they may have come rela-
tionship with the petitioner is not sufficient to warrant the be-
lief that they did not tell the truth. The law, in the first place,
does not bar relatives either of the testator or of the heirs or
legatees from acting as witnesses. In the second place, in the
normal course of things and to be sure that the witnesses would
not let the beneficiaries down, the testator may be inclined to
employ, as attesting witnesses, relatives of such beneficiaries, if
not wholly disinterested persons. In the third place, under the
will, Reynaldo Roxas (adulterous son of Pablo Roxas) is named
a legatee on equal footing with the petitioner, and the attest-
ing witnesses are not related whatsoever with him. In the
fourth place, whereas the three attesting witnesses have no di-
rect interest in the subject matter of the will, oppositor Maria
Roxas, like the other oppositor Pedro Roxas, is an intestate heir
of Pablo Roxas and, therefore, naturally interested in having the
probate of said will disallowed.

Ordinarily, the findings of fact of a trial court, because of
benefit of having seen and heard the witnesses, are entitled to
great weight. But, in this case, the lower court relied on the
conclusions of experts, and this is obvious from (1) its recital
of the circumstances that led it to believe that the will was not
executed in accordance with law, and (2) its failure to analyze
the oral evidence.

It is alleged that the testator had another adulterous child
(Aida), sister of Reynaldo, and it is unnatural that he would
have failed to provide for said child, if not for his brother and
sister (herein oppositors) in the will, if the testator really in-
tended to dispose of his properties under said will. This is again
a mere conjecture which should not prevail over the testimony of
the attesting witnesses, not to mention the fact that there is no-
thing in the record to show conclusively that the testator ever
admitted that Aida is another adulterous child, coupled with
the circumstance that the latter did not live with the testator.
As to the omission of the herein oppositors, there might have
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been a reason known only to the testator why they should be
excluded, or why they need no participation.

That the will in question was written on poor kind of sta-
tionery, or that it was not prepared by a lawyer or mnotary pub-
lic, or that no copies were made, is of no moment. It should
be borne in mind that the will was executed in January, 1945,
when everything was practically in confusion due tc the impend-
ing battles for the liberation of the Philippines, and when paper
supply was almost exhausted. Aside from the fact that a will
need not be prepared by or acknowledged before a motary pub-
lie, it is not improbable that testatoy, before the date of the will
in question, had prepared or seen previeus wills and therefore
was familiar with its wording aund legal formalities, and that
due to the abnormal time he undertook to prepare said will
without the aid of a lawyer or nctary public and without making
copies thereof. Bl

We do not venture to impute bias 'to.%he expert introduced
during the trial, but we hasten to state thut-the positive testi-
mony of the three attesting witnesses ouglit to prevail over the
expert opinions which cannot be mathematically precise but which,
on the contrary, are “subject to inherent infirmities.” In the
instant case, it is significant that while Amadeo M. Cabe ob-
served that four different fountain pens were used in signing
the will, Jose C. Espinosa was unable tc determine whether the
same pen was used for all the signatures. Upon the other hand,
Prof. H. Otley Beyer believes that ome pen was used for the
testator’s signature, and another pen for the signatures of the
witnesses.

Too much emphasis and effort, through experts Cabe and
Espinosa, had been placed on the supposition that after the
body of the will had been typewritten, the sheet was removed
from the machine and, after having been folded and crumpled,
it was replaced in the typewriter for the insertion of the at-
testation clause. The law does not require that the will should
be written in one continuous act; and the supposition does not
necessarily, much less conclusively, prove that the signing was
not done on one occasion. For the difference in the ink dif-
fusions and penetrations hetween the signatures of the testator
and those of the three attesting witnesses may not be due solely
to the folding and crumpling of the sheet on which the will is
written, but on such other factors, as class of ink, class of pens,
habit of writing, condition of paper, and the use of blotter. Specu-
lations on these matters should give way to the positive decla-
rations of the attesting witnesses. The law impliedly recognizes
the almost conclusive weight of the testimeny of attesting wit-
nesses when it provides that “if the will is contested, all the
subscribing witnesses present in the Philippines and not insane,
must be produced and examined, and the death, ahsence, or in-
sanity of any of them must be satisfactorily shown to the court.”
(Section 11, Rule 77, Rules of Court.)

The contention made by the appellees in their opposition that
the will was revoked by the testator when he crumpled the same,
requires no serious consideration, in view of their failure to show
that the crumpling was caused with the intention to revoke. Ap-
pellees’ reference to other formal defects of the will (other than
that hercinbefore dispose of) also needs no inquiry, because it is
not pressed herein. E

Wherefore, the appealed judgment is reversed and the will
in question is hereby declared probated. So order, with costs
against the appellees.

Feriu, Bengzon, Tuazon, Jugo and Bautista Angelo,

Mr. Chief Justice Moran, Justices Pablo and Reyes concur with
the separate dissenting opinion of Mr. Justice Montemayor.

Mr. Justice Padilla took no part.

MONTEMAYOR, J., Dissenting:

It is a matter of deep regret to me that I have to disagree
with my colleagues who signed the learned opinion penned by
Mr. Justice Paras. But fully convinced of the correctness of
the findings of the trial court based on the evidence on record.
I am constrained to dissent and to give my reasons for deing so.

J.J.; concur.

To the statement of facts made in the majority opinion, I
would like to add other undisputed facts which I believe are
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not only pertinent but may also shed additional light and throw
decisive weight in the correct determination of this case. It is a
fact testified to not only by Maria Roxas for the oppositors but
partly and substantially corroborazted by Natividad Icasiano, the
pefitioner and her witness, Remedins Logrofio, that besides Rey-
naldo Roxas, the deceased Pablo Roxas had another illegitimate
child by his mistress Remedios Logrofio, a daughter named Aida,
a few years ycunger than Reynaldo, who remained in the cus-
tody of her mother. As to Reynaldo, when a littie over a year
old he was taken to the marital home of Pablo Roxas and his
wife Natividad Icasiano in the yeur 1940, to live with them be-
cause they had no children of their own. Pablo not only failed
to tell his wife that Regnaldo was his own son, fruit of adult-
erous relations with Re et.iios, but he falsely told his wife that
the boy whese mosh_e.r« as already dead came from an orphan-
age. According to Natlyidad it was only after Pablo’s death that
she found out Reynald®’s true paternity.

There are several theories, more or less plausible as to the In-
tervention of Pablo Roxas in the preparation of the supposed will,
Exh. “D”, and what he intended by it. One of them is that Pablo
Roxas did not design Exh. “D” as his will According to Maria
Xoxas, her brother Pablo told her on Jan. 1, 1945, when he showed
her Exh. “D” with his signature on it but without the attestation
clause nor the signatures of attesting witnesses, thot he did not
intend said document as his last will but only to counteract his
wife’s natural reaction and to calm and assuage her inevitabie
feeling of righteous anger and indignation when after his death,
she came as she was bound to know that Reynaldo was his own
son by his mistress Remedios; because if she werc led to be-
lieve by the document that all his property would go to her and
to Reynaldo in equal portions, his supposed act of liberality might
at least temporarily, induce her to overlook and forgive his infi-
delity and prevent her from losing her affection for the boy and
sending him away from her.

At first blush, this theory might appear to be far-fetched and
unreasonable because husbands do not usually commit such ae¢ts
of deception on their wives and widows and expect to get away
with it. But, let s not forget that Pablo Roxas was not only
capable of but actually succeeded in deceiving his trusting and
credulous wife for about six years, from 1940 until 1946 when he
died, leading her to believe that the child Reynaldo whom he had
brought into their home, was a total stranger and an orphan
whom he had gotten from a charitable institution out of pity
and to enliven their childless home. Not only this but during
those six years of deception, far from being a repentant sinner,
he. continued his illicit and extramarital relations which resulted
in the subsequent birth of another illegitimate child, Aida.

Moreover, it is rather difficult to believe that Pablo Roxas
should deliberately execute a will like Exh. “D” wherein he en-
tirely forgot his other younger child Aida, not giving her even
a centavo from his considerable estate. The same thing may
be said of his mistress, Remedios Logrofio. That he loved Re-
medios or at least liked her, there could be no doubt. She was
much younger than his wife. Not a few marital troubles, even
tragedies have their origin in elderly husbands tiring of their
elderly wives and feeling attracted to and falling for younger
women. At least Pablo had sufficient attachment to and felt
enough affection for Remedios so as to forget his marital vows
and cohabit with her for years and let her be the mother of his
two children the illegitimate.

It should be borne in mind that Pablo Roxas was quite a wealthy
man. Considering the products of his properties alone during his
long married life with Natividad, there must be considerable con.
jugal property which he left upon his death. Therefore he must
have known that out of the partnership property alone, Natividad
would be well provided for in her widowhood; and yet under
Exh. “D” he would be giving her one-half (1/2) of all his ex-
clusive properties, the other half to one of his two children, and
absolutely nothing to his other younger child, to their mother,
and to his only brother and sister, the oppositors herein.

Ordinarily, legacies are made to those who enjoy the affec-
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ion of the testator and who in his opinion need the bequest.
Pablo Roxas had no legitimate children of his own and sc could
do with his estate as he wished, unhampered by legitimes which
may be claimed by forced heirs. It would have been more na-
tural for him to have bequeathed his estate or a part of it not
only to Reynaldo but also to his daughter Aida and to their
mother Remedios Logrofio. It would have equally been more
natural for him to have remembered his brother and sister Ma-
ria and Pedro, especially since the bulk of his exclusive prop-
erlies was a donation from their common uncle Alejandro Ro-
xas. But as it is, under the supposed will, he forgot and ig-
nored them all and heaped all his bounty and all his liberality
on only one child of his and on his wife who apparently was in
no need of such bounty.

Again, when a person wants to make a will involving a con-
siderable and valuable estate as is involved in the present case
(worth much more than fifty thousand pesos), to be sure that
the instrument is validly prepared in order to insure its probate.
he would avail himself of the services of a lawyer, at least a
notary public, presumed to be versed in such legal matters. The
preparation of a will requires special and accurate legal know-
ledge so as to comply with the various imperative requirements
of the law. How often have even lawyers themselves over-
looked a small detail required by law, resulting in the rejection
of the parties of wills by the courts. Pablo Roxas was by no
means an ignorant man. He had been Mayor of his town for two
terms. He was also a dentist. He must have realized that a lay-
man should not recklessly and blithely prepare 2 will and ex-
pect it to conform with all the requirements of the law and
pass the scrutiny of the courts. So, it is to be reasonably ex-
pected that if he really wanted to execute a will, he would have
had it prepared by a lawyer or a notary public. = Besides, real-
izing that it was an important document, he would have had
copies of it made and kept in different places so that if the
original by accident or force majeure was lost or destroyed, his
wishes about the disposition of his property after his death
would not be frustrated. But as it is, the parties are agreed that
Pablo Roxas himself prepared and typed the body of Exh “D”,
without the benefit of legal advice and without making copies,
and afterwards allowed it to be folded, not once but several
times, and otherwise crumpled.

The foregoing considerations are in support of the theory
that Pablo Roxas did not intend to make a will. A corollary theory
is that after signing the body of Exh. “D”, and without the
\attestation clause, he gave it to his wife Natividad. After his
death, Natividad and here relatives believing that Pablo really
intended Exh. “D” as his will, but finding it to be incomplete
proceeded to add the attestation clause, and the attesting wit-
nesses being convinced that the signature of Pablo Roxas on it
was genuine and to carry out what. they thought to be the
wishes and will of the deceased, in good faith signed the at-
testation clause, believing that by so doing they were merely
certifying that the signature was that of Pablo Roxas. Tt is of
course unnecessary to state that under this theory, Exh. “D”
may not be allowed probate.

The theory entertained "and contended for by the petitioner
is that Pablo Roxas really intended to make a will That
he prepared and typewrote the body of Exh. “D”, is not dis-
puted. But it is a fact equally undisputed that as Exh. “D”
now appears, it was made irregularly and in violation of all
rules of uniformity, symmetry and continuity. The body of the
instrument is typewritten double spaced, and with the signa-
ture of Pablo Roxas, it fairly occupies the middle of the page
or paper, considering the space or margin left above and below.
Symmetry was observed. Then the attestation clause was added,
not with the same double spacing but in single space, thereby
destroying uniformity in spacing. Furthermore, the clause is
crowded into the remaining space below, and despite the single
spacing to save room it almost reaches the bottom of the page,
hardly leaving enough space for the signatyres of the witnesses.
Symmetry is thus sacrificed. =~ What is more, and this is im.
portant, the vertical and horizontal alignment of the left mar-
gin and the lines of the attestation clause do not coincide with
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those of the body of Exh. “D”. Moreover, the types of the
letters in the attestation clause are lighter than those in the
body of the instrument, indicating a different hand with a lighter
touch on the keys. In addition, we notice and find that some
letter on the body of the instrument are blurred, especially let-
ter “o,” whereas the same letters in the attestation clause are
clear, showing that the attestation clause was typewritten after
the types of the machine had been cleaned and brushed of ac-
cummulated dirt.  All this leads to the logical conclusion and
the finding that after the body of Exh. “D” was typewritten,
it was removed from the typewriter; that later, perhaps much
later the types of the machine were cleaned and brushed and
the same paper, Exh. “D”, was re-inserted and the attestation
clause typewritten by ancther hand, not Pablo Roxas who type-
wrote the body. Furthermore, and this is equally important,
while the crevices and folds in the paper on the body of Exh.
“D” bear and show the ink of the letters typed on them, indi-
cative of the body having been typed when the paper was still
smooth, unfolded and uncrumpled, on the other hand the ink
in some letters in the attestation clause, especially the letter
“a” in the word “sa”, as more graphically demonstrated in the
photographic enlargement, did not penetrate and reach the crev-
ices and folds in the proper caused by the folding or the crumpling,
equally indicating that the attestation clause was typed after
the paper had been folded and crumpled, perhaps long after the
typing of the body of Exh. “D”.

Then, we come to the more important detail.  The ink
lines in the signature of Pablo Roxas are clear and distinct
and well-defined even when those ink lines meet the folds or
crumplings or breaks in the paper. On the other hand, in the
signatures of the attesting witnesses, where the ink lines meet
those same vertical folds, breaks and crumplings, said ink lines
have spread out and become not well defined because of the dif-
fusion of the ink. This is revealed by the photographic enlarge-
ment and even to the naked eye. All this goes toc show accord-
ing not only to the expert testimony but also our own every
day experience and observation that when Pablo Roxas signed
Exh. “D”, it was 'still unfolded and uncrumpled, and the sur-
face and texture of the paper still smooth, undisturbed and un-
broken, while at the time that the attesting witnesses affixed
their signatures, the paper had already been folded and crumpled
as shown by the diffusion of the ink which had gone in and
crept and spread out into the crevices and breaks in the paper

Prof. Beyer who was presented as expert witness by the
petitioner admitted the possibility that judeing from the lighter
impression or type of the letters of the attestation clause, said
clause may have been typewritten by a hand other than the one
which typewrote the body. Attemnting to explain the diffusions
of the ink on thé ink lines on the signatures of the attesting
witnesses, he stated that they may be due to the class or variety
of ink used in the signatures, or to a difference in the texture
of the paper itself or the manner in which the sirnatures are
affixed, some writing with a heavy hand, others with a lighter
hand, and whether or not a blotier was used.

Chemical Engineer Espinosa, an expert introduced by the
oppositors, on the basis of his expert training and knowledge of
inks, acquired when he was employed in the Bureau of Science
and placed in charge of the purchase of inks by the Government,
categorically and without contradiction assured the court that
the ink used in the signature of Pablo Roxas and in those of
the attesting witnesses was of the same class or kind, namely,
iron nuteall. So, the possibility of a difference in the ink used
may well be ruled out. As to the other possibilities, assuming
for a moment that all the three attesting witnesses signed with
a heavy hand and on three attesting witnesses signed with a
heavy hand and on a portion of Exh. “D” which happened to
be porous, and used a blotter, still it is not expleined why the
diffusions of the ink on the ink lines of their signatures was
not general and all over, but occur only when said ink lines meet
the fold, breaks and crumplings in the paper.
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From the foregoing, and in the assumption that Pablo Roxas
really intended to make a will, we may gather the following in-
ferences which to my mind are reasonable and lcgical. Pablo
Roxas who, di to di ed id owned an Under-
wood typewriter and must have been quite familiay with, if not
adept, in typing ordinary documents but lacking the legal know-
ledge and trzining required for preparing a will, and ignoring
the necessity of attesting witnesses, most likely typewrote the body of
Exh. “D” from a rough draft he had prepared, and then signed it.
As already stated, the body standing- alone, with the signature,
occupies the middle of the page, and perfectly complies with
the rule of symmetry and uniformity in spacing and conforms
with the good taste of a good typist. * He folded the document
and kept it or else gave it to his wife Natividad to keep. After-
wards, perhaps long afterwards, he learnédd or was informed that
the will was incomplete because nf the absence of an attestation
clause and the signatures of attesting witnesses. He then had
the attestation clause typewritten by someone who knew the
phraseology of such a clause, by re-inserting in the typewriter
the paper, Exh. “D”, but after it had been folded and more or
less crumpled. Then, he proceeded to locate the three attesting
witnesses, teld them that he had executed a will and wanted
them to attest to it. These witnesses either being familiar with
his signature or being assured by him that the signature above
the typewritten name “Pablo Roxas” was his, readily signed the
attestation clause either together on the same occasion or singly
on different occasions as he found them. On the basis of our
every day observation and experience, this signing by witnesses
of clause and certificates attesting to the signature of a person
signing the body of a document, without actually seeing him
sign, is nothing strange or unusual. Not infrequently, we see
a deed of sale or mortgage prepared by or on hehalf of the
parties, signed by them and later taken to a notary public for
acknowledgment, and the notary public more often than not, upon
being assured that the document expresses the wishes and true
intent of the parties, makes out and signs his certificate to the
effect that the parties or at least the party conveying the land
or assuming the encumbrance was known to him and had appeared
before him, signed and executed the document and had given
the assurance that the conveyance or the assumpticn of the ob-
ligation was his free act and deed, when as a matter of fact,
said party may never have appeared before the said notary, may
not be krown to him personally. much less, had given the as-
surance already mentioned. How often judicial officers and of-
ficials authorized to administer oaths have placed on affidavits
their certificates to the effect that the affiants had been sworn
and afterwards signed the affidavit in his (official’s) presence,
when in fact the affiant had never taken the oath, and the of-
fidavit had been prepared and signed somewhere else and all
the intervention of the official was to ask the affiant if the
signature on the affidavit was his, and the contents are true
and made voluntarily and without the use of force.

The signing of the attestation clause by the three attesting
witnesses in this case may have been done following this quite
usual and ordinary practice and all in good faith. TUnder this
theory, it is quite clear that Exh. “D” was not duly attested
to under the law which expressly requires that the testator sign
in the presence of the attesting witnesses and that said wit-
nesses sign in the presence of the testator and in the presence of
each other.

But there is even reason to believe that under the last afore-
mentioned theory the attesting witnesses were not together on
the same occasion and could not have signed in the presence of
ihe testator and of each other. Assuming that Pablo Roxas had
sclected the three attesting witnesses to sign the attestation clause,
it is hard to believe that all said witnesses could have been found
Ly him in the same house and the same minute without any
previous concert or arrangement. Pablo Roxas was then living
in the barrio of Taliptip while the house wlhere he was supposed
to have found them was in a different barrio. ~ All the three
attesting witnesses assured the court that they did not know that
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Pablo Roxas had executed a will and that they were going to
be witnesses thereto. His finding them there in that house and
their being all together at the same time was accordmg to them,
a pure coincidence, and to me, too much of a i

ment are not only id but they a valu-
able factor which if correctly considered and evaluated in the
light of surrounding circumstances, can greatly help the court
in dete ining whether said document is genuine or forged. Ani-

merit belief. Ordinarily, when a testator executes a will he no-
tiffes his witnesses long in advance to insure attendance and
then sends for them to come to his house. The execution of
such a document is a solemn occasion, done only once in a life-
time. A testator does not usually go out, carrying his will,
hunting for witnesses. But here, without any previous notifi-
cation or agreement, Pablo leaves his barrio, goes to the barrio
of Sta. Ana and there in_one house, strangely enough, finds
his three selected witnesses all ready for the signing. And
all this in spite of the fact as shown by the evidence for the
oppositors that in his own barrio of Taliptip Pablo had other
friends of his own confidence, and naturally that of his family,
who could well have been utilized as attesting witnesses so as to
save him the trouble and the hazard of making a trip of. 4-1/2
kilometers to Sta. Ana, in a horsedrawn vehicle, with a stream
spanned by a destroyed bridge to negotiate. It is a story that
requires considerable effort to believe.

There is another detail which tho apparently of little im-
port, nevertheless may merit consideration. While the body of
the document, Exh. “D”, bears the date — January 1, 1945,
when Pablo Roxas signed it, the attestation clause has no date,
neither does it make reference to the date appearing on .the
body. Almost invariably, an attestation clause is made to bear
a date, the same day that appears on the body of the will when
the testator signed it, or else the clause makes reference to said
date on the body of the will. At least that is the standard form
as may be gathered from books on the subject such as Jones
Legal Forms Annotated, ninth ed., pp. 2069-2071, Fisher’s Legal
and Business Forms, 1948 ed. pp. 436, 437, including Moderan
Philippine T.egal Forms, Vol. II, pp. 1146-1147, by Tafada and
Rodrigo, the latter being one of the attorneys for the petitioner-
appellant.  But why the absence of a date on the attestation
clause on Exh. “D", or at least a reference to the date on the
body? Was it a mere oversight, or was it because the witnesses
actually signed on a day later than January 1, 1945, when Pablo
Roxas signed the will, and said witnesses could not in conscience
state on the attestation clause that they all signed it on January
1, 19457

The majority opinion asserts that the best evidence as to the
due execution of a will is the testimony of the attesting witnesses,
and that their testimony on this point is practically conclusive.
This may be true when there is no opposition to the probate of the
will. “But when the probate is opposed, evidence in the form of
oral testimony to disprove the alleged due execution of the will,
is of course admissible and the testimony of witnesses for the op-
position is just as competent, and if worthy and credible can
match, even outweigh that of the attesting witnesses. Otherwise,
if with the testimony of attesting witnesses to a will we are go-
ing to disregard and ignore any .other evidence about the due
execution of the instrument, then we would be opening wide the
door to the commission of fraud or forgery in the execution and

mated witnesses may forget or may exaggerate or understate
what they know, saw or heard or what they did. They may be
biased and depart from the truth or state halftruths to mislead
the court in order to favor one party and preJuchce another. Not
so with silent wit such as sur and
facts found on the paper or object itself. Such mute witnesses
play no favorites. If correctly understood and interpreted, they
show and reveal the whole truth, in all its nakedness, hiding
nothing, forgetting nothing, and without prejudice or mental re-
servation.

The majority opinion says that the determination of this case
in great measure hinges upon the credibility of the witnesses. To
this, I heartily agree. The trouble is that for no valid reason
that I can see, the majority completely ignored the findings of
the trial judge, the same official who presided over all the hear-
ings and saw all the witnesses testify and observed their de-
meanor in court and was in a better position to assess the credit
which each witness merits and the weight to be given his testi-
mony; the same judicial- officer who questioned and cross-exam-
ined the witnesses including the experts and even looked in the
stereoscopic microscope to carefully observe the enlargements and
magnifications of the portions of Exh. “D”, made by experts for
the opposition. That party even made an offer to bring the ster-
eoscopic microscope to this Court so that the members of this
Tribunal through personal observation and with the aid of scienti-
fic facilities could see for th the folds, cr i types,
signatures and ink lines on Exh. “D”, which offer, unhappily
had not been accepted. It seems that it was the oppositors who
have offered all the opportunities and mechanical facilities to the
trial court and to this Tribunal with a view to a correct deter-
mination of how and when the typing and signing of the body and
the attestation clause of Exh. “D” was done.

I am afraid that the majority had unwittingly been unduly
impressed by the testimony of the three attesting witnesses be-
cauce of their qualifications. Says the majority opinion on this point:

“In our opinion, the of the three wit-
nesses — confirmatory of the due execution of the will — de-
serves full credit, not only because of their qualifications (here-
inbefore pointed out) but because their reputation for probity has
not been impeached.”

Said qualifications are listed and described in detail in the ma-
jority opinion which I quote:

“Fortunato A. Gupit is a certified public accountant. He
is the dean of the College of Business Administration and the
comptroller of the Arellano University, Jacinto Y. Enriquez
comes from a distinguished family in Bulacan and is a student
in the University of Santo Tomas. Martin Rodrigo is a business-
man and landowner.  Gupit is the husband of a half-sister of
the petitioner; Enriquez is a second cousin of petitioner; and
Rodrigo is the husband of a deceased cousin of the petitioner.”
But I understand that up to the present the courts in this

jurisdieti are still ighi the of on the

probate of this all-important instrum:nt. An i d heir or
a legatee in a forged will could then get three of his friend to
sign the attestation clause, and if the three later testified in
court that the supposed testator signed the instrument in their
presence and that they signed in his presence and in the presence
of each other, then the rightful heirs would forever be precluded
from proving the forgery and asserting their rights in the inheritance.
“The testimony of attesting witnesses to a will may be
overcome by any competent evidence. . . . Such evidence
may be direct, or it may be circumstantial; and expert and
opinion evidence is just as competent as any other evidence.

The rule ded for by 11, would f:
baffle justice and give judicial countenance to many a high-
handed fraud. — Opinion by Mr. Justice Dawson in Baird

vs. Shaffer, 101 Kan. 585, 168 Pacific 836 (1917).”
Sometimes, the condition and physical appearance of a docu-
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scales of sincerity, truth, and honesty rather than on academic at-
tainments, college degrees and social prominence. Otherwise, a
party in court whose witnesses happen to be simple, ignorant but
honest farmers and laborers occupying the bottom of the social
scale, who have not seen the inside of a barrio school, has absolute-
ly no chance or show against the adverse party who may pro-
duce witnesses with college or university degrees and members of
the aristocracy, whose names appear on the social register. I have
nothing against the witnesses to the supposed will. Exh. “D”.
They may have testified sincerely and truthfully according to their
lights. But I submit that the unknown and perhaps unlettered wit-
nesses for the oppositors, with no social or academic background
to boast of could be just as sincere and truthful. At least, the
trial court had nothing to say against their testimony while at
the same time, it gave no credit to the testimony of the witnesses
for the petitioner as to the due execution of the will. It has
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been and is still the practice and rule in appellate courts to res-
pect the findings of a trial judge who has had an opportunity to
observe the witnesses on the witness stand and to evaluate their
testimony, unless there appears in the record some fact or cir.
cumstance of weight and influence which has been overlooked or
the significance of which has been misinterpreted.) I see nothing
in the record to warrant us in disturbing the findings of the trial
court.

In conclusion, I am of the opinion that Pablo Roxas either
did not intend to make Exh. “D” his will for the reason that
if he did, he would have availed himself of the services of one
who knew how to draft a will, made copies thereof, and bequeath-
ed his estate not only to his child Reynaldo and his widow but
also to his other child Aida, the mother of said two children, and
perhaps to his own brother or sister; or, assuming that Pablo
Roxas intended to make a will, because of his ignorance of legal
requirements and technicalities, in preparing the body of Exh. “D”
which he signed, he left out the attestation clause and when in-
formed of the necessity of said clause, he had Exh. “D” re-inserted
in the typewriter and the attestation clause typed by someone else
and thereafter, perhaps long after, he asked and had the attest-
ing witnesses sign said clause either singly on different occasions
or on.one single occasion, but naturally, -without those witnesses
having been present when he (Pablo Roxas) signed the body of
Exh. “D”. Clearly, to my mind, the requirements of the law on
wills has not been duly complied with. I believe that the decision
appealed from should be affirmed. i N

Montemayor, Moran, and Pablo, JJ. concur.

Justice Padilla took mo part.

b

Tyinidad Semira et als., Petitioners vs. Juan Enriquez et als., Res-
pondents, G. R. No. L-2582, February 27, 1951.

1. APPEALS; MANDAMUS TO COMPEL ALLOWANCE OF
APPEAL; CORRECTION OF ERROR IN RECORD. — Where
the appellant timely called the attention of the trial court

to a misstatement contained in its order denying appel-
lant’s motion for reconsideration, and timely filed a motion

for 15 days’ extension of the period for perfection of an
appeal, it would be unfair and unjust for the trial court
not to act on both motions for three months and then to
rule that the decision in the case had become final and
executory for the error was merely clerical and the period

to appeal had expired even if the appellant was granted
the 15-day extension. The appellant might have resorted

to too technical a move, but this did not

sary delay’” (sec. 1, Rule 124). The inherent power of the
court “to amend and control its process and orders
as to make them conformable to law and justice” (sec. 5,
Rule 124) carries the -concomitant duty to correct its or-
ders on its own initiative or upon motion of the parties.
This duty is not affected by the nature of the error sought
to be co

P i A. M for

Respondent Judge in his own behalf.

Antonio L. Azores for respondents Azores.

DECISION

PARAS, J.:

In civil case No. 43 of the Court of First Instance of Batangas
between Trinidad Semira and Isidoro G. Mercado, as plaintiffs, and
Bienvenido Azores, Apolonia Azores, Manuel Azores, Juana Azo-
res, Jose R. Azores, Smtom- Azores, Antonio Azores and Nor-
berta Azores, as d d: was in favor of
the latter on July 7, 1944, notice of which was received by coun-
sel for plaintiffs on August 7, 1944. On August 30, 1944, counsel
for plaintiffs filed a motion for reconsideration. On May 26,
1948, after the record had been reconstituted, the Court of First
Instance of Batangas denied the motion for reconsideration, no-
tice of which was received by counsel for plaintiffs on June 21,
1948. On June 5, 1948, that is, before receipt of the nctice of
denial, counsel for plaintiffs filed a motion for an extension of
fifteen days within which to perfect an appeal in case the mo-
tion for reconsideration should be denied. In the resolution of
May 26, 1949, the Court made it appear that the defendants
filed the motion for reconsideration and the plaintiffs filed an
opposition thereto, when the fact was that I:he plaintiffs filed
the motion and the d: d filed the In view of
ihis mistake, the plaintiff filed, on the same day he received
the order of denial, a motion for correction which was set for
hearing on July 3, 1948. Failing to receive notice of any action
either on the motion for extension or on the motion for correction,
counsel for plaintiffs sent a letter of inquiry to the clerk of
court. Thus prompted, the court issued an order dated September -
25, 1948 — received by plaintiffs on October 2, 1948, — holding
that the judgment of July 7, 1944, had become final and execu-
tory for plaintiff’s failure to perfect their appeal on time even
if the motion for an extension of fifteen days was granted, the
motion for correction filed by plaintiffs on June 21, 1943, not
having suspended the time for appeal.

A petition for mandamus was filed by the plaintiffs against
the Judge of the Court of First Instance of Batangas as sole

d to compel judicial action on the motion for correction,

dispense with the duty of the trial judge to strazighten
out the record of the case for all purposes. The appel-
lant is expected to file a record on appeal containing per-
tinent pleadings, motions and orders which are correct;
and it cannot rightfuily be contended that he is ready to

do so before the said order denying reconsideraticn is
changed in the sense indicated in the appellant’s motion for
correction. ,

2. APPEALS; MOTIONS WHICH CAN BE HEARED EX
PARTE; CORRECTION OF ERROR IN RECORD. — Although
the appellant set his motion for correction for hearing
five days after the 30-day period for perfection of appeal,
the trial judge could and should have acted thereon on
shorter notice not only because he could dispose of it on

his own motion (sec. 4, Rule 26) but because the mction
might be heard ex parte in view of the nature of the
order sought and the short period left for perfecting the
appeal (Moya vs. Barton, 43 Off. Gaz., 836). Although
litigants are not justified in taking for granted that their
motions would be granted (Bonoan and Yabut vs. Ven-
tura et al, 43 Off. Gaz., 4602), the courts are bound to
act—in proper cases—on all motions with sufficient dis-
patch necessary to allow the parties to avail themselves

of proper remedies. This is implied in the mandate that
“justice shall be impartially administered without neces-
) US. vs. Melad, 27 Phil. 448; People vs. Cabrera, 43 Phil. 64.
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to set aside the order of September 25, 1948, and to have the
time for appeal declared suspended. In our resolution of March
23 1950 we du'ected the petitioners to amend their petition by

the defend; in civil ease No. 43;
and the case is now before us upon the corresponding amend-
ed petition and the answer thereto.

In our resolution of March 23, 1950, penned by Mr. Justice
Padilla, the foll decisive was made: “The
petitioner, plaintiffs in the case in the court below, were entitled to
expect action by the respondent court on their petitions for exten.
sion of time to perfect the appeal and for correction of the or-
der of 26 May 1948. The respondent court was in duty bound
to decide and resolve the two petitions and it is unfair for it to
declare without first complying with its duty to resolve and de-
cide the petitions for extension of time to perfect the appeal and
for correction of the aforesaid order of 26 May 1948.°

When the petitioners filed on August 30, 1944, the motmn
for reconsideration, they had seven days out of the reglementary
30-day period for appeal. They also had the same seven days
when  their motion for an extension of fifteen days was filed on
June 5, 1948. On June 21, 1948, when the petitioners received
rotice of the order of the respondent Judge denying their motion
for reconsideration and when they filed their motion for cor-
rection, they still had said seven days to perfect an appeal. Al-
though the petitioners set their motion for correction for hear-
ing on July 3, 1948, the respondent Judge could and should have
acted thereon on shorter notice not only because he could dis-
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pose of it on his own motion (Sec. 4, Rule 26) but because the
motion might be heard ex parte, in view of the nature of the or-
der sought and the short period left for perfecting the appeal
(Moya vs. Barton, 43 O. G. 836). Although litigants are not
justified in taking for granted that their motions would be
granted (Bonoan and Yabut vs. Ventura, et al, 43 O. G. 4602),
the courts are bound to act — in proper cases — on
motions with sufficient dispatch necessary to allow the parties to
avail of proper di This is implied in the
mandate that “justice shall be impartially administered without
unnecessary delay.” (Section 1, Rule 124.)

The inherent power of the court “to amend and control its
process and orders so as to make them conformabie to law and
justice,” (Sec. 5, Rule 124), carries the concomitant duty to cor-
rect its orders on its own initiative or upon motion of the par-
ties. This duty is not affected by the nature of the error sought
to be corrected. In the case at bar, the petitioners timely called
the attention of the respondent Judge to the misstatement con-
tained in his order of May 26, 1948, and, more timely still, filed
the motion for an extension of fifteen days to perfect an ap-
peal. The respondent Judge, in his order of September 25, 1948,
admitted that, for unknown reasons, he was not able to di:
of the two motions sooner, but ruled in the same breadth that
the judgment of July 7, 1944, had become final and

filed by plaintiffs-petitioners. On January 21, 1947, the recon-
stitution was agun set for hearing on February 11, 1947, but upon

motion for i by plaintif; counsel, the same
was re-set on February 26, 1947. Then followed various motions
by plaintif; il for i of time which defendants-

respondents termed “dilatory tactics”, which resulted in a court
notice of hearing dated April 13, 1948, once more setting the hear-
ing on May 11th of the same year. But on the latter date still
another petition for postponement on, behalf of the plaintiffs was
filed. The last reconstitution hearing was finally held on May 26,
1948.

I agree with the trial court that the decision in this-case ren-
dered on July 7, 1944 has become final. The motion for exten-
sion of the period within which to perfect an appeal did not sus-
pend the running of the 30-day period (Alejandro v. Endencia, 64
Phil. 325); neither did the petition for correction suspend the
period for perfecting an appeal. It may be that in some cases
where the error or mistake sought to be corrected is serious and
prejudicial, and may mislead the parties and the courts, especially
the appellate tribunal to which the case is sought tc be elevated
on appeal, a petition for mrrechon may suspend the penod but

in the present case, the .error in mere of
the pa.rhes, i to the d d: the motion
for and i to the plaintiffs the opposition

because the error was merely clerical and the period to -ppe.u

thereto, when it should be the other way, is a mere oversight, a clerical
and

had expired ever if the petitioners were granted 15-day
The unfairness and injustice of this ruling are obvious from the
fact that, while the respondent Judge in effect admitted the neces-
sity of swift action on. petitioners’ motions, the petitioners are
made to suffer the consequences of his inaction.

The petitioners might have resorted to too technical a move,
but this circumstance did not dispense with the duty of the re-
spondent Judge to straighten out the record of the case for all
purposes. The petitioners are expected to file a record on ap-

i pertinent motions and orders which
are correct; and it cannot righily be contended that they are
ready to do so before the order of the respondent Judge of
May 26, 1942, is changed in the sense indicated in petitioners”
motion for correction.

Wherefore, the respondent Judge is hereby directed to cor-
rect the misstatement appearing in his order of May 26, 1948,
as pointed out in this spinion. The petitioners have seven days
from notice of the order affecting the necessary corrections with-
in which to perfect, if it is so desired, an appeal from the judg-
ment in civil case No. 43 dated July 7, 1944. So ordered with
costs against the respondents other than the respondent Judge.

Moran ,Feria, Pablo, Bengzon,
and Bautista Angelo. — J.J. concur.

Padilla; Tuason; Reyes; Jugo;

MONTEMAYOR, J., dissenting:

With all due respect to the learned opinion of the majority,
I am constrained to dissent. I cannot give my asscnt to further
prolonging this old case to the prejudice of the defendants in
Civil Case No. 43 of the Court of First I of who

error, which can neither
prejudice nor mislead anyone. There was only one motion for
reconsideration of the decision in the whole record, and that was
filed by the plaintiffs; and. there was only one opposition thereto,
and that wus filed by the defendants. What is more, the order
mentions the date of each pleading. So there was no possibility
of misleading anybody. The error was trivial and was known to
the plaintiffs. So, what prejudice or harm could have such an
error produced on them?

I am not in favoer of courts’ giving too much importance to
errors of this kind, — clerical and unsubstantial, and allowing them
to unduly prolong or even 1 court i i
when, as in the present case, there is reason to believe that the
motion for correction was part of a de_sxgn to delay such proceed-
ings. The who obtained as far
back as 1944, and who have mpeatedly complained to the trial
court against the numerous petitions for postponement filed by the
plaintiffs, in my opinion, have reason to term them as they did,
“dilatory tactics”, and the trial court would appear to have real-
ized it and sympathized with said defendants; and it seems that its
order of September 25, 1948, declaring the period of appeal to have
long expired because the petition for correction of the error did
not suspend the running of the period for appeal, was partly in-
fluenced by such realization. Said the trial court on this point:

“Indeed, defendants have time and again objected to the
dilatory tactics adopted by the plaintiffs.”

The majority opinion seems to attribute the fault in not act-
ing upon the motion for correction promptly, to the respondent
Judge and mferenually, and- in part bases the judgment on that

fault or In justice to the respondent Judge

obtained a judgment in their favor as far back as July, 1944, all
because of a clericzl and immaterial error that had crept into,
not the judgment or decision, but only the order denying the mo-
tion for reconsideration. Of course, none of the parties could be
blamed for the loss of the records of the case thereafter, but
I am impressed by the claim of counsel for the respondents, based
on the record, that as early as August, 1945, the Clerk of Court
of Batangas had sent out notices of the loss of the records, and
that reconstitution was set for helnng on November 19, 1946, but
ihat due to the for and exten-
sion of time, filed by plaintiffs-petitioners’ counsel, the hearing
dragged on and no action could be taken on the motion for re-
consideration until May 26, 1948, when the order of denial was
rendered.

The record shows that the hearing for reconstitution set on
November 19, 1946, was not held due to a motion for continuance
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it should be stated that the fault or negligence, if any, may not
be laid at his door. According to his answer dated November 24,
1948, when the motion for correction was filed by the plaintiffs
on June 21, 1948, in the Court of First Instance of Batangas,
Judge Enriquez was not in the province of Batangas because he
was then holding court sessions in the provinces of Mindoro and
Marinduque “during the months of June and July of that year.
The following month of August, respondent Judge was assigned to
hold sessions in Batangas, Batangas. It seems that there are two
court b 3 in the provi of one holding sessions
in the City of Lipa and the other in the town of Batangas. The
petition for correction was filed and kept in the Lipa branch. Na-
turally, respondent Judge knew nothing about it. It was only
when counsel for the plaintiffs made an inquiry from the Clerk
of Court in Lipa in September, 1948, that is, about three months
after he filed his motion for correction, that said court official
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sent the petition for correction to the respondent Judge in Ba-
tangas, on September 24, 1948, and the respondent Judge acting
on it immediately, issued his order the following day, September
25, 1948. Why the plaintiffs or their counsel did not fcllow up
their petition for correction or even their petition for extension
of time, so as to insure prompt action, is not explained.
In conclusmn, I hold that a petition for correction of a clerical,
and non-prejudicial error in a decision or or-
der, which error can neither prej nor mislead ybody, can-
not and should not be allowed to suspend the period for perfecting
the appeal. d

I
Sebastian C. Palanca, Petitioner vs. Potenciano Pecson, etc. et al.,
Respondents, G. R. Nos. L-6334 and 6338, February 25, 1954.

1. SPECIAL PROCEEDINGS; ATTORNEY’S LIEN; CASE AT
BAR. — In Special Proceedings No. 12126 of the Court of First
Instance of Manila, D was the attorney of T, one of the
heirs and an oppositor to the probate of the will of his
deccased father. P did away with the services of D who
withdrew as P’s counsel after the appeal from the decision
of the court probating the will had been elevated to the Sup-
reme Court. On July 7, 1952, D filed in the testate pro-
ceedings a notice of attorney’s lien, alleging that he_ was
counsel for P from Sept. 1950 until March 1952 and stat-
ing the reasonable value of his services as well as the
unpaid balance; and praying that the statement be enter-
ed apon the records. to be henceforth a lien on the prop-
erty or money that may be advanced to P, or that may be
ordered paid to him by the court. On July 9, 1952, D
filed in the same testate proceedings a petition, praying
the court to fix and declare his attorney’s fees and to en-
force the unpaid balance as a lien upon the property or
money that may be advanced in favor of P or upon any
sum that may be ordered paid to the latter. HELD: Un-
der Sec. 33, Rule 127 of the Rules of Court the attorney
may cause a statement of his lien to be registered even
before the rendition of any judgment, the purpose being
merely to establish his right to the lien.

2. IDEM; IDEM; RECORDING OF ATTORNEY’S LIEN DIS-
TINGUISHED FROM ENFORCEMENT OF ATTORNEY’S
LIEN. — The recording is distinct from the enforcement of

the lien, which may take place only after judgment is se-
cured in favor of the client.

3. IDEM; IDEM; SECTION 3 RULE 127 CONSTRUED IN
THE LIGHT OF SECTION 24 OF RULE 127 AS AMEND-
ED BY REPUBLIC ACT 636. — The provision permits the re-

gistration of an attorney’s lien, zlthough the lawyer con-
cerned does not finish the case successfully in favor of his
client, because an attorney who quits or is dismissed before
the conclusion of his assigned task is as much entitled
to the protection of the rule. Otherwise, a client may
easily frustrate its purpose. Indeed, this construction
is impliedly warranted by section 24 of Rule 127, which
is amended by Rep. Act No. 636. In the case of Dablke vs.
Vifia, 51 Phil. 707, it was already pointed out that the
filing of a lien for reasonable value of legal services
does mot by itself legally ascertain and determine its
amount ially when d; that it devol ‘upon
the atterney to both allege and prove that the amount
claimed is unpaid and that it is reasonable and just; the
client having the legal right to be heard thereupon; and
that the application to fix the attorney’s fees is usually
made before the court which renders the judgment or
may be enforced in an independent and separate action.

4. IDEM; IDEM; PROBATE COURT MAY DETERMINE AT-
TORNEY’S LIEN FOR SERVICES RENDERED TO OPPOSI-
TOR WHO CONTESTED THE ALLOWANCE OF THE WILL.

There is no valid reason why a probate court cannot pass
upon a proper petition to determine attorney’s fees, if the
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rule against multiplicity of suits is to be activated and
if we are to concede that, as in the case before us, said
court is to a certain degree already familiar with the na-
ture and extent of the lawyer’s services.
Ceferino de los Santos, Sr. and Ceferino de los Santos, Jr,
petitioner.
Respondent Dinglasan in his own behalf.

for

DECISION
PARAS, C. J.:

In" Special Proceedings No. 12126 of the Court of First In-
stance of Manila, Rafael Dinglasan was the attorney of Sebas-
tian Palanca, one of the heirs and an oppositor to the probate
of the will of his deceased father Carlos Palanca y Tanguinlay.
Due to the differences of opinion, Sebastian Palanca did away
with the services of Atty. Dinglasan who in fact withdrew. as
Palanca’s counsel after the appeal from the decision of the Court
of First Instance of Manila probating the will had been elevated
to the Supreme Court. On July 7, 1952, Atty. Dinglasan filed in
the testate proceedings a notice of attorney’s lien, alleging that he
was counsel for Sebastian Palanca from September 1950 until
March 1952; that the reasonable value of his services is at least
£20,000.00; that Palanca-had paid upon account only the sum of
P3,083 leaving an upaid balance of P16,917.00; and praying that
the statement be entered upon the records to be henceforth a lien
on the property or money that may be adjudged to Sebastian Pa-
lanca, or that may be ordered paid to him by the court. On
August 16, 1952, Judge Potenciano Pecson ordered that the nctice
of attorney’s lien be attached to the record for all legal intents and
purposes. On July 9, 1952, Atty. Dinglasan filed in the same
testate proceedings a petition, praying the Court of First Instance
of Manila to fix and declare his attorney’s fee at not less than
P20,000.00 and to enforce the unpaid balance of P16,917.00 as a
lien upon the property or money that may be adjudged in favor
of Sebastian Palanca or upon any sum that may be ordered paid
to the latter. Sebastian Palanca moved to dismiss the foregoing pe-
tition, but the motion was demed on August 30, 1952. Palanca’s-

motion for ion was also denied for lack of
merit. The action of Judge Pecson in ordering that Atty. Ding-
lasan’s notice of attorney’s lien be attached to the record and in
taking cognizance of the petition to determine his fees in Special
Proceedings No. 12126, is assailed by Sebastian Palanca in a pe-
tition for certiorari filed with this Court against Judge Potenciano
Fecson and Rafael Dinglasan (G. R. No. L-6334).

On July 10, 1952, Sebastian Palanca filed in the testate pro-
ceedings 2 petition for an advance inheritance in the sum of P2,000.-
00. On October 21, 1952, Judge Pecson issued an order suspending
action on Palanca’s petition until Atty. Dinglasan’s petition to de-
termine the amount of his attorney’s lien shall have been finally dis-
posed of. His motion for reconsideration having been denied on
November 7, 1952, Sebastian Palanca instituted in this Court a
petition for mandamus against Judge Pecsor and Atty. Dinglasan
(G. R. No. L-6346), to compel the respondent Judge to act upon
Palanca’s petition for advance inheritauce.

We are not here concerned with the nature and extent of the
contract between Palanca and Atty. Dinglasan as to the latter’s
professional fees, and the principal issues arising from the plead-
ings are (1) whether the notice of attorney’s lien may be allowed
at the stage when it was filed, namely, before final judgment in
favor of Palanca was secured by respondent attorney, and (2) whe-
ther the respondent Judge acted properly in entertaining the peti-
tion to determine Atty. Dinglasan’s fees and in holding in abey-
ance Palanca’s petition for advance inheritance.

It is contended for petitioner Palanca that Atty. Dinglasan
not having yet secured any decision or judgment in favor of the
former, the notice of attorney’s lien could not be allowed under
section 33, Rule 127, of the Rules of Court which does not author-
ize a lien upon a cause of action.

Section 33 provides that an attorney “shall also have a lien
to the same extent upon all judgments for the payment of money,
and executions issued in pursuance of such judgments, which he
has secured in a litigation of his client, from after the time when
he shall have caused a statement of his claim of such lien to be
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entered upon the records of the court rendering such judgment, or
is suing such execution, and shall have caused written notice there-
of to be delivered to his client and to the adverse party; and he
shall have the same right and power over such judgments and
executions as his client would have to enforce his lien and secure

the payment of his just fees and disbursements.” Under
this provision we are of the opinion that the attorney
may cause a statement of his lien to be registered even

before the rendition of any judgment, the purpose being merely
to establish his right to the lien. / The recording is distinct from
the enforcement of the lien, which may take place only after judg-
ment is secured in favor of the client. We believe also that the
provision permits the registration of an attorney’s lien, although
the lawyer concerned does not finish the case successfully in favor
of his client, because an attorney who quits or is dismissed before
the conclusion of his assigned task is as much entitled to the pro-
tection of the rule. Otherwise, a client may easily frustrate its
purpose. Indeed, this construction is impliedly warranted by sec-
tion 24 of Rule 127, which as amended by Republic Act No. 636
provides as follows: “A client may at anytime dismiss his attor-
ney or substitute another in his place, but if the contract between
client and attorney has been reduced to writing and the dismissal
of the attorney was without justifiable cause, he shall be entitled
to recover from the client the full compensation stipulated in the
contract. For the payment of such compensation the attorney shall
have a lien upon all judgments, for the payment of money ‘anc

i issued in p of such j rendered in the
cases wherein his services had been retained by the client.” The
petitioner, however, argues that this provision cannot be availed of
by respondent Dinglasan because there is neither a written contract
for attorney’s fee nor a showing that his dismissal was unjustified.
This argument is without merit, inasmuch as if there was a writ-

v
Aurora Paner, Petitioner, vs. Nicasio Yatco et al, Respondents,
G. R. No. L-2042, August 31, 1950.

MANDAMUS: APRROVAL OF RECORD ON APPEAL; WRIT

DOES NOT ISSUE WHEN APPEAL IS NOT MERITORIOUS. —
An order denying petition for relief to set aside a judgment may
be appealable for which writ of mandamus may be granted to
compel the trial court to approve the record on appeal, but
when it is very evident as shown by the facts of the case
that the granting of the writ would not profit the petitioner
to obtain said remedy, for like a mirage it would merely raise
false hopes and in the end avail the petitioner nothing, said
petition for mandamus must be dismissed.

Marcelino Lontok for petitioner.
Claro T. Almeda for respondent Batibot.

DECISION
MONTEMAYOR, J:

This is a petition for mandamus to compel the respondent
Judge to approve the record on appeal filed in Civil Case No.
7685 of the Court of F)rst Instance of Laguna. The facts ne-
cessary for an and of this case are
as follows:

On April 11, 1921, Emiteria Miranda, widow of Maximo Pa-
ner allegedly executed a deed of sale of 1/2 of lot No. 751 of the
Calamba Estate Subdivision covered by Transfer Certificate of
Title No. 91 in the name of Maximo Paner in favor of Severo
Batibot for the sum of P200.00. In September, 1947, the heirs
of Severo Batibot filed in the Court of First Instance of Laguna
Civil Case No. 86 which after reconstitution, was given
number 7685 of the same Court, against Emiteria Miranda and
her gr Aurora Paner alleging that in March, 1943,

ten contract and the dismissal was unjustified, Aﬁy Dingl:
would be entitled to the entirety of the sti

the d d particularly Emiteria Miranda, deprived the plain~

even if the case was not yet finished when he was dismissed. In
situation like that of respondent Dinglasan the lawyer may claim
compensation only up to the date of his dismissal. For the pay-
ment of such compensation he shall nevertheless have a lien “upon
all judgments, for the payment of money and executions issued
in pursuance of such judgments rendered in the cases wherein his
services have been rettined by thc client.”” Section 24 does not
state that the judgment must be secured by the attorney claiming
the lien.

The ’s further that r d Dingla-
san’s remedy is to file a separate action for damages or for com-
pensation, is untenable. In the case of Dahlke vs. Vifia, 51 Phil.
707, it was already pointed out that the filing of a lien for reason-
able value of legal services does not by itself legally ascertain and
determine its amount i when ; that it devol
upon the attorney to both allege and prove that the amount claim-
ed is unpaid and that it is reasonable and just; the client having

iffs of the possession and ownership of the lot in question causing
damage in the sum of P50, and asking that plaintiffs be declared the
owners of 1/2 of lot No. 751, and that they be paid the damage ’
caused. Atty. Juan A. Baes, acting as counsel for the two defend-
ants, filed an amended answer on September 3, 1947, alleging that
the deed of sale above-mentioned was a forgery, and that defend-
ant Emiteria Miranda had no knowledge of the execution thereof
and that the mark therein affixed was not hers; that the ori-
ginal owner of the land in question was Maximo Paner, the de.
ceased husband of Emiteria; that after his death he was suc-
ceeded by his son Maximino Paner, father of defendant Aurora
Paner; and that in February, 1945, Maximino Paner was mas-
sacred by the Japanese and he was succeeded by only child Auro-
ra Paner. The answer prayed for the dismissal of the com-
piaint and for payment by the plaintiffs of the sum of P300.00
as damages.

On the same date that the answer was filed, Atty. Baes filed
a motion in court alleging that defendant Aurora was only three
years old and at the same time usking the court to appecint her

the legal right to be heard thereupon; and that the to fix
the attorney’s fees is usually made before the court which renders
the judgment or may be enforced in an independent and separatc
action. We see no valid reason why a probate court cannot pass
upon a proper petition to determine attorney’s fees, if the rule
against multiplicity of suits is to be activated and if we are to
concede that, as in the case before us, said court is to a certain de-
gree already familiar with the nature and extent of the lawyer’s
services.

In view of what has been said, it.is obvious that the respondent
Judge neither acted without jurisdiction nor abused his discretion
in the matter herein complained of. The petition for certiorari in
G. R. No. L-6334 and the petition for mandamus in G. R. No. L-
6346 are hereby dismissed with costs against the petitioner. So
ordered.

Pablo, Padilla, Reyes, Bautista Angelo, Bengzon; Montemayor;
Jugo, and Labrador. — J.J. concur.
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as her dian ad litem. The
case was heard on September 3 and 9, during which evidence was
adduced by both parties —— plaintiffs and defendants. On Sepi-
ember 10th Emiteria took her oath as guardian ad litem of Au-
rora. On September 12th the trial court rendered its decision
wherein it found that the deed of sale was genuine and had been
culy executed by Emiteria Miranda. The court equally found
that the land covered by the deed belonged to Maximo Paner who
had bought it from the Bureau of Lands since July 1 1910, be-
fore he married Emiteria Miranda, and that consequently, she
had no right to sell the same as her property. The trial conrt
declared the deed of sale null and void, but considering the good
faith of the buyer Severo Batibot, the court sentenced the de-
fendants to reimburse the purchase price of £200.00 to the plain-
tiffs with interest at 6% per annum from the date of the deed,
and further d the d d to the plain-
tiffs for the value of the improvements introduced by them or
their predecessor in interest.

On behalf of the defendants, Atty. Baes filed a motion for re-
consideration and new trial, dated October 17, 1947, but his mo-
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tion was denied for lack of merit. He did not appeal.

About two months later or rnther on December 24, 1947, Atty.

i Lontok, d: Aurora Paner, filed a
petition in the trial court asking that its decision of September
12, 1947, be ‘set aside, as against his client Aurora Paner, or at
least to permit her to file her appeal frcm said decision. The
plaintiffs opposed said petition and the trial court hy order of
January 8, 1948, denied the same on the ground that it was “not
well-founded, and that the decision in this case has become final.”

On January 21, 1948, Atty. Lontok filed his notice of appeal
from the order denying his petition for reconsideration and pre-
pared and submitted his record on appeal and the corresponding
appeal bond. The trial court hy order of Feb. 9, 1948, refused
to approve the record on appeal on the ground that it was filed
beyond the reglementary period.

As already stated, to compel the respondent Judge to approve
said record on appeal, the present petition for mandamus was
filed in this Court.

In refusing to approve the record on appeal, the respondent
Judge seems to have labored under the impression that the ap-
pellant and herein petitioner was appealing from the court’s deci-
sion of September 12, 1947, this, judging from the ground or rea-
son given for the refusal, namely, that the record on appeal was
filed beyond the reglementary period. But in reality the appeal
was being taken from the order of January 8, 1948, denying-the
petition to set aside the decision of September 12, 1947, a petition
presumably based on Section 2, Rule 38 of the Rules of Court.
That order of denial was, of course, appealable and if the record
on' appeal was otherwise proper and complele, the respondent
Judge was bound to approve it and he may be compelled to do so
by a writ of mandamus. - So, strictly and legally speaking, the
present petition for mandamus may be granted. However, before
acting upon the petition, we may inquire into the facts involved
in order to determine whether once the writ of mandamus is
granted and the case is brought up here on appeal, the appel-
ant has any chance, even possibility of having the basic decision
of the trial court of September 12, 1947, set aside or modified;
for if the appellant has not that prospect or likelihood, then the
granting of this writ of and the appeal
would be futile and would mean only a waste of time to the
parties and to this Court. This inquiry can easily be made from
a copy of the record on appeal now before us as well as the
pleadings filed by both parties.

The whole theory of counsel for the petitioner in insisting in
setting aside the judgment of September 12, 1947, against his client,
the minor Aurora Paner, is that the court acquired no jurisdie-
tion over her person at least during the trial. He contends that
inasmuch as the child’s grandmother and guardian ad litem did
not take her oath as such guardian until September 10, 1947, that
is, after the hearing of the case which was held on September 3
and 9, during said hearings, the minor was not duly represented
and the court acquired no jurisdiction over her.  Furthermore,
said counsel contends that her guardian ad litem had interests in
the case adverse to that of her ward which accounts for said guar-
dian failing or refusing to appeal from the decision.

The contention of counsel as regards jurisdiction is based on a
mere bechmcah(y. The record falls to show the day when the
court d the g i Miranda as guardian
ad litem of her granddaughter, but in the absence of evidence on
this point, it is reasonable to presume that the appointment must
have been made on the very day that the court was asked to do
50, namely, on September 3, 1947, the first day of the hearing. It
is reasonable to presume that the respondent realized the impor-
tance and necessity of having a minor party to a case duly re-
presented in court during its judicial proceedings, and that he
must have made the appointment perhaps verbally before com-
mencing the hearing.

During the hearings held on September 3 and 9, 1947, the

attorney for the defendants Emiteria and her ward Aurora pre-
sented evidence calculated to prove that the lot claimed by the
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plaintiffs was never sold to them, evidence which can in no man-
ner be regarded as contrary to the interests of Aurora Paner.
On the contrary, it was designed to keep whole and preserve
Aurora’s title to the property in litigation.

Counsel for petitioner claims that Emiteria did not take her
oath as guardian ad litem until September 10, 1947, that is, one
day after the last day of the hearing. In the absence of any
denial by respondents of this. claim, we shall assume it to be true.
But even then, as long as during the court. proceedings, Emiteria
had acted as such guardian to represent her ward and protect
her interests, her belated taking of oath did mot in any way ad-
versely affect or prejudice the intrests of the minor. After all,
the oath-taking was a mere formality.

It should be remembered that when the decision was ren-
dered on September 12, 1947, the grandmother Emiteria Miranda,
had already taken her oath as guardian ad litem and she was fully
authorized to appeal from the decision. In fact, through counsel
said guardian and her ward filed a motion for reconsideration and
new trial but when that motion was denied they did not appeal.
The reason for said failure to appeal is found in a letter written
at the time by the defendants’ counsel to thc lawyer of the plain-
tiffs which quoted in part reads as follows:

“I did not appeal the case because I believe that in doing
so, the parties will incur more expenses than the actual price of
the land in litigation.”

And, we are inclined to agree with the said counsel that con-
sidering the amount involved in the decision, it was really wiser
to abide by said decision instead of taking an appeal, and paying
the necessary court and attorney’s fees, with no definite guaranty
or assurance of winning the case in the end.

As to the alleged conflict in interests between the guardian
and her ward, we fail to see said divergence. We should bear
in mind that the guardian was no stranger to but a grandmother
of the ward. In her answer te the complaint in the trial court,
said guardian far from claiming the lot in question as her own,
said that it belonged to her ward as an inheritance from her
grandfather, deceased husband of the guardian. In fact, in or-
der to protect and conserve the property so that it may go to
her granddaughter and ward, whole and unburdened, the grand-
mother and guardian went to the extent of disclaiming and deny-
ing any previous alienation or conveyance of said property to the
plaintiffs.  All this fails to show any conflict of interests be-
tween guardian and ward.

Now, coming to the petition filed in the trial court on De-
cember 24, 1947, to set aside the decision of September 12, 1947,
although it was presumably filed under the provisions of Rule 38
of the Rules of Court, said petition made no mention whatso-
ever of said Rule and what is more important, it failed to allege
any of the grounds on which a petition for relief is usually
based, namely, fraud, accident, mistake, or excusable negligence.
As a matter of fact, after examining the record we are unable to
find that any of these grounds existed or could be successfully
invoke by the minor, and may be that was the reason why they
were not alleged in the petition. And, if the case were taken
to this Court on appeal and we were to examine the facts of
the case from the record on appeal as we have done now, we do
not see how the decision of the trial court of September 12, 1947,
even assuming it to be erroneous as not altogether in conformity
with the law and evidence, can be set aside. From all this it is
not difficult to imagine and believe that the trial court was
not without reason in refusing to set aside its decision of Sept-
ember 12, 1947, and that it would not profit the petitioner to
obtain the remedy of mandamus now sought, for like a mirage
it would merely raise false hopes and in the.end avail her nothing.

In view of the foregoing the petition for mandamus is hereby
without as to costs.

Moran, Ozaeta, Paras, Pablo, Bengzon; Tuazon and Reyes. J.J.
concur.
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Domingo T. Dikit, Petitioner} vs. Ramon A. Ycasiano, et al.,, Res-
pondents, G. R. No. L-3637, May 23, 1951.

PLEADING & PRACTICE: UNLAWFUL DETAINER; PRE-
LIMINARY PREVENTIVE INJUNCTION CANNOT ISSUE IN
UNLAWFUL DETAINER. — In an action for unlawful detainer,
the judge of the municipal court issued a writ of prelimi-
nary injunction ordering the occupant of the premises in
question, his attorneys, rcpresentatives, agents and em-
ployees to refrain from entering or making use of the
same. HELD: If the action in which the preliminary
injunction was issued were of forcible entry, the judge did
not act in excess of his jurisdiction in issuing said pre-
liminary injunction, under section 3 of Rule 72 but as the
action was of unlawful'dectainer, the judge acted in excess
of his jurisdiction and, therefore, the writ of prcliminary
injunction issued must be set aside as null and void.
Jose Cando for appellant.
Assistant Solicitor General Inocencio Rosal and Solicitor Jesus
A. Avanceiia for appellee.
DECISION

Thls is a special civil action of certiorari against “the respon-
dents based on the ground that the respondent Judge of the Muni-
cipal Court of Manila acted in excess of the court’s jurisdiction
in issuing a writ of pxehmmary mJuncnon, upon a petition ex-
parte of the d C Bldg., Inc, as
plaintiff, against the petitioner as defendnm in the civil action or
case No. 9708 of the said Municipal Court to eject the latler
from the premises leased to him by the former. In said writ
the respondent Judge ordered that said defendant, his attorneys,
representatives, agents and employees refrain from entering or
making use of the lobby and mezzanine of the Consolidated In-
vestment Building at Plaza Goiti, Manila.

There is no question or dispute between the parties and they
both agree that if the action instituted by respondent Consolidated
Investment Bldg. Inc. against the petitioner Domingo T. Dikit in
said civil case No. 9708 were of forcible entry, the respondent
Judge did not act in excess of the court’s jurisdiction in issuing
said preliminary injunction under Section 3, Rule 72 of the Rules
of Court; but if it were of unlawful detai the d

ances given to herein plaintitf as a basis, defendant had ap-
plied for the lease of the lobby and mezzanine of the Consoli-
dated Investments Ruilding located at the Plaza Goiti, City
of Manila, and within the jurisdiction of this Honorable Court,
under the basic conditions of constructing the partitions that
will separate the lobby from the side entrances of the build-
ing, to pay an advance rental of P30,000.00 applicable to the
last six (6) months under a proposed 5-year lease-contract,
and to pay in advance the current monthly rental of P5,000.00
from the time that the construction of the separating walls or
partitions is completed.

x x x x > A X

That by reason and on the strength of said undertakings
of the defendant, the defendant succecded in getting the pos-
session of the lobby and mezzanine of the Consolidated In-
vestment Building, proceed with the construction of the se-
parating walls or partitions mentioned above and carried out
the remodelling work that said defendant would require to
put the premises in question in condition to be used by “The
Bank of Manila” which, the said defendant had assured the
plaintiff, will start operating carly in July, 1949.

That the monthly rental of P5,000.00 would accrue and
become payable in advance within the first five (5) days of
each month upon completion of the construction of the se-
parating walls or partitions mentioned above.

x X x x x x x

That having failed to obtain the proper license to operate
his proposed “The Bank of Manila”, the defendant on Septem-
ber 1, 1949, had relinquished and turned over to the plaintiff
the lobby and ine of the Ct li d Build-
ing, and said defendant had accepted the position of Vice-
President of the proposed “The Bank of Manila” under a new
group of capitalists.

That subsequently thereafter defendant regained posses-
sion of the lobby and mezzanine of the Consolidated Invest-
ments Building by representing to the plaintiff that he (the
defendant) was able to obtain the cooperation of certain Fili-"
pino residents of Hawaii who were ready to capitalize his pro-
posed “The Bank of Manila” and that said capitalists were
willing to pay to herein plaintiff an advance rental of £100,000.-

Judge acted in excess of the court’s jurisdiction and, therefore,
the writ of preliminary injunction issued must be set aside as
null and void (Piit vs. De Lara and Velez, 58 Phil. 765, 767;
Sevilla vs. Judge De los Santos, G.R. No. L-1980, promulgated
on May 25, 1950).
Section 1, Rule 72 of the Rules of Court, which defines and
distinguishes forcible entry from unlawful detainer, provides:
SECTION 1. Who may institute proceedings, and when.
—Subject to the provisions of the next succeeding section, a
person deprived of the possession of any land or building by
force, intimidation, threat, strategy, or stealth, or a landlord,
vendor, vendee, or cther person against whom the possession
of any land or building is unlawfully withheld after the ex-
piration or termination of the right to hold possession, by
virtue of any contract, express or implied, or the legal repre-
sentatives or assigns of any such landlord, vendor, vendee,
or other person, may, at any time within cne year after
such unlawful deprivation or withholding of possession bring
an action in  the proper inferior court against the person
or persons unlawfully withholding or depriving of possession,
or any person or persons claiming under them, for the resti-
tution of such possession, together with damages and costs.

Applying the above quoted provisions to the present case, we
are of the opinion, and so hold, that the facts alleged in the com-
plaint filed in said case No. 9780, constitute an action of un-
lawful detainer and not of forcible entry, and therefore the re-
spondent Judge acted in excess of the Municipal Court of Ma-
nila’s jurisdiction in issuing the writ of preliminary injunction
cemplained of. The pertinent parts of the complaint reads as
follows:

That with the aforementioned representations and assur-
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00 licable to the last months under a 5-year lease-contract,
at the rate of P5,000.00 per month. x x x
XX TE 2% ROCE <X
That defend: notwitk ding the several i of

time requested by him, not only has failed to pay the ad-
vance rental promised by him, but also' has failed and refused
to pay unto the plaintiff the current rentals corresponding
to the months of October and Novemker, 1949, at the rate of
P5,000.00 monthly, notwithstanding the repeated and persist-
ent demands made on him by the plaintiff for at least five
days prior to the filing of the complaint.

That plaintiff likewise had demanded of the defendant that
the latter vacate the lobby and mezzanine of the Consolidated
Investments Building, which demand was made for more than
five days prior to the filing of this complaint, but said de-
fendant has failed and refused to comply with said friendly
demand up to the present time,

The plaintiff’s action was not of forcible entry, but of unlaw-
ful detainer, because according to said Section 1 of Rule 72, for-
cible entry is the act of depriving a person of the material or act-
ual possession of land or building or of taking possession thereof
by force, intimidation, threat, strategy or stealth, against the will
or without the consent of the possessor; while unlawful detainer
is the act of unlawfully withholding the possession of a land or
building against or from a landlord, vendor, vendee or other per-
sons, after the expiration or termination of the detainer's right
to hold possession by virtue of a contract, express or implied. In
forcible entry, the possession of the intruder or person who de-'
prives another of the possession of the land or building is illegal
from the beginning, because his entry into or taking possession
thereof is made against the will or without the consent of the
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former possessor. In unlawful detainer the possession of the de-
tainer is originally legal or lawful but it becomes illegal oniy after
the expiration or termination of his right to hold possession of the
land or building by virtue of a contract, as the possession of a te-
nant after termination of the contract of lease for non-payment of
the rents due or viclation of the terms of said contract. In the
present case, according to the above quoted complaint, thc peu-
tioner took possession of the part of the building leased, not against
the will or without the consent, but with the express consent of
the owner or possessor thereof by the virtue of the contract of lease
entered between them, and therefore his possession of the premiscs
leased was legal or lawful from the beginning, and it became ille-
gal only after the termination of his right to continue in possessicn
of said premises for having failed to pay the rents or other con-
ditions of the contract of lease. The fact that the petitioner ch-
tained the consent of the lessor to enter into said contract and
take possession of the premises leased through false misrepresenta-
tion as alleged in the complaint, did not make petitioner’s posses-
sion illegal from the beginning and the action instituted against
him one of forcible entry. The stealth, strategy or fraud em-
ployed to deprive a person of his possession of a land or building
under Section 1 of Rule 72, are the means used by the intruder
to take possession of said land or building, without the consent or
knowledge of the person in possession thereof. Such as, for ins-
tance, entering into the possession of a house taking advantage of
the absence therefrom of its possessor or inhabitant, or after the
latter has gone out of it because he was deceived or told by the
intruder to go to another place at the request of one of his friend
or relative. c

Besides, in an action of forcible entry, no previous demand to
vacate is required by law before the filing of the action, while
Section 2 of Rule 72 it requires that in an action of unlawful de-
tainer by a landlord against his tenant, such demand is required,
and compliance with this demand or condition is alleged in the last
quoted paragraph of the complaint.

In view of the foregoing, the writ of preliminary injunction
was issued by the respondent Judge in excess of the court’s juris-
diction, and therefore it is set aside with costs against the respon-
dent Consolidated Investments Bldg. Inc.

Paras, Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla, Tuason; Montemayor; Jugo
and Bautista Angelo. — J.J. concur

VI

Ernest Berg, Plaintiff and Appeliant vs. Valentin Teus, Defendant
and Appellee, G. R. No. L-2987, February 20, 1951.

1. OBLIGATION AND CONTRACTS; MORATORIUM; RE-
CEIVERSHIP. — Plaintiff presented a petition to put the
premises and chattel in litigation in the hands of a re-
ceiver, petition which appears of urgent character. Defend-
ant opposed the motion for receivership aud moved for
dismissal of the complaint on the grounds that plaintiff’s
cause of action had not accrued by reason of Executive
Orders Nos. 25 and 32, on moratorium. The lower court
opines that Executive Order Nos. 25 and 32 were still
in force unaffected by Republic Act No. 342 as to debts
contracted during the Japanese occuupation. Plaintiff
contends that those executive orders had passed out of

i by the di of the contem-
plated thereby. HELD: Decision on this question can be
deferred. For the purpose of this case, Executive Orders

Nos. 25 and 32 are assumed to be still in full force and

effect. This is done to pave the way for and hasten action

on the petition to put the premises and chattels involved
in the hands of a receiver. The constitutionality of Execu-
tive Orders Nos. 25 and 32 and Republic Act No. 342 and
allied issues can wait. These issues are delicate and would
require p study and deli i Besides, there
1s a pending bill in Congress repealing those executive or-
ders and law. The fact that the i of a re-

ran

court below for frther proceeding. The way is left open
to the defendant to ask for the arrest or stay of execu-
tion in the event of an adverse monetary judgment, and
for the plaintiff to impugn anew, if necessary, the con-
stitutionality of Executive Orders Nos. 25 and 32 and Re-
public Act No. 342 and/or their being still in force.

2. ID.; ID.; ID. — In Medina v. Santos (L-1280, May 26, 1947, 44
Off. Gaz., No. 10, 3811), it was held that an action for
the recovery of a truck with prayer for payment of its
value in case the truck was not returned, could proceed
notwithstanding the moratorium law. The court observed
that the indemnity sought was a subsidiary liability and
would not come into being unless and until decision ren-
dered against the defendants for such payment. In Moya
vs. Barton (L-745, Aug. 27, 1947, 45 Off. Gaz., No. 1,227-),
the court said that when the cause of action was in part
covered by the moratorium and in part not, it was not
unjust to render judgment for the payment of the entire
obligation with the understanding that execution with res-
pect to the amounts that had fallen due before March 10,
1945, would be stayed. In the case of Alejo v. Gomez
(L-1969, May 30, 1949), the court ruled that suit for un-
lawful detainer and rents in arrears was not affected by
the moratorium, the recovery of the unpaid rentals, it was
said, being accessory to the main action. And, lastly, in
Realty Investments, Inc. et al vs. Villanueva et al (L-1949,
Oct. 31, 1949), the court, citing the above-mentioned cases,
decided that the court should go ahead with the trial of
the action on the merits without prejudice to the right of
the defendant to arrest the execution should one for pay-
ment of money be issued. In that case the plain.
tiff, which had sold to the defendant a piece
of land on installment basis, was demanding pay-
ment of the installments still unpaid (installments which
the defendant claimed to have fully settled with the Ja-
panese alien property custodian). or, in default, restora-
tion of the ownership and possession of the property. In
revoking the lower court’s order of dismissal, it is point-,
ed out that De Venecia vs. General (L-894, 44 Off. Gaz,
4912) and Ma-ao Sugar Central Co. V. Barrios et al (L-
1539, 45 Off. Gaz., 2144) were distinguishable from Moya
vs. Barton, Medina vs. Santos, and Alejo v. Gomez in that
the suits in the first two named cases had for their sole
object the enforcement >f a monetary obligation. The
case at bar falls within the relaxed rule of the Supreme
Court’s late decisions.

Alva J. Hill for appellant.

J. Perez Cardenas for appellee.

DECISION

TUASON, J.:

This appeal is from an order of the Court of First Instance
of Ilocos Sur dismissing the above-entitled action by reason of
Executive Order No. 25, as amended by Executive Order 32, on
moratorium.

Ernest Berg brought the action against Valentin Teus to fore-
close a real estate and chattel mortgage executed in November,
1944, to secure six promissory notes of the aggregate value of
P80,000 and payable on demand two years after declaration of
armistice between the United States and Japan. An amended or
supplementary complaint was later admitted against the defend-
ant’s objection. The complaints recited that by stipulation of the
parties, the mortgager had undertaken, among other things, to in-
sure and pay the taxes on the mortgaged properties; not to alienate,
sell, lease, encumber or in any manner dispose thereof; and to
keep and maintain the said properties in good order and repair;
but that, it was alleged, he (defendant) had failed to keep taxes
fully paid; had made material alterations on the premises, and
lad sold and conveyed them to Central Azvcarera del Norte. It
further alleged that the mortgagor had agreed that should he fail
to perform any of his obligations as stipulated, “the mortgage
shall be deemed to be i 1 this either

extr:

ceiver is an ancillary remedy is one powerful reason why
the case should be dismissed. Case is remanded to the
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judicially, even after the death of the Mortgagor, in pursuance
of the provisions of Act No. 3135, as amended;” and on the basis of
this agreement it was prayed that the mortgage is declared auto-

March 31, 1954



matically foreclosed and the plaintiff entitled to immediate pos-
session of the properties in question. In a separate motion Berg’s
attorney also asked for the appointment of a receiver.

Counsel for the defendant having moved for the dismissal of
the complaint on the grounds that plaintiff’s cause of action had
not accrued by reason of the exccutive order hereinbefore cited,
and having opposed the motion for receivership, Judg= Zoilo Hilario
entered an order holding that as to the collection of the six notes
the suit had been prematurely brought, but setting the cause for
trial on the merits because, according to His Honor, the reasons
alleged in the motion to dismiss were not “indubitable’” with ref-
erence to the appointment of a receiver sought by the plaintiff.
As we understand this order, its result was that the moratorium
ought not to interfere with the plaintiff’s motion for appointment
of receiver.

However that may be, the plaintiff subsequently filed a ‘“‘com-
plete complaint” in which the original complaint and the amend-
ed or int were i d. This * )t
complaint”’, which was without i was
supposed to have restored the case to its original status. Con.
sequently the attorney for the defendant filed a new motion to dis-
miss; and Judge Luis Ortega, who had replaced Judge Hilario,
ignoring the latter’s order entered the order now on appeal by
which the entire action was quashed on the theory advanced in
the motion to dismiss. The new order was silent on both the
application for receivership and the prayer that the plaintiff be
adjudged authorized by the terms of the mortgage to foreclose it
extrajudicially and seize the properties.

Judge Ortega opined that Exacutive Orders Nos. 25 and 32
were still in force unaffected by Republic Act No. 342 as to debts
contracted during the Japanese occupation. Plaintiff contended
that those executive orders had passed out of existence by the
disappearance of the emergency contemplated thereby, and the con-
tention is reiterated in fthis instance. But from the view we take
of the case, decision on this question can be deferred. For the
purpose of the present decision, we will assume that Executive
Orders Nos. 256 and 32 are still in full force and effect. This we
do to pave the way for and hasten action on the petition to put
the premises and chattels involved in the hn.ndx of a reczwer, Pe-
tition which appears of urgent ch onsti
of Exccutive Orders Nos. 25 and 32 and Repubhc Act No. 342 and
allied issues can wait. These issues are delicate and would re-
quire prolonged study and deliberation. Besides, there is a pending
bill in Congress repealing those executive orders and law.

In Ricardo Medina v. Ambrosio Santos, G. R. No. L-1280, May
26, 1947, 44, No. 10 Off. Gaz, 3811, it was held that an action
for the recovery of a truck with prayer for payment of its value
in case the truck was not returned could proceed notwithstanding
the moratorium law. The Court observed that the indemnity sought
was a subsidiary liability and would not come into being unless
and until decision was rendered against the defendants for such
payment.

In Moya v. Barton, G. R. No. L-745, August 27, 1947, 45, No.
1, Off. Gaz., 237, the Court said that when the cause of action was
in part covered by the moratorium and in part not, it was not
unjust to render judgment for the payment of the entire obligation
with the understanding that execution .with respect to the amounts
that had fallen due before March 10, 1945, would be stayed.

In the case of Alejo v. Gomez, G. R. No. L-1969, May 30, 1949,
the Court ruled that suit for unlawful detainer and rents in ar-
rears was not affected by the moratorium, the recovery of the
unpaid rentals, it was said, being accessory to the main action.

And, lastly, in Realty Investments, Inc. et al. v. Mariano Villa-
nueva et al, G. R. No. L-1949, October 31, 1949, the Court citing
the above-menticned cases decided that the court should go ahead
with the trial of the action on the merits without prejudice to
the right of the defendant to arrest the execution should one for
payment of money be issued. In that case the plaintiff, which

lower court’s order of dismissal, we pointed out that De Venecia
v. General, G. R. No, L-894, 44 Off. Gaz., 4912, and Mao Sugar
Central Co. v. Conrado Barrios et al., G. R. No. L-01539, 45 Off.
Gaz., 2444, were distinguishable from Moya v. Barton, Medina v.
Santos, and Alejo v. Gomez, in that the suits in the first two
named cases had for their sole object the enforcement of a monetary
obligation.

The case at bar falls within the relaxed rule of this Court’s
later decisions. The alleged violation of the conditions of the
mortgage contract, if true, make it necessary if not imperative, for
the protection of the interest of the plaintiff, that the mortgaged
properties be placed in the custody of the court. The fact that the
appointment of a receiver, as the defendant emphasizes, is an an-
cillary remedy is precisely one powerful reason why the case
should not be dismissed. Because receivership is an auxiliary re-
medy dismissal of the main action would eliminate the only basis
for the appointment of receiver and thus completely bar the door
to any relief from mischiefs.

Under the circumstances of the case, the least that should
have been done, if that were feasible as a matter of procedure,
was to adopt the steps which Judge Hilario had proposed to do.
Judge Hilario evidently saw the grave injustice to the plaintiff
and the irreparable injury to which his rights would be exposed
if an indefinite suspension of the entire proceeding were decreed.

In suspending the right of creditor to enforce his right the
President and Congress had no idea of depriving him of all means
of preventing the destruction or alienation of the security for the
debts, destruction which would virtually write off, in some cases,
the whole credit. If that were the intention, it is doubtful if the
orders and the law invoked could stand the test of constitutionality.

The order appealed from will therefore be reversed and the case
remanded to the court below for further proceeding according to the
tenor of this decision. We leave the way open to the defendant to
ask for the arrest or stay of execution in the event of an adverse
monetary judgment, and for the plaintiff to impugn anew, if neces-
sary, the constitutionality of Executive Orders Nos. 25 and 32 and
Republic Act No. 342 and/or their being still in force. Cgsts of this
appeal will be charged against the appellee.

Moran, Paras, Feria, Pablo, B ; Padilla; M yor;
Reyes, Jugo, and Bautista Angelo — J.J. concur.

Vi1

Eulogio R. Lerum et al., Petitioners-appellants v. The People of
the Philippines, Necessary Party, vs. Roman A. Cruz et al., Respon-
dents-Appellees, G. R. No. 27183, November 29, 1950.

DECLARATORY RELIEF; IN A CRIMINAL CASE; PARTIES;
INTEREST AND PERSONALITY OF PRIVATE PROSECUTOR.
— In a petition for declaratory relief filed to test the sui-
ficiency or probative value of certain testimony given in a
criminal case, the interested party is the people of the Phil-
ippines. In such case, the city attorney should be the one
to ask for the declaratory relief if it is desired to have said
matter tested in court and if and when this step is feasible
under the law. Inasmuch as all criminal actions can only
be prosecuted under the direction and control of the fiscal
and for that matter he is the only official who can re-
present the people of the Philippines, private prosecutors,
who can only intervene subject to the control of the fiscal
or city attorney, are not the proper parties to file the afore-
said petition for declaratory relief.
Antonio Barredo, Eulogio R. Lerum and G. Viola Fernando for
appellants.
No appearance for a.ppzllees.
DECI

ISION
BAUTISTA ANGELO, J.:

This is an appeal from an order of the Court of First Ins-
tance of Rizal (Quezon City) dismissing the petition for declara-
tory relief filed by attorneys Eulogio R. Lerum and G. Viola
Fernando as private prosecutors in behalf of the People of the
P i for the purpose of testing the sufficiency and proba-

had sold to the defendant a piece of land on i 11 ts basis,
was t of the i 1 still unpaid, (install-
ment which the deiendant claimed to have fully settled with the
Japanese alien property custodian) or, in default, restoration of
the ownership and possession of the property. In revoking the
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tive value of the testimony of former Judge Roman A. Cruz to
prove a decree of divorce issued by him ‘while a judge of First
Instance of Manila sometime in 1944.

It appears that a case for bigamy was filed against Nello
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Y. Roa in the Court of Instance of Rizal (Case No. 962). In
the course of the trial held in June 16 and 30; 1948, former
Judge Roman A. Cruz was placed on the witness stand by the
defendant to prove that his wife Elena Muiioz has already secured
a decree of divorce against him in July 1944. The prosecution
objected to this move of the defendant, but the objection was
overruled, and so the prosecution filed a petition for a writ of
prohibition with this Court praying that the respondent judge
be enjoined from allowing the defendant to prove the alleged de-
cree of divorce by oral evidence (G. R. No. L-2340). The peti-
tion was dismissed for lack of merit. Judge Roman Cruz then
was allowed to testify, and his testimony reads as follows:

“SR GUANLAO:

Conoce Ud. personalmente a Elena Muiioz?

Si, sefior.
Conoce Ud. Personalmente a Nello Roa?

> e SIS R Sl |

Porque dice Ud. que conoce a Elena Muifioz?

La conozco porque fue demandante en una causa de di-
vorcio que se habia ventilado en una de las salas que
yo presidia entonces en el Juzgado de Primera Instancia
de Manila durante mi incumbencia en 1944.

VIOLA FERNANDO: i

Pido Su Sefioria el descarte de esta parte del testimonio
del testigo por ser incompetente y, ademas, es una con-
clusion.

JUZGADO:
El testigo esta declarando sobre hechos de su conocimien-
to propio.

SR. VIOLA FERNANDO:
Es una conclusion:

JUZGADO:
El testimonio del Juez Cruz no puede considerarse como
una prueba secundaria, sino mas bien que vendria a ser
como una prueba pri ia o princi cuyo di
surgio a rais de sus actuaciones oficiales como Juez
(Steno.. Notes, Transcript, pp. 4-7).
> ST SORE S U i et

GUANLAO:
P De su propio conocimiento y segun su mejor recuerdo,
se tramito ante Ud. la causa de referencia?

F e TR - S - AREE S

JUZGADO:
Se la pregunta si recuerda. x X X X x X

WY v

SR.

JUZGADO:
Eso incumbe al Juzgado. Puede contestar.
R Si, sefior. (Steno. Transcript Notes, p. 6.)
¥ X - X LoX g0 OX X

JUZGADO:
Puede contestar.

TESTIGO:
Si, sefior, Se ha tramitado ese asunto de divorcio durante
mi incumbencia en 1944, cuando presidia entonces una de
las salas de Juzgado de Primera Instancia de Manila.
Y cual fue el resultado de ese asunto de divorcio si
Ud. recuerda?
Se concedio el divorcio solicitado por la entonces de-
mandante.
Sabe Ud. se el demandado apelo de esa decision?
No podia haber apelado porque era un divorcio concedido
mediante rebeldia.
Pero Ud. no esta seguro si el demandado apelo o mo?
Que yo sepa, ni sequiera peticion de reconsideracion se
presento, ni que se hay dado curso a alguna apelacion.
(Steno. Notes, Transcript, pp. 13-14, hereto attached as
Exhibit “A”). “(Copied from G.R. No. L-2783, pp. 23-
25, record on appeal).”

The prosecution moved for the striking out of the above testi-
mony of Judge Cruz, and when the motion was denied, the pro-

W W " W
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secution again brought the case to this Court through certiorari
(G. R. No. L-2483), and again the petition was denied on the
ground that the respondent judge had power and authority to
rule on the question raised therein. After the steps taken by
the prosecution to foil the attempt to prove the alleged decree
of divorce by oral evidence proved futile, the private prosecu-
tion filed the present petition for declaratory relief.

It also appears that the petition was at first filed by City
Attorney Jose F. Fernandez, and by attorneys Eulogic R. Le-
rum and G. Viola Fernando as private prosecutors in the bi-
gamy case No. 962, but later, upon motion filed by City Attorney
Fernandez, his name was stricken out from the pleadings, and
so an amended petition was filed wherein attorneys Lerum and
Viola Fernando appeared as the only petitioners representing the
People of the Philippines. It finally appears that attorneys Le-
rum and Viola Fernando made an attempt to have the Solicitor
General appear as counsel, but this attempt was again ruled
out on the ground that under the law the Solicitor General can
only be required to intervene when the validity of a statute is in-
volved

in their brief seven (7)
committed by the lower

‘While the petitioners have assigned
errors which are alleged to have been
court, we believe that the issues raised can be boiled down into
two, to wit, (1) whether iti have the y
and interest to file the petition under consideration; and (2) whe-
ther the subject matter of the petition is among those that can
be determined by way of declaratory relief under Rule 66 of the
Rules of Court.

1. The incident giving rise to the petition for declaratory
relief arose in a criminal case for bigamy instituted against one
Nello Y. Roa. The information was filed by City Attorney Jose
F. Fernandez as required by the Rules of Court, and attorneys
Eulogio R. Lerum and G. Vicla Fernando appeared as private
prosecutors in behalf of the offerded party. The incident con-
cerns the presentation of the oral testimony of former Judge
Roman A. Cruz to prove a decree of divorce issued by him as
judge of First Instance of Manila in an effort to bring about
the acquittal of the defendant. The interested party, therefore,
in testing the sufficiency or probative value of the aforesaid testi-
mony is the People of the Philippines. In fact it is the City
Attorney who filed the two certiorari cases with this court in
a vain attempt to get a ruling on the matter. This being the
case, the City Attorney should be the one to ask for the declara-
tory relief if it is desired to have said matter tested in court and
if and when this step is feasible under the law. It appears,
however, that City Attorney Jose F. Fernandez has refused to
join the petitioners in filing the herein petition for declaratory
relief as shown by his attitude in asking that his name be strick-
en out from the pleadings. This attitude is indicative that the
government has no interest in prosecuting the petition, and inas-
much as all eriminal actions can only be prosecuted under the
direction and control of the fiscal and for that matter he is the
only official who can represent the People of the Philippines
(Sec. 4, Rule 106, of the Rules of Court: Herrero et al. v. Diaz,
42 Off. Gaz., 1166), it is evident that the petitioners herein, who
as private prosecutors can only intervene subject to the control
of the City Attorney (Herrero et al. v. Diaz, id.), are not the
proper parties to file the petition under consideration.

2. Granting for the sake of argument that the petitioners
herein can be considered as parties in interest within the meaning
of the statute, the next question to determine is whether the
subject matter which they want to be tested is among those men-
tioned in section 1, rule 66, of the Rules of Court.

Under this rule, only a person who is interested “under a
deed, will, contract or other written instrument, and whose rights
are affected by a statute or ordinance, may bring an action to
determine any question of construction or validity arising under
the instrument or statute and for a declaration of his rights or
duties thereunder.” This means that the subject matter
must refer to a deed, will, contract or other written instrument,
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or to a statute or ordinance, to warrant ry relief. Any
other matter not mentioned therein is deemed excluded. This is
under the principle of expressio unius est exclussio ailerius.

Now, does the subject matter under corsideration come with-
in the import of the ruie? The answer cannot but be in the

his property to his daughter Lucila; and (3) the deed of parti-
tion between Juan Ornedo and the intervenors by virtue of which
the latter were assigned a share in Severina Mistal’s estate, was,
in the opinion of the court. veid and of no effect.

The two applicants and the intervenors filed motions for re-

negative, tor it does not refer to any written statute

ion on the ground that ‘“‘the decision is against the law.”

or ordinance. It merely refers to the sutficiency or probative
value of an oral evidence concerning a decree of divorce issued
by a former judge, which the court trying the bigamy case has
ample power .and authority to pass upon. This is not the op-
portune moment to look into the correctness of the ruling of the
court in said bigamy case aliowing the presentation of oral evi-
dence to prove a decree of divorce under the circumstances at
present obtaining, for the bigamy case is still pending determina-
tion. This will be determined in due time when properly pre-
sented before this Court. For the purposes of this appeal, it
suffices for this Court to declare that the subject matter of the
petition does not warrant the granting of declaratory relief
within the meaning of said Rule 66.

Wherefore, the order appealed from is affirmed, without pro-
nouncement as to costs.

Moran, Paras, Feria,

Montemayor, Reyes, and Jugo.

Pablo; Bengzon; Padilla, Tuason:

— J.J. concur.

VIII

Lucila Ornedo, Petitioner vs. Judge Eusebio F. Ramos et al., Res-
pondent G. R, No. L-2898, December 23, 1950.

CERTIORARI; CERTIORARI IS PREDICATED ON LOWER

COURT’S POSITIVE ACTION BUT NOT A REMEDY FOR IN-

ACTION. — By its nature, certiorari is predicated on a positive
or affirmative action that is injurious to the interests of the
complainant. It is not a remedy for a lower court’s inaction
irrespective of the reasons given therefor.

F. Milambiling for petitioner.

Panfilo M. Manguera for respondents Mabute and Magna La-
baguis.

DECISION
TUASON, J.:

It appears that Epifania Mabute applied in the Court of
Trist Instance of Marinduque for letters of administration of
the intestate estate of Severina Mistal, application which was doc-
keted as Civil Case No. 656. Shortly thereafter Jacinta Ornedo
filed a similar application with reference to the estate of Juan
Ornedo, Severina Mistal’s husband who died after her. The latter
application was docketed as Civil Case No. 659.

Lucila Ornedo, Juan Ornedo’s illegitimate daughter whose
mother he married after his first wife’s death, and Natalia Mus-
nit, Lucila’s mother, opposed both applications. It seems that
the basis of .the opposition, or the principal basis, was that the
title to the properties of both decedents had already vested in
L;.la Ornedo by donation from her father.

The two applications, by agreement of the parties, were heard
jointly before Judge Mariano Melendres on July 9, 1946. On
July 24, before the applications were decided, six cousins of Se-
verina Mistal filed a complaint in intervention which was admit-
ted. The intervenors claimed a share in Severina Mistal’s es-
tate by agreement with Juan Ornedo as Severina’s surviving es-
pouse.

Judge Melendres having been assigned to another judicizl dis-
trict before he could write his decision, and as the stenographic
notes taken at the trial had been lost, the two applications for
" letters of administration and the intervention were again set down
for hearing and, also by agreement of the parties, were consoli-
dated for trial before Judge Enriquez who had succeeded Judge
Melendres. In the second trial as well as in the first the owmer-
ship to the properties involved was submitted and in Judge En-
Tiquez’s decision adjudicated in the manner set forth in the next
following paragraph.

On July 31 Judge both li for
letters of and the in intervention. The
reasons were: (1) all the property of Severina Mistal had passed
to her surviving spouse, Juan Ornedo, by operation of law, Mis-
tal having no legal heirs; (2) Juan Ornedo in life had donated
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As Judge Enriquez this time had been detailed to unother prov-
ince, like Judge Melendres before him, it fell upon the lot of
Judge Eusebio F. Ramos, who had taken Judge Enriquez’s place,
to act on the said motions for reconsideration.

Judge Ramos’ decision or order rendered on October 15 set
aside Judge Enriquez’s order or decision on the ground that “it
does not appear that the original hearing of the petition(s) in
said cases have been duly published as required by the Rules of
Court” so that the court, Judge Ramos opined, had acquired no
jurisdiction. But Judge Ramos did not stop here. With apparent
inconsistency, he decreed the definite dismissal of Case No. 656
and of the intervention and held (1) that Natalia Musnit, Juan
Ornedo’s widow and Lucila Ornedo’s co-opponent, had no interest
in her deccased husband’s estate “at least (except) as usufruc-
tuary over a certain (portion) of the property,” and (2) that
“when Severina Mistal died her heir was her husband Juan Or-
nedo to the exclusion of her cousins,” the intervenors. In other
words, although as he said, the court had acquired no jurisdiction,
His Honor went into the merits of the controversy.

With regard to case No. 659, the set-aside order was in keep-
ing with the theory of lack of jurisdiction. With reference to
this case, the order was that “the hearing of the petition x x x be
published as required by law, the date of the hearing to be set at
next calendar of this Court.”

The present petition for certiorari was brought by Lucila Or-
nedo without her mother, her co-opponent to the application for
letters of administration, and makes Judge Ramos, Jacinta Or-
nedo and the intervenors respondents. For answer, the respon-
dents question, among other things, the availability of certiorari
to review Judge Ramos’ order, it being contended that the res-
pondent Judge did not act outside or in excess of his jurisdiction
and that there is plain, speedy and adequate remedy by appeal.

The issues and the arguments have been complicated and con-
fused by the inclusion in the proceedings below and in the various
orders, of matters not quite germane to the right of the appli-
cants to appointments as administratrixes, such as the conflict-
ing claims of ownership to the properties. The order complained
of presents two aspects which should be taken up separately for
clarity’s sake. And before we proceed, it is well to take note
that Judge Ramos’ order is not assailed in so far as it refers
to case No. 656 which, for that reason, will be left out of the
following discussion. )

As has been seen, Judge Ramos did not render a decision on
the merits of the application in Case No. 659; he merely directed
that the application be published and he postponed the hearing
thereof to the next calendar of the court after such publication
should have been made.

It is at once obvious that this order is not a cause for com-
plaint on the part of Lucila Ornedo. The postponement of the
hearing and the publication of the application are not the con-
cern of the opponent, except perhaps for the delay they would en-
tail. The cost of publication is to be defrayed by the applicant,
and the is in it of the 1 property to
the exclusion of all others and is not being bothered in the en-
joyment of its produce. In this aspect of the case the petitioner
clearly has no cause of action.

The true reason, not plainly apparent on the surface of the
leadi: and the da, for the seemiing paradox of the
applicant’s acquiescence in or defense of the respondent Judge’s
order and for the opponent’s vigorous exception thereto is, that
in setting aside Judge Enriquez’s order, Judge Ramos destroyed
an advantage Lucila Ornedo had already achieved. Judge En-
riquez’s order mnot only dismissed the application for letters of
administration but made a definite declaration that Lucila Or-
nedo was the absolute owner of the properties sought to be placed
under judicial administration. By this award the opponent had,
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in a manner of speaking, won the first and very important round
of the contest which Judge Ramos’ order set at naught.

It is said, with good reason, apropos of this feature of the
case that the respondent Judge was wrong in saying that the
application had not been published. Lucila. Ornedo’s counsel points
out that the required publication was made in La Nueva Era, 2
newspaper of general circulation in the province of Marinduque,
before the first trial, and that copxcs of the pericdical catrymz
the notice plus supporting ids were i,
at that trial held by Judge Melendres.

Lucila Ornedo’s counsel also calls attention, with support
of precedents and authorities, to the fact that with the consent
or acquiescence of the parties concerned, title to property in-
volved in a testate or intestate proceeding may be litigated and
adjudged by the probate court. Lucila Ornedo did not do so
but she could also cite the fact that the movants’ motions for

ids ion of Judge it ’s order did not impugn the sui-
ficiency of the publication, nor did they attack the court’s juris-
diction to give judgment on the conflicting claims of ownership
between the parties.

Even so, certiorari does not lie. Relief must be sought by
other mode of procedure. The error, if error was committed by
Judge Ramos, was one of omission and not commission. To set
aside Judge Enriquez’s order was within Judge Ramos’ jurisdic-
tion, in much the same manner and to the same extent that

Judge Enriquez, if he had not been replaced, would have author-

ity to change, modify or reverse his decision or order.

Judge Ramos’ order amounts simply to a refusal, notwith<
standing the parties’ agreement, to determine the validity of the
alleged donation executed by the now deceased Ornedo in favor
of his daughter, partly because, according to the Judge, the ap-
plication for letters of administration had not been published, and
principally because, in his judgment, this matter should be tried
in a separate, ordinary action. In the last analysis, the peti-
tioner’s contention could only be that in the present state of the
proceedings in the court below Judge Ramos should decide’ the
motions for reconsideration and affirm Judge Enriquez’s order
without requiring a new publication of, the application for let-
ters of administration.

By its nature, certiorari is predicated on a positive or affir-
mative action that is injurious to the interests of the complain-
ant. It is not a remedy for a lower court’s inaction, irrespective
of the reasons given therefor.

Upon the foregoing considerations, the petition for certiorari
is dismissed without special finding as to costs.

Moran, Feria, Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla, Montemayor, Reyes,
Jugo, and Bautista Angelo, concur.
Mr. Justice Paras voted for dismissal.

X

Paz E. Siguiong, Plaintiff-Appellee vs. Go Tecson et al., Defendant-

Appell}'n.ts, G. R. Nos. L-3430-3431, May 23, 1951.

1. DESCENT & DISTRIBUTION; MORTGAGES; ONLY ACT-
UAL FILING OF CLAIM IN INTESTATE OR PRO-
CEEDINGS CAN CONSTITUTE WAIVER OF MORT-
GAGE LIEN. — In order that a mortgage creditor may
be said to have waived his mortgage lien against an estate,
he must appezr to have formally filed his claim in the
testate or intestate proceeding. The fact that the ad-
ministrator has merely made an overture to pay the mort-
gage debt and the mortgagees (or one of them) have sig-
nified willingness to accept payment, is not sufficient to
constitute a waiver of the mortgage lien, where there is
nothing to show that the offer of payment has been pre-
ceded by the formal filing of a claim. Without that
formality, the mortgagees cannot be deemed to have waived
their mortgage so as to be estopped from bringing a fore-
closure suit.
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2.PLEADING & PRACTICE; ANSWER; MATTER NOT SET
UP AS DEFENSE IN ANSWER OR MOTION TO DIS-
MISS CAN NOT BE RELIED UPON AS A GROUND
ON APPEAL. — The validity or the constitutionality of
Republic Act 342 cannct be made an issue on appeal,
where moratorium has not been invoked as a defense or as
a ground for a motion to dismiss.
Bienvetido A. Tan, Jr. for appellant.
J. Perez Cardenas for appellees.
DECISION
REYES, J.:

On October 1, 1927, Paulino P. Gocheco mortgaged to Paz E.
Siguion a piece of registered real property in the Cily of Manila
to secure a debt of P30,000.00. Some ten years later, he constituted
a second mortgage on the same property in favor of Paz E. Si-
guion’s son, Alberto Maximo Torres, to secure a debt of P20,000.
Both mortgages were duly registered.

Gocheco died in 1943 without having discharged either mort-
gage. The following year, di for the 1 of his
estate were instituted in the Court of First Instance of Manila,
and Go Tecson was inted judicial ini

On February 3, 1949, the present actions were filed against
the administrator Go Tecson for the foreclosure of the two mort-
gages, and judgment having been rendered against him in both,
he has elevated the cases here by way of appeal, contending that
the lower court erred in not holding (1) that he could no longer
be sued as administrator because the administration proceedings
had already been closed; (2) that the matter in controversy was
already res judicata; (3) that plaintiffs’ claim had already been
paid; and (4) that Republic Act No. 342 was unconstitutional and
void.

The first error assigned deserves no serious consideration, it
appearing from the certificate of the Clerk of the Court of First
Instance of Manila (Exh. “B”) that the order for the distribution
of the estate among the heirs has mot as yet been complied with.
In fact, counsel for appellant admits in his brief that, technically
speaking, the administration proceedings are still pending.

As to the second assignment of error, the record does not dis-
close facts sufficient to support the claim of res judicata. The
record of the administration proceedings, if already reconstituted,
has not been presented, and nowhere does it appear that a claim
for the mortgage indebtedness was formally filed in the adminis-
tration proceedings and that it was there litigated and judicially
determined. There is, for sure an alleged order read at the hear-
ing, which says:

ORDER

“A written constancia having been forwarded to this Court
by regisiered mail by Paz E. Siguion, wherein she made known
her willi to accept the p: for the mortgage obliga-
tion contracted by the deceased, Paulino P. Gochocho within
ten (10) days after receipt of the written notice from the ad-
ministrator signifying his intention to pay, the Court hereby
advises the herein administrator to take the necessary steps

to make payment to said Paz E. Siguion.

So ordered.
“Manila, Philippines September 7, 1044
“(8GD.) ROMAN A. CRUZ
. Judge’

This order conveys the information that the administrator
has made an overture to pay the mortgage debt and the mortgagees
(or one of them) have signified willingness to accept payment.
But there is nothing in the order to show that the offer of payment
has been preceded by the formal filing of a claim. Without that
formality, the mortgagees cannot be deemed to have waived their
mortgage so as to be estopped from bringing a foreclosure suit.
“In order that the mortgage creditor may be said to have
waived his mortgage lien, he must appear to have filed formal-
ly his claim in the testate or intestate proceeding. The fact
that he requested the committee on claims (now abolished) to
take the necessary measures to have his claim paid at its ma-
turity, does not imply that he has presented such claim as
to be estopped from foreclosing his mortgage. So, also, the
mere fact of bringing his credit to the attention of the com-
mittee on claim for the purpose of having it included among
the debts and taken into account in case the estate should be
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sold, but with a statement at the same time that said claim
is secured by a mortgage duly registered, is not equivalent to
filing the claim and does not, therefore, constitute a waiver of
said mortgage.” (II Moran, Comments on the Rules of Court
3rd ed. p. 406).

The payment alleged in the third assignment of error is not
evidenced by any recelpt, and there is nothmg to support it ex-
cept the bare d of the i ’s former attorney,
Judge Bienvenido Tan, to the effect that, threatened with con-
tempt proceedings for refusing o receive payment, the appellee
Paz E. Siguion came to see him in his office and accepted the
payment tendered by him. But the testimony is denied by this ap-
pellee, and we note that Judge Tan has merely inferred from
what she told him on that occasion that she was then accepting
the money tendered by him in payment for the debt, an inference
not ‘warranted by appellee’s actual words, as may be seen from
following testimony of Judge Tan:

“Q Meaning to say that you personally paid her the money?

“A After the motion (to cite for contempt) was presented
Mrs. P2z Siguion went to my office and told me that
there was no need of presenting the motion and for
me to ask the court that she be declared in contempt
since she was willing to accept payment. -And I told
her that if she was willing to accept payment I have
the money in my office. I took the money from a ‘ba-
yong’ and delivered it to her but she said: ‘Well, I am
sorry I cannot carry this bag of money with me be-
cause it is very dangerous and besides I am going to the
province. Will you please keep it yet in your office un-
til I call for it?” That is what I meant that she ac-
cepted the payment.

“Q And, the money, Judge Tan, remained with you?

“A  Yes, it remained with me.

“Q Until when?

Until now. It is still in the office.”

Far from expressing actual aceptance of payment and con-
sequent signification of intention to have the money kept for
her by Judge Tan as her depositary despite the fact that he was
attorney for the adverse party, appellee’s words should rather be
construed as a refusal on her part to receive payment, an inter-
pretation which would be consistent with her previous attitude in
repeatedly declining to receive payment, as denounced in Judge
Tan’s motion for contempt, and also in consonance with what
may be expected to be the natural reaction of any creditor to
a tender of payment in the depreciated currency of those days
(October, 1944). Indeed, had the money really been accepted, con-
sidering the amount involved, a receipt would surely have been
required for the same; and not only a receipt, but also a release
or discharge of mortgage. No such document, however, has been
signed by Paz E. Siguion, it does not even appear that the money
was counted. In the circumstances, we have no hesitation in
holding that the lower court did not err in not finding that the
mortgage debt has already been paid.

As to the fourth and last assignment of error, the record does
not show that appellant has in a definite and suitable manner in-
voked moratorium in the court below. That defense was neither
pleaded in the answer nor made a ground for a motion to dismiss.
On the other hand, the answer admits the allegation of the com-
plaint that the moratorium on prewar debts has already been
lifted by Republic Act No. 342 subject to the exception or con-
dition therein specified in favor of debtors who have filed their
claim with the War Damage Commission, to which class the
estate represented by appellant does not belong since it has not
filed any war damage claim. All this revcals lack of utenhon
to resort to the defense of moratori when

sel probably meant to challenge the constitutionality of Repub-
lic Act No. 342, But the petmon to amend was withdrawn when
it ion from the adverse party, and
in any event the validity of that Act cannot be made an issue
since moratorium has not been invoked as a defense or as a
ground for a motion to dismiss.

In view of the foregoing, and without passing on the con-
stitutionality of Republic Act No. 342 because it is not a necessary
1ssue in the case, the decision appealed from is affirmed, with
costs against the appellant.

Paras, Feria, Bengzon, Padilla Tuasor, Montemayor, Jugo and
Angelo. — J.J. concur

Pablo, J., took no part.

X

Hernandez et al., Petitioners vs. Emilio Pefia et al., Respondents,
G.R. No. L-2777, May 19, 1950.

FORCIBLE ENTRY AND DETAINER; DEPOSIT OF RENT
URING PENDENCY OF APPEAL; EXTENSION OF TIME
NOT ALLOWED. — Section 8 of Rule 72 of the Rules of Court
provides that should the defendant fail to make the payment
or deposit of the rent during the pendency of the appeal, the
Court of First Instance, upon motion of the plaintiff of which
the defendant shall have notice, and upon proof of such failure,
shall order the execution of the judgment appealed from. The
court has no jurisdi to allow i of time for such
payment
Leoncio C. Jimenez for petitioners.
Pedro Valdes Liongson for respondents.
ECISION

OZAETA, J.:

Ines Oliveros, as defendant in an unlawful detainer case pend-
ing before the respondent Judge Emilio Pefia on appeal from the
Municipal Court, failed to deposit with the Clerk of Court the rent
of P200 corresponding to the month of October, 1948, in accordance
with the judgment of the Municipal Court. A motion for the is-
suance of a writ of execution was filed by the petitioners on Novem-
ber 23, 1948, which was opposed by the respondent on the ground
that her failure to make the deposit was due to the fact that she
had instituted in this court a petition for cortiorari and prohibition
(G.R. No. L-2602), in which she prayed to be relieved of the ob-
ligation of making a monthly deposit of P200.

Acting upon said motion and the reply thereto, the respondent
judge on December 21, 1948, issued the following order:

“The Court orders the defendants to deposit in Court the
rents corresponding to the months of October and November,
1948, within five days from the receipt of a copy of this or-
der, and should they fail to do 50, it is hereby ordered that
the 2 di writ of be issued.”

The above-quoted order, which is the subject of the present
petition for certiorari and mandamus, is contrary to section 8 of
Rule 72 and the decisions of this court in various cases. Said
rule provides that should the defendant fail to make the payment
or deposit of the rent during the pendency of the appeal, “the court
of First Instance, upon motion of the plaintiff of which the de-
fendant shall have notice, and upon proof of such failure, shall
order the ion of the led from . . .” This
court has repeatedly held that the Court of First Instance has no
jurisdiction to allow extensions of time for such payments. (Lapuz
vs. Court of First Instance of Pampanga, 46 Phil. 77; Arcega vs.
Dizon, G.R. No. L-195, 42 Off. Gaz. 2138; Meneses vs. Dinglasan,
G.R. No. L-2088, Sept. 9, 1948.)

The mere filing by the respondent Ines Oliveros of a petition
for certiorari and prohibtion, praying that she be relieved of the

ed in connection with the allegation in the answer that despite
defendant’s repeated attempts to pay the debt, plaintiffs have
refused to accept payment. It is true that at the conclusion of
the trial appellant’s counsel in open court asked for leave to
amend his answer “so as to allege therem,” to use his own lan-
guage, “that the i is »” By this coun-
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of making the monthly deposit, did not ipso facto re-
lieve her of such obligation, as the respendent judge himself im-
pliedly held by requiring her to make the deposit within five days.

The order complained of is set aside, and the respondent judge
is hereby directed to issue the writ of execution prayed for by
the petitioners, with costs against the respondent Ines Oliveros.

Pablo, Bengzon, Tuason, Montemayor, and Reyes, — J.J.; concur
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Agustina Paranete et. al., Petitioners, vs. Hon. Bienvenido Tan, et
al., Respondents, G.R. No. L-3791, November 29, 1950.

PROHIBITION; OWNERSHIP OF REAL PROPERTY IN LITI-

GATION; ORDER REQUIRING ACCOUNTING AND DEPOSIT

OF PROCEEDS OF HARVEST WITH CLERK OF COURT, IM-

PROPER. — A trial court issuing an order requiring the party in
possession of the property whose ownership is in litigation, to
to make an accounting and to deposit the proceeds of the sale
of the harvest with the Clerk of Court acted in excess of its
Jjurisdiction. That order, in effect, made the Clerk of Court a
sort of a receiver charged with the duty of receiving the pro-
ceeds of sale and the harvest of every year during the pen-
dency of the case with the disadvantage that the Clerk of
Court has not filed any bond to guarantee the faithful dis-
charge of his duties as depositary; and considering that in
actions involving title to real property, the appointment of
a receiver cannot be entertained because its effect would be
to take the property out of the possession of the defendant,
except in extreme cases when there is clear proof of its ne-
cessity to save the plaintiff from grave and irremediable loss
or damage, it is evident that the action of the respondent
judge is unwarranted and unfair to the defendants

Emiliano M. Ocampo for petitioners.

Jose E. Morales for respondents Felix Alcaras, and Fructuosa,
Mazxima and Norberta, all surnamed Vasquez.

DECISION
BAUTISTA ANGELO, J.:

This is a petition for a writ of prohibition wherein petitioner
seeks to enjoin the respondent judge from enforcing his order of
March 4, 1950, on the ground that the same was issued in excess
of his jurisdiction.

On January 16, 1950, Felix Alcaras, Fructuosa Vasquez, Maxi-
ma Vasquez and Norberfa Vasquez filed a case in the Court of
First Instance of Rizal for the recovery of five (5) parcels of land
against Agustina Paranete and six other codefendants. (Civil Case
No. 1020). On January 28, 1950, plaintiffs filed a petition for a
writ of preliminary injunction for the purpose of ousting the de-
fendants from the lands in litigation and of having themselves
placed in possession thereof. The petition was heard ex parte, and
as a result the respondent judge issued the writ of injunction re-
quested. On February 28, 1950, the defendants moved for the re-
consideration of the order granting the writ, to which plaintiffs
objected, and after due hearing, at which both parties appeared
with their respective counsel, the respondent judge reconsidered his
order, but required the defendants to render an accounting of the
harvest for the year 1949, as well as all future harvests, and if
the harvest had already been sold, to deposit the proceeds of the
sale with the Clerk of Court, allowing the plaintiffs or their rc-
presentative to be present during ecach harvest. This order was
issued on March 4, 1950. Defendants again filed a motion for the
reconsideration of this order, but it was denied, hence the petition
under consideration.

The question to be determined is whether or not the respondent
judge exceeded his jurisdiction in issuing his order of March 4,
1950, under the terms and conditions set forth above.

We hold that the respondent judge has acted in excess of his
jurisdiction when he issued the order above adverted to. That or-
der, in effect, made the Clerk of Court a sort of a receiver charged
with the duty of receiving the proceeds of sale and the harvest of
every year during the pendency of the case with the disadvantage
that the Clerk of Court has not filed any bond to guarantee the
faithful discharge of his duties as depositary; and considering that
in actions involving title to real property, the appointment of a re-
ceiver cannot be entertained because its cffect would be to take
the property out of the possession of the defendant, except in ex-
treme cases when there is clear proof of its necessity to save the
plaintiff from grave and irremediable loss or damage, it is evident
that the action of the dent judge is d and un-
fair to the defendants. (Mendoza v. Arellano, 36 Phil. 59; Ago-
noy v. Ruiz, 11 Phil. 204; Aquino v. Angeles David, 1-275; prom.
Aug. 27, 1946; Ylarde v. Enriquez, supra; Arcega v. Pecson, 44
Off. Gaz. (No. 12) 4884; Carmen Vda. de De la Cruz v. Guinto,
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45 Off. Gaz. pp. 1309, 1311.) Moreover, we find that Agustina
Paranete, one of the defendants, has been in possession of the
lands since 1943, in the exercise of her rights as owner, with her
codefendants working for her exclusively as tenants, and that
during all these years said Agustina Paranete had made improve-
ments thereon at her own expense. These improvements were
made without any contribution on the part of the plaintiffs. The
question of ownership is herein invelved and both parties seem to
have documentary evidence .in support of their respective claims,
and to order the defendants to render an accounting of the har-
vest and to deposit the proceeds in case of sale thereof during
the pendency of the case would be to deprive them of their means
of livelihood before the case is decided on the merits. The situa-
tion obtaining is such that it does not warrant the placing of the
lands in the hands of a neutral person as is required when a re-
ceiver is appointed. To do so would be unfair and would un-
necessarily prejudice the defendants.

While the respondent judge claims in his order of March 25,
1950, that he acted as he did because of a verbal agreement enter-
ed into between the lawyers of both parties, we do not consider
it necessary to pass on this point because the alleged agreement
is controverted and nothing about it has been mentioned by the
respondent judge in his order under consideration.

Wherefore, petition is hereby granted. The Court declares
the order of the respondent judge of March 4, 1950 null and void
and enjoins him from enforcing it as prayed for in the petition.

Paras, Feria, Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla; Tuason; Montemayor;
Reyes, and Jugo, J.J., concur.

X1

Tomas T. Fabella, Petitioner, vs. Tiburcio Tancinco et al.,
dents, G. R. No. L-3541, May 31, 1950. b

PLEADING & PRACTICE; EXECUTION; PROCEDURE IN OR-
DER THAT BOND FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTON MAY BE
APPLIED TO SATISFACTION OF JUDGEMENT. — A bond filed
for the issuance of preliminary injunction is not one given'
under section 2 of Rule 39 to guarantee the performance of
an appealed judgment. The preliminary injunction issued in
this case was for the purpose of staying the execution of a
judgment which is scught to be set aside on the ground of
fraud, accident, mistake or excusable negligence. Such a
bond is specifically authorized by section 5 of Rule 38, and
its condition is that if the petition to reopen is dismissed or
petitioner fails on the trial of the case upon its merits, the
petitioner “will pay the adverse party all damages and costs
that may be awarded to him by reason of the issuance of
such injunction, or the other proceedings following the pe-
tition.”  Such bond “will not answer for the amount of
the judgment sought to be set aside.” (I Moran, Rules of
Court, 636.) As directed by section 9 of Rule 60 the damages
recoverable on a bond of this kind ‘“shall be claimed, as-
certained and awarded under the same procedure as pres-
cribed in section 20 of Rule 59, which clearly contemplates
that before damages could be recovered on the bond, there
must first be an application with due notice to the other
party and his sureties setting forth the facts showing ap-
plicant’s right to damages and the amount thereof. To this
application, the other party may interpose his pleading, and
upon the issue thus being joined the matter will be tried
and determined.
Alberto R. de Joya for petitioner.
Cecilio 1. Lim and Antonio M. Castro for respondents.
DECISION

Respon-

REYES, J.:

This is a petition for certiorari to annul two orders of the
Court of First Instance of Manila in Civil' Case No. 3354, entitled
Juan A. Ramos et al. vs. Tomas T. Fabella.

1947,. plaintiffs in said case

a against for the sum of P4,050.00
plus legal mterest and costs. Defendant did not appeal, but on
March 17, 1948, he filed a petition to have the judgment set aside,

It a.ppea.xs that on December 24,
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and, in accordance with section 5 of Rule 38, Rules of Court, and
upon the filing of a bond for P4,050.00, he had the court issue a

issuance of such injunction, or the other proceedings following
the petition.” Such a bond “will not answer for the amount of

preliminary injunction to prevent the j from being ted.

The petition to set aside the judgment was granted. But in
the new trial that followed, defendant again lost. Not only that;
plaintiffs were allowed to recover more, for in the new judgment
that was rendered, defendant was ordered to pay them P12,400.00,
plus interest, in addition to the sum previously adjudged. Noti-
fied of this new judgment on July 21, 1949, defendant filed his
motion for reconsideration 33 days thereafter, but it was denied
by the court on the ground that the said judgment had already
become final.

On August 30, 1949, the court, at the instance of plaintiffs,
ordered the issuance of a writ of execution, and on the 21st of
the following month, again at plaintiffs’ instance, ordered the
above mentioned bond confiscated, “to be applied,” so the order
says, “in partial satisfaction of the judgment rendered herein.”
Reconsideration of this last order having been denied by the court
below, its annulment is now sought in the present petition.

On October 4, 1949, defendant filed a petition to set aside
the order of August 30, denying reconsideration of the second de-
cision for the reason that the same had already become final.
As ground for this petition defendant alleged that the late filing
of his motion for reconsideration was due to mistake and excusable
negligence, more specifically as follows: -

“1. That the said motion for reconsideration was not
filed on time, i. e., August 20, 1949, due to mistake and ex-

the j sought to be set aside.” (I Moran, Rules of Court, 636).

As directed by Section 9 of Rule 60, the damages recoverable
on a bond of this kind “shall be claimed, ascertained and award-
ed under the same procedure as prescribed in section 20 of Rule
69, which, in so much as is pertinent to this case, provides:

“x x X X. Such damages may be awarded only upon ap-
plication and after proper hearing, and shall be included in
the final judgment. The application must be filed before
the trial or, in the discretion of the court, before entry of
the final judgment, with due notice to the plaintiff and his
surety or sureties, setting forth the facts showing his right to
damages and the amount thereof. x x x.”

This provision clearly contemplates that before damages could
be recovered on the bond here under consideration, there must
first be an application with due notice to the other party and his
sureties setting forth the facts showing applicant’s right to da-
mages and the amount thereof. To this application, the other
party may interpose his pleading, and upon the issue thus being
joined, the matter will be tried and determined. But the res-
pondent judge appears to have completely disregarded this pro-
cedure and, without hearing on the amount of damages and with-
out even notice to the surety, declared the bond confiscated and
ordered it applied to the satisfaction of the judgment, merely on
the gratuitous assumption that the plaintiffs had suffered damages
in the amount of the bond. The order is illegal and should there-
fore be revoked.

As to the other order herein complained of, it should be re-

cusable neglect on the part of the clerk of the
counsel, which consists in that said clerk, Miss Jovita Nier-
ras, had been sick from August 18, 1949 to August 22, 1949,
and consequently she was absent and did not come to the
office of the undersigned, during the said period; that inas-
much as the undersigned had been relying upon her said
clerk to remind him of the filing of pleadings, records, briefs,
etc. as they become due, and that said clerk had been absent
during the said period, and failed to notify the undersigned
of the last day for the filing of the said record on appeal,
and the undersigned counsel not knowing of the exact last
day for the perfection of the appeal in this case, he was not
able to perfect the appeal in this case; that the truth of
the matter being said clerk had been preparing the record
on appeal in this case; that defendant had not had the
intention to abandon his appeal in this case; that the amount
involved in the appeal is more than P16,400; that it would
be an injustice to the herein defendant to be deprived of
his right to appeal in this case; that the said defendant has
been the victim of persecution, eriminal and civil, which
has impoverished hiim; that his case is meritorious and that
the judge then presiding over this Honorable Court. the
Hon. Buenaventura Ocampo had not fully appreciated the
evidence and the law in this case; that no violation of any
substantial right of the plaintiffs in this case could be incurred,
in view of the fact that said plaintiffs had already levied
upon all the properties of the herein defendant, including
those which are by law exempt from execution, thus totally
depriving the herein defendant of his only means of livelihood.”

This petition was also denied in an order rendered November
4, 1949. This is the second order whose annulment is herein sought.

Going back to the order for the confiscation of the bond, it
should be noted that the said bond is not one given under section
2 of Rule,39 to guarantee the performance of an appealed judg-
ment, but one required for the issuance of a writ of preliminary
injunction to stay the execution of a judgment which is sought
to be set aside on the ground of fraud, accident, mistake or ex-
cusable negligence. Such a bond is specifically authorized by
Section 5 of Rule 38, and its condition is that if the petition to
reopen is dismissed or petitioner fails on the trial of the case
upon its merits, the petitioner “will pay the adverse party all
damages and costs that may be awarded to him by reason of the
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llected that dant’s motion for a reconsideration of the se-
cond judgment was filed after the said judgment had already
become final. It was, therefore, properly demied. It may be
added that the motion was merely pro forma. But 35 days after
the denial of the motion. de d; sought of
the order of denial, alleging as a ground that the tardiness in
the filing of the first motion was due to ‘“mistake and excusable
neglect” on the part of his clerk who, it was alleged, had been’
absent from office on account of sickness, and invoking the pre-
cedent established by this Court in Coombs vs. Santos, 24 Phil.
446, and in Siguenza vs. Mun. of Hinigaran, 14 Phil. 495. It may
well be disputed whether an attorney could be excused for the
negligence of his clerk where there is no showing that he him-
celf has shown diligence or has done anything to guard against
such negligence. But assuming that a case of that kind
is covered by the precedent laid down in the cases cited, it may
not be amiss to point out that the defendants in those cases had
not had their day in court, for judgment was obtained against
them by default, and this consideration must have weighed heavily
in the mind of the Court. Such is not the situation here. The
judgment which petitioner seeks to set aside is one that has been
rendered after regular trial, and the first motion for reconsidera-
tion does not contain any prima facie showing that the judgment
was wrong. Indeed, said motion for reconsideration was merely
pro forma, based on the bare statement that the decision was
contrary to law and was ‘not supported by the evidence. And
nothing was said at that time why the motion was filed out »f time.

A petition for reconsideration on the ground of excusable
negligence is addressed to the sound discretion of the court. This
discretion can not be interfered with except in a clear case of ab-
use. Taking into account all the circumstances of the case, we
are not prepared to say that the respondent judge did not make
a good use of its discretion in refusing to set aside his order
denying rec of the jud on the ground that this
had already become final.

‘Wherefore, the order of September 21, 1949, for the confis-
cation of the bond is hereby revoked; but the order of November
4, 1949, denying the motion to set aside the order of August 30.
which in turn denies ideration of the j is affirmed.
Without pronouncement as to the costs

0Ozaeta, Pablo, Bengzon, Tuason, Montemayor, J.J.; concur.
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XII

Santiago Degala, Plaintiff-Appellee vs. Cecilia Reyes et al.,
fendants-Appellants, G.R. No. 2402, November 29, 1950,

PLEADING AND PRACTICE; INDISPENSABLE PARTIES; DE-
CLARATORY RELIEF. — The Roman Catholic church, or its legal
representative, the Roman Catholic Bishop of Nueva Segovia,
has interest in defending the validity of the trust created in
the will in question and its interest would be affected by
the declaration of nullity of the trust. “When declaratory
relief is sought all persons shall be made parties who have
or claim any interest which would be affected by the de-
claration...” (Rule 66, sec. 3.) “And the absence of a
defendant with such adverse interest is a jurisdictional de-
fect, and no declaratory judgment can be rendered (1 C.J.S.,
p. 1049). But the Roman Catholic Church, or its legal

De-

which leave certain properties of the testatrix for the saying of
masses for the soul of the testatrix and her relatives and for the
maintenance and repair of the church, convent and the old chapel
of the Roman Catholic cemetery of Sta. Maria and of the church
of Burgos, Ilocos Sur, create a charitable and religious trust, and
this court in the case of Government of the P. I. vs. Abadilla,
46 Phil. 642, 647, quoting Perry on Trusts, held that in regard
to private trust it is not always necessary that the cestui que trust
should be in esse at the time the trust is created in his favor,
and that in charitable trust the rule is still further relaxed. And
(2) as to prohibition to alienate the properties in trust, Art.
”85 ot the vanl Code provides that in fiduciary substitutions “dis-

pre ition and 'y prohibi-
tion beyond the limits fixed by Art. 781 are inoperative; and that
Art. 792 prescribes that, impossible conditions and those contrary
to law and good morals imposed in testamentary disposition shall

representatives, was not included as party defendant in the
present case.

J. Quintillan for appellants.

Antonio Directo for appellee.

DECISION
FERIA, J.:

During the pendency of the appeal from the order of the
Court of First Instance of Ilocos Sur probating a will executed
by the late Placida Mina of Santa Maria, Ilocos Sur, on April
22, 1927, Santiago Degala, alleging that he is one of the legal
heirs of said Placida Mina, filed a petition with the court -pray-
g that the provisions of said will and testament creating a
trust be declared null and void because there is no cestui que trust
named therein, under Rule 66 on Declaratory judgment.

be i as not imposed, and shall not prejudice that heir
or legatee in any manner whatsoever, even should the testator other.
wise provide.

It is obvious, that the Roman Catholic church or its legal
representative the Roman Catholic Bishop of Nueva Segovia, has
interest in defending that validity of the trust created in the will
‘and its interest would be affected by the declaration of nullity of
the trust. Sec. 3, Rule 66, of the Rules of Court provides thar
“‘when declaratory relief is sought, all persons shall be made par-
ties who have or claim any interest which would be affected
by the declaration, and no declaration shall, except as other-
wise provided in these rules, prejudice the rights of persons not
parties to the action.”” The nonjoinder of necessary parties would
deprive the declaration of the final and pacifying function it is
d to subserve, as they would not be bound by the declara-

The said will provides, among others, the ing:

“SEGUNDO. — Las rentas o productos de mis terrenos,
casas y animales con excepcion de las parcelas de terreno ar-
riba mencionadas se aplicaran al pago de amillara-
miento de mis propiedades para la reparacion y con.
tinuacion de la construccion de mis dos casas de mampos-
teria que estan frente a frente, y para la vealizacion de
las misas dispuestas en este testamento; y caso de que sobrare
algo se dispondra, en caso necesario, para ayudar en los
gastos de la reparacion de la iglesia, convento y la an.
tigua capilla del cementerio romano de Santa Maria y la
iglesia de Burgos.

x'x' X X

OCTAVO. — Ordeno que todos los afios empezando des-
de mi muerte se celebren misas cantadas en las fechas del
dia de mi nacimiento y muerte en cufraglo de mi alma,
de las de mis i al de este
testamento y de las de mis difuntos abuelos Santiago Mina
y Florentina Degala, padre y madre de mi padre, y de las
de Mariano Directo y Anastacia Peralta, padre y madre de
mi madre.”

The only persons whe were made party defendants in the
petition for declaratory judgment are Cecilia Reyes, petitioner
for the probate of the will in Case No. 3689, Valentin Umipig,
special administrator of the estate of the deceased appointed by
the court, and Leona Leones and Cipriana Alcantara named as
trustees under the will.

After the hearing of the petition, the Court of First Instance
of Ilocos Sur held that if it were not the unanimous desire of all
the parties that the court declare, once and for all, whether cer-
tain provisions of the will are null and vold or not, it would
dismiss the petition for decl. with
American precedents. because the Judgment of the lower court pro-
bating the will was then still pending appeal in the Supreme
Court. But in view of such unanimous desire, the court deciared,
among others, that the above quoted provisions of the will creating
a fideicomiso or trust are null and void, because the testatrix
has not named the first heir or cestuz que trust and because they
are contrary to the law on perpetuities.

The defendants Cecilia Reyes and Valentin Umipig appealed
from the said judgment to this court.

The appellants in a well written brief contend (1) that the
provisions in the will or testament of the late Placida Mina
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tion and may raise the identical issue (Hoskyns vs. National City
Bank of New York, G.R. No. L-1877, promulgated December 29,
1949) “And the absence of a defendant with such adverse inter-
est is a jurisdictional defect, and no declaratory judgment can
be rendered (Corpus Juris Secundum, Vol. I, p. 1049). But the
Roman Catholic Church, or its legal representatives was not m-
cluded as party defendant in the present case.

In view of the foregoing, the judgment appealed from in so
far it declares the trust under consideration null and void, is set
aside, without pronouncement as to costs.

So ordered.

Moran, Paras, Pablo, Bengzon, Tuason, Montemayor; Reyes;
Jugo, and Bautista Angelo, J.J., concur,

X

Feliciano Jover Ledesma, Petitioner, vs. Buen Morals et al., Res-
pondents, G. R. No. L-3251, August 24, 1950.

PLEADING AND PRACTICE; COUNTERCLAIM MAY BE
FILED IN ACTION FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF. — In
a special civil action for declaratory relief, to the petition
filed by the iti , the di d or d may set
up in his answer a counterclaim based on or arising from
the same transaction, deed or contract on which the petition
is based. He may also set up said counterclaim in an amended
answer filed before judgment, provided that his faiiure to
include the counterclaim in the original answer was due to
oversight, inadvertence or excusuhle neglect. Courts should
be liberal in the admissi of 'y t
claims which may be barred unless so interposed.
Jover-Ledesma and Zaragoza and Ricardo C. Puno for petitioner.
Alberto R. de Joya for respondents.

DECISION

MONTEMAYOR, J.:

On April 17, 1944, Buen Morales obtained a loan from Feli-
ciano Jover Ledesma in the amount of P2,023.86 in Japanese mili-
tary notes. To secure payment of said loan, Morales executed a
real estate mortgage on a parcel of land in the City of Manila.
According to the terms of the loan, it was.to be paid within three
years without interest but that before the expiration of two years
the mortgagee cannot be compelled to accept payment of the debt
or any part thereof; that in case of foreclosure, judicially cr extra-
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judicially, on account of the failure of the mortgagor to pay the
debt, said mortgagor will pay to the mortgagee an additional sum
equivalent to 15% of the amount due for attorney’s fees.

On May 10, 1948, mortgagor Morales filed in the Court of
First Instance of Manila a petition for declaratory judgment against
mortgagee Ledesma making reference to the loan and the mortgage
already described alleging that she (Morales) had offered to pay
the indebtedness in October, 1944 but that mortgagee Ledesma

section 6 of said Rule 10 further provides that a counterclaim not
set up shall be barred if it arises out of or is necessarily connected
with the transaction or occurrence that is the subject matter of
the opposing party’s claim and does not require for its adjudication
the presence of third parties of whom the court cannot acquire
Jjurisdiction. This is what is lly termed a y t
claim, one which a defendant must interpose in order to prevent it
from being barred in a subsequent, separate action.

had refused to accept payment because of the
in the deed of mortgage that the mortgagee may not accept pay-
ment until after the expiration of two years; that after the ex-
piration of said two years, after liberation, petitioner Morales
had tendered full payment of the debt by offering “victory peso”
money in a sum equivalent to the smount of the loan under the
Ballantyne schedule, but that Ledesma had refused to accept the
offer, he (Ledesma) insisting that the entire debt be paid in vie-
tory peso. that it was the agreement between the parties that in
the event that at the time of pavment of the debt, the Japanese
military note was no longer legal tender, then the debt should be
paid only in its equivalent value in legal currency, but that this
agreement was not expressed in the deed of mortgage for fear of
the Japanese. The petitioner in that case asked the court to state
and declare the equivalent value in the present currency of the
P2,023.86 military notes so that she might pay off the obligation,
and that said equivalent value declared by the court be accepted
by mortgagee Ledesma.

Respondent Ledesma answered the petition claiming that the
real agreement between the parties was that the mortgage debt
was to be paid in genuine Philippine currency after the war, and
for that reason it was stipulated that the loan was not to be paid
until after the expiration of two years, within which period the
parties believed that war shall have terminated. and so he prayed
that the petitioner be declared indebted to him in the full amount
of P2,023.86.

About a month after filing said answer respondent Ledesma
filed a motion to admit an amended answer which included a counter-
claim, the principal purpose of which, was to declare the petitioner
indebted to him not only in the amount of the loan of P2,023.86
but also in the additional sum of P303.57 representing attorney’s
fees, and that upon petitioner’s failure to pay said two sums,
within the period provided by the lower court, the mortgaged pro-
perty be sold thru public auction by way of foreclosure of the
mortgage.

Petitioner Morales objected to the admission of the amended
answer. She was sustained in her opposition by the trial Judge
who in an order dated July 6, 1949 denied the motion to admit
his amended answer. Ledesma filed a motion for reconsideration
claiming that his failure to include the counterclaim in his original
answer was due to oversight and inadvertence. Respondent Judge
in an order dated July 25, 1949 denied the motion on the ground
that the eounterclaim relates to matters entirely outside the sub-
ject of the petition for declaratory relief. Ledesma has now filed
a petition for certiorari in this Court to review and to set aside
said order of denial on the ground that the trial Judge had abused
his discretion, and that said Judge be directed to admit petitioner’s
amended answer.

The question to be determined in this case is whether a counter-
claim may be filed and entertained in declaratory relief proceedings.

By far, the great majority of courts in the United States of
America allow the setting up of a counterclaim in a petition for
declaratory relief or judgment. (87 ALR 1249 and 68 ALR 113).
The only requirement is that the subject matter of the said counter-
claim be connected with the subject matter of the action and
must, of course, arise out of the same transaction. (Anderson
on Declaratory Judgment p. 263) There, it is even allowed to bring
in third parties by or i See also Bor-
chard on Declaratory Judgment, pp. 812-814. .

In this jurisdiction we see no objection to allowing the filing
of a counterclaim in a petition for declaratory relief. Rule 10 of
the Rules of Court provides for the filing of a counterclaim. And
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The phil hy of the Rule seem to be to discourage separate
actions which make for multiplicity of suits and wherever possible,
to permit, and i require, ini in one litigati all
the cross-claims of the parties, particularly where they arise out
of the same transaction. (Gallahar v. George A. Rheman Co., 7
Fed. Rules Service, p. 299, cited in Moran’s Comments on the Rules
of Court, Vol. I, p. 183).

Of course, the counterclaim involved in the present case was
not included in the original answer but was set up in an amended
answer which the petitioner prayed the court for permission to file.
Section 5 of the same Rule 10 provides that when a pleading fails
to set up a counterclaim thru oversight, inadvertence or excusable
neglect, he may, by leave of court set up the counterclaim by amend-
ment before judgment. In his motion for reconsideration, peti-
tioner herein alleged oversight and inadvertence as reasons for his
failure to include the counterclaim in his original answer.

In the case of Gallahar v. Rheman Co., supra, a motion ‘to
strike counterclaims on the ground that they were omitted from
the answers as originally filed and were brought in too late by
amendment was overruled since the counterclaims arose out of a
transaction which was the subject matter of the opposmg party’s
claim and if not adjudi d in the pr di might
lose all right to have them determined. The circumstances attend-
ing the filing of the counterclaims in said case being exactly the
same as those involved in the present case, this ruling in the Galla~
har case has particular application in the present considerations.

One might contend, however, that Rule 10 above-cited and com-
mented on, applies only to ordinary civil actions and not to a special
civil action like a petition for declaratory relief. But we should
bear in mind that Rule 65 of the Rules of Court expressly states
that “the provisions of the preceding rules (including Rule 10 of
course), shall apply in special civil actions for declaratory relief,
certiorari, prohibition, x x x which are not inconsistent with or
may serve to supplement the provisions of the Rules relating to
such special civil action.”

In the special civil action pending in the lower court, at least
one of the claims of the defendant, contained in his counterclaim,
that referring to attorney’s fees, arises from or is intimately con-
nected with the transaction or contract on which the petition for
declaratory relief is based. Said counterclaim seeks to increase
the amount allegedly payable and due to the defendant by adding
thereto the amount corresponding to attorney’s fees, and if not
set up in that special civil action, may be forever barred.

In conclusion, we believe and hold that in a special civil action
for declaratory relief, to the petition filed by the petitioner, the
defendant or respondent may set up in his answer a counterclaim
based on or arising from the same transaction, deed or contract
on which the petition is based. He may also set up said counter-
claim in an amended answer filed before judgment, provided that
his failure to include the counterclaim in the original answer was
due to oversight, inadvertence or chusab!e neglect. Courts should
be liberal in the admissi 'y i
which may be barred unless so mterposed.

In view of the foregoing, the order of the respondent Judge
denying the motion to admit the amended answer and the other
order denying the motion for reconsideration are hereby set aside
and smd respondent Judge is directed to admit the amended answer,

the No as to costs.

Moran, Ozaeta, Pablo, Bengzon and Reyes — J.J. concur.
Mr. Tuason took no part.
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XIiv

Trinidad Semira and Isidoro G. Mercado, Petitioners vs. Juan Enri-
quez, Respondents, G. R. No. L-2582, March 23, 1950.

JUDGMENTS; PETITION FOR CORRECTION OF JUDG-
MENT AND EXTENSION OF TIME TO APPEAL; DUTY
OF COURT TO DECIDE. — In case a party to a case files
a petition for correction of the judgment rendered and for
an extension of time to perfect an appeal, he is entitled to
expect action thereon by the court. The latter is in duty
bound to decide and resolve the two petitions and it is unfair
for it to declare the judgment rendered in the case final and
executory without first complying with its duty to act on the
pehhons for extension of t\me to perfect the appeal and for
of ji C granted.
Potenciano A. Magtibay for petitioner.
Respondent Judge in his own behalf.
Antonio L, Azores for respondents Azores.
RESOLUTION

PADILLA, J.:

This is a petition for a writ of mandamus to compel the res-
pondent court to correct an erroneous statement made in its order
of 26 May 1948, entered in civil case No. 43 of the court of first

st: of the provi of entitled “Trinidad Semira et
al, plaintiffs, v. Jose R. Azores et al, defendants;” to secure de-
claration by this Court that the motion for correcticn of 21 June
1948 filed in said case by the vetitioners, the plaintiffs in the
court below, suspended the running of the 30-day period within
which an appeal could be taken; and to have the order of 25 Sept-
ember 1948 entered by the respondent court in the case, whereby
it declared that the j dered therein had become final
an executory, set-aside.

Answering the petition, the judge of the respondent court al-
leges that the defendants in the case, in which the judgment
sought to be appealed was entered, are necessary parties and must
be joined; and, after setting forth the proceedings in the court
below pertinent to the question raised by the petitioners, prays
that the petition be dismissed for lack of merit.

The facts alleged in the petition are as follows: The peti-
tioners are the plaintiffs and Jose R. Azores, Sinforoso Azores,
Antonio Azores, Norberta Azores, Bienvenido Azores, Apolonio
Azores, Manuel Azores and Juana Azores are the defendants in
civil case No. 43 of the court of first instance of Batangas. On
7 July 1944, judgment was rendered therein for the defendants.
Counsel for the plaintiffs received a copy of the judgment on 7
August 1944. Twenty-seven (27) (should be 23) days after receipt
of the notice of judgment, and three (3) (should be 7) days be-
fore the last day of the 30-day period within which the losing
party could periect an appeal, or on 30 August 1944, counsel for
the plaintiffs filed a motion for reconsideration. On 26 May 1948,
after the record of the case had been reconstituted, the respondent
court denied the motion for reconsideration. On 21 June, counsel
for the plaintiffs received a copy of the order denying the motion
for reconsideration. But prior to the receipt of a copy of the last
order, on 5 June 1948 counsel for the plaintiffs filed an urgent
ex-parte petition ad cautelam, dated 1 June 1948, for additional 15
days within which to perfect the appeal, should the court deny
the motion for reconsideration. As in the order of 26 May of 1948,
denying the motion for was made,
tu wit: that the defendants filed the mohon for reconsideration
and the plaintiffs filed an opposition thereto, when it was just
the reverse, on 21 June 1948, or on the same day counsel for the
plaintiffs received a copy of the last mentioned order, counsel
filed a petition for correction and set it for hearing on 3 July
following. As counsel for the plaintiffs did not receive notice of
any action taken by the court on the two petitions for extension
of time and for correction, he addressed a letter to the clerk of
the court of first instance of Batangas inquiring as to what action,
if any, had been taken on the petition for correction. On 2 October
1948, counsel for the plaintiffs received a copy of the order dated
25 September 1948, holding that the judgment rendered in the case
on 7 July 1944 had become final and executory, because the motion
for extension of time, in the opinion of the court below, could be
granted for good reasons only and not when it is for the purpose
of delay, and that the petition for correction did not stop the
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running of the 30-day period within which an appeal could be

d, because the mi was: just a clerical error which
could not and did not mislead the plaintiffs — now petitioners. The
respondent court added that if the extension of time prayed for
had been granted, the last day would have been 9 (should be-13)
July 1948, and if denied, the last day would have been 24 (should
be 28) June 1948.

That the defendants in the case for whom judgment was ren-
dered and from which the plaintiffs —now petitioners— attempted
to appeal should have been brought in or joined as respondents,
admits of no doubt. They are the parties direcily affected in
these proceedings.

The petitioners, plaintiffs in-the case in the court below, were
cntitled to expect action by the respondent court on their petitions
for extension of time to perfect the appeal and for correction of the
order of 26 May 1948. The respondent court was in duty bound to
decide and resolve the two petitions and it is unfair for it to declare
the judgment rendered to the case final and executory without first
complying with its duty to resolve and decide the petitions for ex-
tension of time to perfect the appeal and for correction of the afore-
said order of 26 May 1948.

The petitioners are directed to amend their petition to include
or implead as respondents the defendants in the case in the court
below, within five (5) days from notice or receipt of a copy of
this resolution; and, after such amendment shall have made, let
the new respondents answer the petition within five (5) days from
date of service upon them of the amended petition.

Moran, Ozaeta, Pablo, Bengzon, Tuason, Montemayor and Reyes.
J.J. concur

Torres voted in favor of the dispositive part of this resolution.

XV

Angela Goyena de Quizon, plaintiff-Appellant -vs. Philippine Na-
tional Bank et al., Defendants-Appellees, G. R. No. L-2851, January
31, 1950.

1. PLEADING AND PRACTICE; CONTEMPT IN EXECUTING
JUDGMENT. — When, as in this case, the judgment requnes
the delivery of real property, it must be executed, not in
accordance with section 9 of Rule 39, but in accordance with
paragraph d of section 8, Rule 39, and any contempt procced-
ing arising therefrom must be based on paragraph H of
section 3, Rule 64, and not on paragraph b of the-same sec-
tion in relation to section 9 of Rule 39.
2. ID.; EXECUTION OF JUDGMENT REQUIRING DELIVERY
OF REAL PROPERTY. — “According to these sections (provi-
sions of Act 190 from which Rule 39, sec. 8-d was taken), it is
exclusively incumbent upon the sheriff to execute, to carry
out the of the j in stion, and, in fact,
it was he himself, and he alone, who was ordered by the
justice of the peace who rendered that judgment, to place
the plaintiff in possession of the land. The defendant in
this case had nothing to do with that delnvery of posses-
sion, and, his his re-
fusal or unwillingness to effect the same, are entirely of-
ficious and impertinent and therefore could not hinder, and
much less prevent, the delivery being made, had the sheriff
known how to comply with his duty. It was solely due to
the latter’s fault, and not to the alleged disobedience of
the defendant, that the judgment was not duly executed.
For that purpose the sheriff could even have availed him-
self of the public force, had it been necessary to resort
thereto.” (U.S. vs. Ramayrat, 22 Phil. 183.) This means
that the sheriff must despossess or eject the losing party
from the premises and deliver the passessmn thereof to
the winning party. If to such
or ejectment the losing party enters or attempts to enter
into or upon the real property, for the purpose of exe-
cuting acts of ownership or possessoin, or in any mar-
ner disturbs the possession of the person adjudged to be
entitled thereto, then and only then may the loser be

charged with and d for under h
b of section 3, Rule 64.
Andres M. Hagad for appellant.
beneses and Dimayuge for appellees.
March 31, 1954



DECISION
OZAETA, J.:

On June 18, 1946, upon agreement ofythe parties, judgment was
rendered by the Court of First Instance Batangas in the above-
entitled case the dispositive part of which reads as follows:

“Wherefore, the Court hereby renders judgment approving
the agreement above quoted and declaring:

a) Defendants Alex F. Magtibay and Paulina B. de la
Cruz to be the absolute owners of the properties under litiga-
tion and described in the complaint;

b) Authorizing the plaintiff Angela Goyena de Quizon to
buy the properties referred to above for the sum of FIVE
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED PESOS (P5,500.00), THREE
THOUSAND PESOS (P3,000.00) to be paid within 90 days
from the date of the said agreement, and TWO THOUSAND
FIVE HUNDRED (P2,500.00), within the period of one (1)
year from the same date of said agreement, both payments to
be made without interest. Failure, however, on the part of the
said plaintiff Angela Goyena de Quizon to comply with any of
the stipulations contained in the above-quoted agreement shall
cause forfeiture of the plaintiff’s right to purchase said pro-
perties, with the obligation on her part to vacate the premises
and deliver the possession thereof to said defendant Alex F.
Magtibay and Paulina B. de la Cruz; provided, however, that
should the plaintiff pay the sum of THREE THOUSAND PE-
SOS (P3,000.00), as above mentioned, but failed to pay the
balance of TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED PESOS
(P2,500.00) within the period stipulated as aforesaid, the plain.-
tiff shall forfeit the amount already paid;

¢) Ordering said defendants Alex F. Magtibay and Pauli-
na B. de la Cruz that upon payment to them by said plaintifi
of the amount of FIVE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED PE-

SOS (P5,500.00), agreed upon as hereinabove mentioned, to exe-

cute a deed of absolute sale of the ies under liti

in favor of said plaintiff within 30 days from date of Lhe last

payment.”

Plaintiff paid the first intallment of P3,000 mentioned in said
judgment but failed to pay the second installment of P2,500, al-
leging that her failure to do so was due to the subsequent separa-
tion of the defend: the spouses i and her inability to
determine who of said spouses was entitled to receive the payment.

Resolving plaintiff’s motion for interpleader and defendants’
motion for execution of the judgment, the court on August 28, 1947,
entered the following order:

“Con la conformidad de las partes y los abogados que re-
presentan a las mismas, se concede a Angela Goyena de Quizon
un plazo hasta el Sabado, 30 del actual, a las 12:00 de dicho
dia, para que deposito en poder del Escribano de este Juzgado
¥ en beneficio de Paulina B. de la Cruz la suma de P2500 00
corriendo a cuenta de la d i los derechos y
del juzgado, y de no hacerlo dentro de ese plazo, el juzgado de-
clararia que dicha Angela Goyena de Quizon ha perdido el de-
recho sobre la finca envuelta en este asunto, de acuerdo con la
decision dictada en el mismo.”

Because the plaintiff failed to deposit the sum of P2,500 within
the period mentioned in the order last above quoted, the defendant
Paulina B. de la Cruz again asked for z writ of execution, and
Judge Eugenio Angeles, on September 11, 1947, issued an order the
dispositive part of which reads as follows:

“WHEREFORE, enft the jud, d herein,
the Court hereby declares that, because of the failure of the
plaintiff to pay the amount of P2,500.00 which said plaintiff had
agreed to pay on or before June 18, 1947, the plaintiff has
forfeited to the defendants, Alex F. Magtiby and Paulina B. de
la Cruz the said amount of P3,000.00, and said plaintiff has lost
the right to repurchase the property the subject matter of the
present action, and said plaintiff is hereby ordered to vacate
the promises and deliver the possession thereof to the said de-
fendants Alex F. Magtibay and Paulina B. de la Cruz.”
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On October 2, 1947, the plaintiff deposited the sum of P2,500
with the clerk of the lower court, who in turn then and there de-
posited it with the provincial treasurer, as appears on folio 67 of
the record below.

The record does not show action was taken by the lower court
with regard to said belated deposit. But the record does show
that by virtue of an order of Judge Juan P. Enriquez dated January
2, 1948, the clerk of court issued a writ of execution which reads
as follows:

SHERIFF PROVINCIAL DE BATANGAS
SALUD:

“Por cuanto en 18 de Junio de 1946 se dicto decision en esta
causa de conformidad con el convenio firmado por las partes y
sus abogados;

“Por cuanto dicha decision quedo firme y ejecutoria, y,
en 2 del actual, el Juzgado ordeno la ejecucion de la decision
aludida;

“POR TANTO es ordenamos que entregueis a los deman-
dados Alex F. Magtibay y Paulina de la Cruz la siguiente pro-
piedad:

“A parcel of residential land and building constructed
on the same with all existing improvements thereon, si-
tuated in the poblacion of Rosario, province of Batangas,
bounded on the N. by Provincial Road (San Juan-
Batangas road); on the E. by property of Rufino Goyena
and River; on the S. by River and on the W. by River
also. x x X x x which has a total assessment value of P2,040,
under tax declaration No. 35883 in the name of Angela
Goyena in the province of Batangas.”

dichos Alex F. Magtibay y Paulina B. de la Cruz, los deman-

dados, en 11 de i de 1947 en nuestro Juz-

gado, de la demandante Angela Goyena de Quizon, y devolvais
la presente dentro del plazo fijado por la Ley, consignando en
su dorso

“Dada por el Honorable JUAN P. ENRIQUEZ, Juez de
dicho Juzgado, en la Ciudad de Lipa, hoy a 3 de Enero de 1948.

(Sgd.) EUSTACIO S. LUSTRE
Escribano” .

The return of the sheriff states that on the morning of January
5, 1948 he went to Rosario, ied by Alejand:
son of the d spouses Magtib: and with one po-
liceman of the town went directly to the place where the land and
building were located, and “I contacted the occupants of the ground
floor of the said house and explained to him (sic) the writ of exe-
cution issued by ﬂle Court of First Insunce of Batangas, Lipa
City. After ining the d d in the i
I delivered the herem — described parcel of residential land and
building to Mr. Alejandro Magtibay.” l

On May 22 and July 10, 1948, Paulina B. de la Cruz and Alex
F. Magti iled iti in court asking
that the plaintiff be declared in contempt of court and punished in
accordance with Rule 64 on the ground that she had disobeyed the
order of  Judge Angeles of September 11, 1947, and the order of
execution of Judge Enriquez of January 2, 1948, “by refusing to
vacate the premises in question and to deliver the possession there-
of to the defendants Alex F. Magtibay and Paulina B. de la Cruz.”

After hearing both parties Judge Gustavo Victoriano, on Octo-
ber 6, 1948, entered the following order:

“This is a petition to declare the plaintiff, Angela Goyena
de Quizon, in contempt of court for having failed to comply
with the orders of this Court of September 11, 1947, January 2,
1948, and August 28, 1947.

After the pleadi and d by
both parties during the hearing of this petition for contempt,
the Court is of the opinion and so holds that the plaintiff An-
gela Goyena de Quizon has committed contempt of court in
failing to obey the aforementioned orders of this Court and,
therefore, sentences her to be mzpnsoned until she complies
with the same by ing the in question and deliver-
ing the possession thereof to said defendants Alex F. Magtibay
and Paulina B. de la Cruz.
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In case of appeal, the appeal bond is hereby fixed at

P500.00.”

From the order last above quoted, the plaintiff has appealed
to this court.

The judgment involved here requires the plaintiff “to vacate
the premises and deliver the possession thereof to the said defend-
ants Alex F. Magtibay and Paulina B. de la Cruz.”” Under sec-
tion 8 (d) of Rule 39, if the judgment be for the delivery of the
possession of real property, the writ of execution mustﬁin the
sheriff or other officer to whom it must be directed to deliver the
possession of the property, describing it, to the party entitled there-
to. This means that the sheriff must dispossess or eject the losing
party from the premises and deliver the possession thereof to the
winning party. If to such di i or ejt
the losing party enters or attempts to enter into or upon the real
property, for the purpose of executing acts of ownership or pos-
session, or in any manner disturbs the possession of the person
adjudged to be entitled thereto then and only then may the loser
be charged with and punished for contempt under paragraph (h)
of section 3, Rule 64.

In United States vs. Ramayrat, 22 Phil. 183, a similar writ of
execution was invoked to punish the defendant for contempt of
court. The defendant, who had been adjudged in a civil case to
deliver the possession of a certain parcel of land to the plaintiff,
manifested to the sheriff in writing that he was not willing “to
deliver to Sabino Vayson (the plaintiff) or to the deputy sheriff
of this municipality, Cosme Nonoy, the land in my possession, as
I have been directed to do by the said sheriff, in order that, in the
latter case, he might deliver the same to the aforementioned Vayson,
in conformity with the order issued by the justice of the peace of
this municipality.” In affirming the order of the Court of First
Instance acquitting the defendant of contempt, this court, inter-
preting the provisions of the Code of Civil Procedure from which
paragraph (d) of section 8, Rule 39, was taken, held:

“According to these sections, it is exclusively incumbent
upon the sheriff to execute, to carry out the mandates of the
judgement in. question, and, in fact, it was he himself,
and he alone, who was ordered by the justice "of peace
who rendered that judgment, to place the plaintiff, Vayson, in
posssesion of the land. The defendant in this case had nothing
to do with that delivery of possession, and, consequently, his
statements expressing his refusal or unwillingness to effect the
same, are entirely officious and impertinent and therefore could
not hinder, and much less prevent, the delivery being made, had
the sheriff known how to comply with his duty. It was solely
due to the latter’s fault, and not to the alleged disobedience
of the defendant, that the judgment was not duly executed.
For that purpose the sheriff could even have availed himself of
the public force, had it been necessary to resort thereto.”

In the present case it does not even appear that the plaintiff had
been required by the sheriff, and had refused, to vacate the premises
described in the writ of execution. All that appears in the return
of the sheriff is that he contacted the occupants of the ground floor
of the house and explained to them the writ of execution, and that
after determining the boundaries as described in the execution he
delivered the premises to Mr. Alejandro Magtibay, the son of the
winning parties. Who those occupants of the ground floor were, has
not been specified. For all we know, they may be strangers to the
case.

Appellant cannot be punished for contempt under paragraph (b)
of section 3, Rule 64, for disobi: of or i he

of the trial court because said judgment is not a special judgment
enforcible under section 9 of Rule 39, which reads as follows

“Sec. 9. Writ of execution of special judgment—When a
judgment requires the performance of any other act than the
payment of money, or the sale or delivery of real or personal
property, a certified copy of the judgment shall be attached to
the writ of execution and may be served by the officer upon the
party against whom the same is rendered, or upon any other
person required thereby, or by law, to obey the same, and such
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party or person may be punished for contempt if he disobeys

such judgment.”

In other words, when as in this case, the judgment requires the
delivery of real property, it must be executed not in accordance with
section 9 above quoted but in accordance with paragraph (d) of sec-
tion 8, Rule 39, and any contempt proceeding arising therefrom
must be based on paragraph(h) of section 3, Rule 64, and not on
paragraph (b) of the same section in relation to section 9 of Rule 39.

A 11 of of court, we reverse the order
appealed from with costs against the appellees Alex F. Magtibay
and Paulina B. de la Cruz.

Moran, Paras, Bengzon, Tuason, Reyes, Pablo, Padilla, Mon-
temayor, Torres, J.J. concur.

XVI

Pedro P. Villa, Petitioner vs. Fidel Ibaiiez et al., Respondent, G. R.
L-3413, March 20, 1951.

1. PLEADING & PRACTICE; EXTRAORDINARY LEGAL RE-
MEDIES; WHEN PETITION FOR CERTIORARI MAY BE
CONSIDERED AS ONE FOR PROHIBITION.—A petition for

certiorari which is in reality one for prohibition, may be
regarded as a petition for the latter remedy.
2. ADMINISTRATIVE LAW; APPOINTMENT OF ADDITION-
AL COUNSEL TO ASSIST FISCAL.—Appointments by the Sec-
retary of Justice in virtue of the provisions of section 1686
of the Admini ive Code, as ded by section 4 of Com-
monwealth Act No. 144, were upheld in Lo Cham vs. Ocam-
po (L-831, Nov. 21, 1946), Canape et al vs. Jugo et al
(L-876, Nov. 21, 1946), People v. Dinglasan (44 O.G. 458),
and Ko Cam et al v. Gatmaitan et al (L-2856, Mar. 27,
1950). But in those cases, the appointees were officials or
employees in one or another of the bureaus or offices un-
der the Department of Justice, and were rightly considered
subordinates in the office of the Secretary of Justice with-
in the meaning of section 1686, ante, An attorney who is
a regular officer or employee in the Department of the In-
terior, belongs to the class of persons disqualified for ap-
pointment to the post of special counsel. The obvious rea-
son is to have appointed only lawyers over whom the Sec-
retary of Justice can exercise exclusive and absolute power
of supervision.
3. CRIMINAL PROCEDURE; JURISDICTION; MOTION TO
QUASH.—The chief of the division of investigation in the of-
fice of the City Mayor, was appointed by the Secretary of
Justice as special counsel to assist the City Fiscal in the
cases of city government officials he had investigated. In
P of that appoi he ibed, swore to and
presented an information charging a criminal offense. The
defendant had pleaded to the information before he filed a
motion to quash. It is contended that by his plea he waived
all objections to the information. HELD: The contention
is correct as far as formal objections to the pleading are
concerned. But by clear implication, if not by express pro-
vision, of section 10 of Rule 113 of the Rules of Court,
and by a long line of uniform decisions, questions of want
of jurisdiction may be raised at any stage of the proceed-
ings. Now, the objection to the special counsel’s actuations
goes to the very foundations of jurisdiction. It is a valid
information signed by a competent officer which, among
other requisites, confers jurisdiction on. the court over the
person of the accused and the subject matter of the ac-
cusation. In consonance with this view, an infirmity of
the nature noted in the information can not be cured by
silence, acquiescence, or even by express consent.

Macario M. Peralta for petitioner.

City Fiscal Eugenio Angeles, Assistant Fiscal of Manila Lorenzo

Relova and Abelardo Subido for respondents.

DECISION

TUASON, J.:
Attorney Abelardo Subido, chief of the division of investigation
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in the office of the Mayor of the City of Manila, was appointed
by the then Secretary of Justice, Ricardo

as special counsel to assist the City Fiscal of Manila in the cases
of city government officials or employees he had investigated; and
in pursuance of that appointment, he subscribed, swore to and pre-
sented an information against Pedro P. Villa, the present peti-
tioner, for falsification of a payroll of the division of veterinary
service, Manila health department. Attorney Subido’s authority to
file the information was thereafter challenged by the accused but
was sustained by His Honor, Judge Fidel Ibafiez. Hence this pe-
tition for certiorari, which is in reality a petition for prohibition
and will be so regarded.

Chief ground of attack, the resolution of which will dispose of
the other and to which this opinion will therefore be confined, has
to do with Attorney Subido’s legal qualifications for the appoint-
ment in question under Section 1686 of the Revised Administrative
Code, as amended by Section 4 of Commonwealth Act No. 144,
which reads as follows:

Sec. 1686. Additional counsel to assist fiscal—The Sec-
retary of Justice may appoint any lawyer, being either a subor-
dinate from his office or a competent person not in the public
service, temporarily to assist a fiscal or prosecuting attorney
in the discharge of his duties, and with the same authority
therein as might be exercised by the Attorney General or So-
licitor General.

Appointments by the Secretary of Justice in virtue of the fore-
going provisions of the Revised Administrative Code, as amended,
were upheld in Lo Cham vs. Ocampo et al., Canape et al. v. Jugo
et al., People v. Dinglasan et al., 44 O. G. 458, and Ko Cam et al.
v. Gatmaitan et al., G. R. No. L-2856. But in those cases, the ap-
pointees were officials or employees in one or another of the bureaus
or offices under the Department of Justice, and were rightly con-
sidered subordinates in the office of the Secretary of Justice within
the meaning of Section 1686, ante.

The case at bar does not come within the rationale of the above
decisions.  Attorney Subido was a regular officer or employee in
the Department of Interior, more particularly in the City Mayor’s
office. For this reason he belongs to the class of persons disqua-
lified for appointment to the post of special counsel.

That to be eligible as special counsel to aid a fiscal the ap-
pointee must be either an employee or officer in the Department of
Justice is so manifest from a mere reading of Section 1686 of the
Revised Administrative Code as to preclude construction. And the
limitation of the range of choice in the appointment or designation
is not without reason.

The obvious reason is to have appointed only lawyers over whom
the Secretary of Justice can exercise exclusive and absolute power
of supervision. An appointee from a branch of the Government out-
side the Department of Justice would owe obedience to, and be sub-
ject to orders by, mutually independent superiors having, possibly,
antagonistic interests. Referring particularly to the case at hand
for illustration, Attorney Subido could be recalled or his time and
attention be required elsewhere by the Secretary of Interior or the
City Mayor while he was discharging his duties as public prose-
cutor, and the Secretary of Justice would be helpless to stop such
recall or interference. An eventuality or state of affairs so un-
desirable, not to say detrimental to the public service and specially
the administration of justice, the legislature wisely intended to
avoid.

The defendant had pleaded to the information before he filed
a motion to quash, and it is contended that by his plan he waived
all obj to the inf The is correct as far
as formal objections to the pleading are concerned. But by clear
implication if not by express provision of Section 10 of Rule 113
of the Rules of Court, and by a long line of uniform decisions,
questions of want of jurisdiction may be raised at any stage of the
proceeding. Now, the objection to the respondent’s actuations goes
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to the very foundations of jurisdiction. It is a valid information
signed by a competent officer which, among other requisites, con-
fers jurisdiction on the court over the person of the accused and
the subject matter of the accusation. In consonance with this view,
an infirmity of the nature noted in the information can mnot be
cured by silence, acquiescence, or even by express consent.

The petition will therefore be granted and the respondent Judge
ordered to desist from proceeding with Criminal Case No. 11963
upon the information filed by Attorney Abelardo Subido, without
costs.

Moran, Paras, Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla; Reyes; Jugo and Bautista.
Montemayor did not take part.
Paras voted to grant the petition.

XVII

Urban Estates, Inc., Petitioner vs. Agustin P. Montesa and the Cily
of Manila, Respondents, G. R. L-3830, March 15, 1951.

1. EXPROPRIATION PROCEEDINGS; MOTION TO DISMISS;
EVIDENCE ON TO MOTION DISMISS.—U, the owner of the
division sought to be expropriated, alleged and offered to
prove in support of his motion to dismiss (1) the true and
fair market valué; (2) that one-half of its total area has
been already sold at a very fair and reasonable price, some
lots having been paid for in full and down payments hav-
ing been made on otheis; and (3) that a big portion of the
tract is reserved for playground as evidenced by Plan duly
approved by the National Urban Planning Commission and
the Director of Lands. The trial court refused to receive
evidence on these allegations on the theory that a motion
to dismiss assumes the truth of the facts stated in the com-
plaint. HELD: In expropriation proceedings “each de-
fendant, in lieu of an answer, shall present in a single mo-
tion to dismiss... all of his objections and defenses to the
right of the plaintiff, to take his property for the use spe-
cified in the complaint” (Rule 69, sec. 4). “The ascer- -
tainment of the necessity must precede or accompany, and
not follow, the taking of the land” (City of Manila v.
Chinese Community of Manila, 40 Phil. 849). As the City
itself, the plaintiff, objected to the substantiation of the
facts set forth in the motion to dismiss, and since on their
face and by their nature these facts are based on docu-
mentary proof, they can be taken for granted instead of
remanding the case to the court below for further pro-
ceeding.

2. EXPROPRIATION; NECESSITY FOR—“The very founda-
tion of the right to exercise eminent domain is a genuine
necessity, and that necessity must be of a public character”
(City of Manila v. Chinese Community of Manila, 40 Phil.
349). The decisions in Guido v. Rural Progress (L-2089,
Oct. 31, 1949), Commonwealth v. Arellano Law College
(L-2929, Feb. 28, 1950), warned of the tendency to expand
the construction of section 4, Article XTII, of the Consti-
tution “to the limit of its logic.”” The Constitution con-
templates large-scale purchases or condemnation of lands
with a view to agrarian reforms and the alleviation of
acute housing shortage. These are vast social problems
with which the Nation is vitally concerned and the solu-
tion of which would redound to the common weal. Con-
demnation of private lands in a makeshift or piecemeal
fashion, random taking of a small lot here and a small lot
there to accommodate a few tenants or ’squatters is a dif-
ferent thing. This is true be the land urban or agricul-
tural. The first sacrifices the rights and interests of one
or a few for the good of all; the second is deprivation of
a citizen of his property for the convenience of another
citizen or a few other citizens without perceptible benefit
to the public. The first carries the connotation of public

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL 145



use; the last follows along the lines of a faith or ideology
alien to the institution of property and the economic and
social systems d in the Ci ituti
braced by the great majority of the Fili

3. ID.; ID.;—Wherein resorting to expropriation, the city gov-
ernment was prompted, not by the unwillingness of the
owners to part with their property but by the inability
of the present tenants or squatters to meet the owner’s
price, expropriation proceeding is not proper. The City
cannot acquire land, by the simple expedient of eminent
domain, for a price far below the capital invested therein
and sell it at cost to help the homeless who may have been
forced to migrate from the provinces in search of safer
haven in this city. If the price of lots for sale is beyond
the reach of some people who want to buy, the City cannot
bring down the price to the level the poor could afford.
That the city authorities have no power to do such thing,
however altruistic may be the motive behind their action,
seems too obvious for argument.

4. ID.; PARTIES.—In expropriating a subdivision, if the inten-
tion is to expropriate the lots that have been disposed of
but have not been fully paid for, along with the rest of

the entire tract, the purchasers should be made parties.

Gibbs, Gibbs, Chuidian and Quasha for petitioner.

City Fiscal Eugenio Angeles and Assistant Fiscal Eulogio S.
Serrano for respondents.

DECISION
TUASON, J.:

This case, brought here on appeal from an order of Judge
Agustin P. Montesa denying defendant’s motion to dismiss, con-
cerns the authority of the City of Manila to expropriate a tract of
land situated within the city limits and having an area of 49,553.10
square meters, more or less.

Urban Estates, Inc., defendant, alleged and offered to proved
in support of its motion to dismiss, that the true, fair market value
of the property in ‘question is P1,002,074.00 and the assessed value
P363,150.00; that this land is mortgaged to Juan E. Tuason for
P470,530.00 and is used to secure an overdraft with the People’s
Bank & Trust Co. in the sum of P150,000.00, so that it has at least
a loan value of P620,530.00; that the said land is a subdivision pro-
perty and one-half of its total area has been sold already at a very
fair and reasonable price, some lots having been paid for in full
and down payments having been made on others; and that a big
portion of the tract is reserved for playground as evidenced by
Plan Psd-24832 duly app:oved by the National Urban Planning
Commission and the Dircctor of Lands.

But the trial court refused to receive evidence on these allega-
tions on the theory that they were improperly made in a motion to
dismiss; the court was of the opinion that a motion to dismiss as-
sumes the truth of the facts stated in the complaint.

Section 4, Rule 69, of the Rules of Court, entitled “Defenses
and Objections” provides: “Within the time specified in the sum-
mons, each defendant, in lieu of an answer, shall present in a sin-
gle motion to dismiss or for other appropriate relief, all of his ob-
jections and defenses to the right of the plaintiff to take his pro-
perty for the use specified in the complaint. All such objections
and defenses not so presented are waived. A copy of the motion
shall be served on the plaintiff’s attorney of record and filed with
the court with the proof of service.” And in the City of Manila v.
Chinese Community of Manila, 40 Phil. 849, this Court laid down
this rule: “The very foundation of the right to exercise eminent
domain is a genuine necessity, and that necessity must be of a
public character. The ascertainment of the necessity must precede
or accompany and not follow, the taking of the land.” The Court
cited this passage in Blackstone’s Commentaries: “So great is the
regard of the law for private property that it will not authorize the
least violation of it, even for the public good, unless there exists
a very great necessity thereof.”

As the City itself, the plaintiff, objected to the substantiation

146

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL

of the facts set forth in the motion to dismiss, and since on their
face and by nature these facts are based on documentary proof,
we will take them for granted instead of remanding the case to the
court below for further proceeding.

The matter of the right of the Government to condemn urban
private lands for subdivision or resale to private persons has been
discussed so extensively in Guido v. Rural Progress Administration,
G. R. No. L-2089, De Borja v. Commonwealth of the Philippines,
G. R. No. L-1496, and Arellano Law Colleges v. City of Manila,

. R. No. L-2929, that we should think the question is no longer
open, at least as far as inferior courts are concerned. Lest those
decisions may have been misread or misconstrued, a few remarks
are in order in further elucidation of their meaning.

The Guido, De Borja and Arellano Colleges decisions expressly
recognize the power of the Government to expropriate urban lands
or rural estates for subdivision into lots. What those decisions
emphasize is the distinction, set in broad outline, between taking
that inures to the welfare of the community at large and taking
that benefits a mere handful of people bereft of public character.
In explaining the distinction we mentioned public benefit, public
utility, or public advantage as the universal test of the exercise of
the right of eminent domain, and warned of the tendency to ex-
pand the construction of Section 4, Article XIII, of the Constitution
“to the limit of its logic.”

It is a matter of common knowledge that there were and there
are lands, comprising whole towns and municipalities, which were
or are owned by one man or a group of men from whom their in-
habitants hold the lots on which their homes are built as perpetual
tenants. These are urban lands. And there are private lands which
it may be necessary in the public interest for the Government to
convert into townsites and the townsites into house lots. It is also
a matter of past and contemporary history that feudalism has been
the root cause of popular discontent that led to revolutions and of
present unrest and political and social disorders.

It was such lands taken for such purpose which we said the
framers of the Constitution had in mind and which the National
Government and, with appropriate legislative authority, the cities
and municipalities may condemn. We stated that it is economic
slavery, feudalistic practices, endless conflicts between landlords and
tenants, and allied evils which it is the authority, nay the duty,
of the State to abolish by acquiring landed estates by purchase if
possible or by condemnation proceedings if necessary.

In brief, the Constitution contemplates large-scale purchases or
condemnation of lands with a view to agrarian reforms and the al-
leviation of acute housing shortage. These are vast social problems
with which the Nation is vitally concerned and the solution of
which would redound to the common weal. Condemnation of private
lands in a makeshift or piecemeal fashion, random taking of small
lot here and small lot there to accommodate a few tenants or squat-
ters is a different thing. This is true be the land urban or agri-
cultural. The first sacrifices the rights and interest of one or a
few for the good of all; the second is deprivation of a citizen of
his property for the convenience of another citizen or a few other
citizens without perceptible benefit to the public. The first carries
the connotation of public use; the last follows along the lines of a
faith or ideology alien to the institution of property and the eco-
nomic and social systems consecrated in the Constitution and em-
braced by the great majority of the Filipino people.

Strickley v. Highland Boy Gold Min. Co., 50 Law Ed. 581, cited
to bolster the plaintiff-appellee’s case, is in reality against its con-
tention. In that case the finding was that the plaintiff was a
“carrier for itself and others (and) that the line (right of way)
is dedicated to carrying for whatever portion-of the public may de-
sire to use it.” The expropriation in that case was thus affected
with public use and public interest. Our own railroad companies
have been conferred with power of eminent domain.

Clark v. Nash, 49 Law Ed. 1085, mentioned in Strickley v.
Highland Boy Min. Co. was a case in which the Supreme Court of
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Utah had found and decided that the plaintiff was “entitled to a
decree condemning a right of way through defendant’s said ditch,
to the extent of widening said ditch one foot more than its present
width, and to a depth of said ditch as now constructed through the
entire length thereof down to plaintiff’s said land, for the purpose
of carrying his said waters of said Fort Canyon creek to the land
of the plaintiff for the purpose of irrigation, and is entitled to an
easement therein to the extent of the enlarging of said ditch, and
for the purposes aforesaid, and to have a perpetual right of way
to flow waters therein to the extent of the said enlargement.” This
wes the background of Mr. Justice Holmes’ statement “that there
might be exceptional times and places in which the very foundations
of public welfare could not be laid without requiring concessions
from individuals to each other upon due compensation.” To con-
demn private land and give it to another is a far cry from ‘“the
condemnation of the land of one individual for the purpose of al-
lowing another individual to obtain waters from a stream in which
he has an interest, to irrigate his land, which otherwise would re-
main absolutely valueless.” Similar rights of riparian owners are
expressly recognized by our own Civil Code independently of con-
stitutions.

Attempts are made to differentiate this Court’s recent decisions
from the present case. Actually the material differences which we
can discern serve to show that there is less necessity for condem-
nation in this case than in either of the three cases before referred
to, from the standpoint of the persons intended to be favored, let
alone the public. In the first place, it has been seen that the land
sought to be condemned here has actually been subdivided by its
owners, who have spent considerable money for its improvements
and in the laying out of streets, and is being offered for sale. Some
lots in fact have already been sold and paid for in full or in part.
The people on whose behalf this action has been instituted ecould
acquire the remaining lots by direct purchase from the defendant
like those purchasers.

In the face of these circumstances, it would appear that in re-
sorting to expropriation, the plaintiff was prompted, not by the
unwillingness of the owners to part with their property but by the
inability of the present tenants or squatters to meet the owner’s
price. By the simple expedient of eminent domain, the City would
acquire the land for a price far below the capital invested therein
and sell it at cost to help the homeless who, it is said in the ap-
pealed decision, have been forced to migrate from the provinces
in search of safer haven in this city. What all this adds up to
then is ceiling price for lands. If the price of lots for sale is be-
yond the reach of some people who want to buy, the City would
bring down the price to the level the poor could afford. That the
city authorities have no power to do such thing, however altruistic
may be the motive behind their action, seems too obvious for ar-
gument.

In the second place, the remaining lots after eliminating the
lots that have already been alienated, are said to be about one-half
of the entire subdivisions or smaller than the land involved in the
Guido case. If the intention is to expropriate the lots that have
been disposed of but have not been fully paid for, along with the
rest of the entire tract, the purchasers have not been made parties,
unlike the buyers to whom title has been issued and who have been
included in the complaint but as to whose lots the complaint has
been dismissed.

The order is reversed and the action dismissed with costs of
both instances against the plaintiff.

Padilla,

Moran, Paras, Feria, Pablo, Bengzon, Montemayor,

Reyes, Jugo, Bautista Angelo, — J.J. concur.
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Manila Herald Publishing Co., et al., Petitioners, vs. Hon. Simeon
Ramos, et al., Respondents, G. R. No. L-4268, January 18, 1951.

1. PLEADING AND PRACTICE; DISMISSAL OF ACTION BY
COURT MOTU PROPIO.—Section 1 of Rule 8 enumerates the
grounds upon which an action may be dismissed, and it
specifically ordains that a motion to this end be filed. 1In
the light of this express requirement, the Court of First
Instance has no power to dismiss a case, wherein no mo-
tion to dismiss or an answer had been filed. Even if the
parties file memoranda upon the court’s indication in
which they discuss the proposition that the acticn was
necessary and was improperly brought, this would not sup-
ply the deficiency. Rule 30 of the Rules of Court pro-
vides for the cases in which an action may be dismissed,
and the inclusion of those therein provided excludes any
other, under the familiar maxim, “inclusio unius est ex-
clusio alterius.”” The only instance in which, according to
said rules, the court may dismiss upon the court’s own mo-
tion an action is, when the “plaintiff fails to appear at
the time of the trial or to prosecute his action for an un-
reasonable length of time or to comply with the Rules or
any order of the court.” To dismiss the case without any
formal motion to dismiss, would be acting with grave abuse
of discretion if not in excess of jurisdiction.

2. ID.; PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION; THIRD - PARTY
CLAIMS.—Section 14 of Rule 59, which treats of the steps to
be taken when property attached is claimed by any other
person than the defendant or his agent, contsins the pro-
viso that “Nothing herein contained shall prevent such third
person from vindicating his claim to the property by any
proper action.” What is “proper action”? Section 1 of
Rule 2 defines action as “an ordinary suit in a eourt of
justice, by which one party prosecutes another for the en-
forcement or protection of a right, or the prevention or
redress of a wrong,” while section 2, entitled “Commence-
ment of Action,” says that ‘civil action may be com.-
menced by filing a complaint with the court.” “Action” has
acquired a well-defined, technical micaning, and it is in
this restricted sense that the word “action” is used in the
above rule. In employing the word “Commencement” the
rule clearly indicates an action which originates an entire
proceeding and puts in motion the instruments of the court
calling for summons, answer, etc., and not any intermediary
step taken in the course of the proceeding whether by the
parties themsclves or by a stranger. It would be strange
indeed if the framers of the Rules of Court or the Legis-
lature should have employed the term “proper action’” in-
stead of “intervention” or equivalent expression if the in-
tention had been just that. The most liberal view that can
be taken in favor of the attaching party’s position is that
intervention as a means of protecting the third-party claim-
ants’ right is not exclusive but cumulative and suppletory to
the right to bring a new, independent suit. It is signi-
ficant that there are courts which go so far as to take the
view that even where the statute expressly grants the right
to intervention in such cases as this, the statute does not
extend to owners of property attached, for under this
view, ‘it is considered that the ownership is not one of
the essential questions to be determined in the litigation
between plaintiff and defendant;” that “whether the pro-
perty belongs to or clai if ined, is
considered as shedding no light upon the question in con-
troversy, namely, that defendant is indebted to plaintiff.””
(See 7 C.J.S. 545 and footnote No. 89 where extracts from
the decision in Lewis v. Lewis, 10 N.W. 586, leading case,
are printed.)

d o

3. ID.; ID.; ID.. — Separate action was indeed said to be the cor-
rect and only procedure contemplated by Act No. 190,
ntervention being a new remedy intreduced by the Rules of
Court as addition to, but not in substitution of, the old
process. The new Rules adopted section 121 of Act No. 190
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and added thereto Rule 24(a) of the Federal Rules of Ci-
vil Procedure. (See I Moran’s Comments on the Rules of
Court, 3vrd Ed., 238, 239.) Yet, the right to intervene, un-
like the right to bring a new action is not absolute but
left to the sound discretion of the court to allow. This
qualification makes intervention less preferable to an in-
dependent action from the stendpoint of the third-party
claimants, at least.

4. 1ID.; ID.; ID. — Q filed a civil action against B and secured
preliminary attachment on B’s properties. M and P filed
with the sheriff separate third-party claims alleging that
they were the owners of the property atteched; and in-
stead of intervening in the case, M and P filed an inde-
pendent action jointly against the sheriff and Q. The first
case was pending before the branch of the court presided
over by Judge S, and the new action is before the branch
of the court presided over by Judge R. Can Judge R en-
tertain a motion to discharge the preliminary attachment
in the action pending before Judge S? Held: The sheriff
is not holding the properties in question by order of Judge S;
in reality this is true only to a limited extent. Judge S did
not divect the sheriff to attach the particular pro-
perty in dispute The order was for the sheriff to at.
tach B’s properties. He was not supposed to touch any
property other than that of B, and if he did, he acted
beyond the limits of his authority and upon his personal
vesponsibility. It is true of course that property in cus-
tody of the law cannot be interferred with without the
permission of the proper court and property legally attached
is property in custodia legis. But for the reason just stated,
this rule is confined to cases where the property belongs to
B or one in which B has proprietary interest. When the
sheriff, acting beyond the bounds of his office, seizes M's
and P’s properties, the rule does not apply and interfe-
vence with his custody is not interference with another
court’s order of attachment. None of what has been said,
however, is to be construed as implying that the setting
aside of the attachment prayed for in the case before Judge
R should be granted. The preceding discussion is in-
tended merely to point out that Judge R has jurisdiction
to act in the premises, not the way the jurisdietion should
be exercised.

Edmundo M. Reyes and Antonio Barredo for petitioners.

Bausa and Ampil for vespondents.

DECISION
TUASON, J.:

This is a petition for “certiorari with preliminary injunction”
arising upon the following antecedents:

Respondent Antonio Quirino filed a libel suit, docketed as
Civil Case No. 11531, against Aproniano G. Borres, Pedro Padilla
and Loreto Pastor, editor, managing editor and renorter, respec-
tively, of the Daily Record, a daily newspaper published in Ma-
nila asking damages aggregating P90.000.00. With the filing of
this suit, the plaintiff secured a writ of preliminary attachment
upon -certain office and printing equipment found in the premises
of the Daily Record.

Thereafter the Manila Herald Publishing Co. Inc. and Printers,
Inc., filed with the Sheriff separate third-party claims, alleging that
they were the owners of the property attached. Whereupon, the
Sheriff required of Quirino a counterbond of P41,500 to meet the
claim of the Manila Herald Publishing Co., Inc., and another bond
of P59,500 to meet the claim of Printers, Inc. These amounts, upon
Quirino’s motion filed under Section 13, Rule 59, of the Rules of
Court, were reduced by the court to P11,000 and P10,000 respectively.

Unsuccessful in their attempt to quash the attachment, on Octo-
bez 7, 1950, the Manila Herald Publishing Co., Inc. and Printers,
Inc. commenced a joint suit against the Sheriff, Quirino and Alto
Surety & Insurance Co. Inc., in which the former sought (1) to
enjoin the latter from proceeding with the attachment of the pro-
perties above mentioned and (2) P45,000.00 damages. This suit
was docketed as Civil Case No. 12263,

Whereas Case No. 11531 was being handled by Judge Sanchez or
pending in the branch of the Court presided by him, Case No. 12263
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fell in the branch of Judge Pecson who issued a writ of preliminary
injunction to the Sheriff directing him to desist from proceeding
with the attachment of the said properties. &

After the issuance of that preliminary injunction, Antonio Qui-
rino filed an ex-parte petition for its dissolution, and Judge Si-
meon Ramos, to whom Case No. 12263 had in the meanwhile been
transferred, granted the petition on a bond of P21,000.00. However
Judge Ramos soon set aside the order just mentioned on a motion
for reconsideration by the Manila Herald Publishing Co. Inc. and
Printers, Inc. and set the matter for hearing for October 14, then
continued to October 16.

Upon the conclusion of that hearing, Judge Ramos required
the parties to submit memoranda on the question whether “the
subject matter of Civil Case No. 12263 should be ventilated in an
independent action or by means of a complaint in intervention in
Civil Case No. 11531.” Memoranda having filed, His Honor de-
clared that the suit, in Case No. 12263, was ‘“unnecessary, super-
fluous and illegal” and so dismissed the same. He held that what
Manila Herald Publishing Co., Inc., and Printers, Inec., should do
was intervene in Case No. 11551

The questipns that emerge from these facts and the argu-
ments ave: Did Judge Ramos have authority to dismiss Case No.
12263 at the stage when it was thrown out of court? Should the
Manila Herald Publishing Co., Inc., and Printers, Inc., come as in-
tervenors into the case for libel instead of bringing an independ-
ent action? And did Judge Pecson or Judge Ramos have juris-
diction in Case No. 12263 to quash the attachment levied in Case
No. 115317

In Case No. 12263, it should be recalled, neither a motion to
dismiss nor an answer had been made when the decision under
consideration was handed down. The matter then before the court
was a motion seeking a provisi or remedy,
with and incidental to the principal action. It was a motion to
dissolve the preliminary injunction granted by Judge Pecson res-
training the Sheriff from proceeding with the attachment in Case
No. 11531. The question of dismissal was suggested by Judge Ra-
mos on a ground perceived by His Honor. To all intents and pur-
poses, the dismissal was decreed by the court on its own initiative.

Section 1 of Rule 8 enumerates the grounds upon which an ac-
tion may be dismissed, and it specifically ordains that a motion
to this end be filed. In the light of this express requirement we
do not believe that the court had power to dismiss the case with-
out the requisite motion duly presented. The fact that the parties
filed memoranda upon the . court’s indication  or order in which
they discussed the proposition that the action was unnecessary and
was improperly brought outside and independently of the case for
libel did not supply the deficiency. Rule 30 of the Rules of Court
provides for the cases in which an action may be dismissed, and
the inclusion of those therein provided excludes any other, under
the familiar maxim, inclusio inius est exclusio alterius. The only
instance in which, according to said Rules, the court may dismiss
upon the court’s own motion an action is, when the “plaintiff fails
to appear at the time of the trial or to prosecute his action for an
unreasonable length of time or to comply with the Rules or any
order of the court.” .

The Rules of Court are devised as a matter of necessity, in-
tended to be observed with diligence by the courts as well as by
the parties, for the ovderly conduct of litigation and judicial rules
which gives the court jurisdiction to act.

We are of the opinion that the court acted with grave abuse
of discretion if not in excess of its jurisdiction in dismissing the
case without any formal motion to dismiss.

The foregoing conclusions shonld suffice to dispose of this pro-
ceeding for certiorari, but the parties have discussed the second
question and we propose to rule upon it if only to put out of the
way a probable cause for future controversy and consequent delay
in the disposal of the main cause.

Section 14 of Rule 59, which treats of the steps to be taken
when property attached is claimed by any other persons than the
defendant or his agent, contains the proviso that ‘“‘Nothing herein
contained shall prevent such third person from vindicating his claim
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Utah had found and decided that the plaintiff was “entitled to a
decree condemning a right of way through defendant’s said ditch,
to the extent of widening said ditch one foot more than its present
width, and to a depth of said ditch as now constructed through the
entire length thereof down to plaintiff’s said land, for the purpose
of carrying his said waters of said Fort Canyon creek to the land
of the plaintiff for the purpose of irrigation, and is entitled to an
easement therein to the extent of the enlarging of said ditch, and
for the purposes aforesaid, and to have a perpetual right of way
to flow waters therein to the extent of the said enlargement.” This
wes the background of Mr. Justice Holmes’ statement “that there
might be exceptional times and places in which the very foundations
of public welfare could not be laid without requiring concessions
from individuals to each other upon due compensation.” To con-
demn private land and give it to another is a far ery from “the
condemnation of the land of one individual for the purpose of al-
lowing another individual to obtain waters from a stream in which
he has anm interest, to irrigate his land, which otherwise would re-
main absolutely valueless.”” Similar rights of riparian owners are
expressly recognized by our own Civil Code independently of con-
stitutions.

Attempts are made to differentiate this Court’s recent decisions
from the present case. Actually the material differences which we
can discern serve to show that there is less necessity for condem-
nation in this case than in either of the three cases before referred
to, from the standpoint of the persons intended to be favored, let
alone the public. In the first place, it has been seen that the land
sought to be condemned here has actually been subdivided by its
owners, who have spent considerable money for its improvements
and in the laying out of streets, and is being offered for sale. Some
lots in fact have already been sold and paid for in full or in part.
The people on whose behalf this action has been instituted could
acquire the remaining lots by direct purchase from the defendant
like those purchasers.

In the face of these circumstances, it would appear that in re-
sorting to expropriation, the plaintiff was prompted, not by the
unwillingness of the owners to part with their property but by the
inability of the present tenants or squatters to meet the owner’s
price. By the simple expedient of eminent domain, the City would
acquire the land for a price far below the capital invested therein
and sell it at cost to help the homeless who, it is said in the ap-
pealed decision, have been forced to migrate from the provinces
in search of safer haven in this city. What all this adds up to
then is ceiling price for lands. If the price of lots for sale is be-
yond the reach of some people who want to buy, the City would
bring down the price to the level the poor could afford. That the
city authorities have no power to do such thing, however altruistic
may be the motive behind their action, seems too obvious for ar-
gument.

In the second place, the remaining lots after eliminating the
lots that have already been alienated, are said to be about one-half
of the entire subdivisions or smaller than the land involved in the
Guido case. If the intention is to expropriate the lots that have
been disposed of but have not been fully paid for, along with the
rest of the entire tract, the purchasers have not been made parties,
unlike the buyers to whom title has been issued and who have been
included in the complaint but as to whose lots the complaint has
been dismissed.

The order is reversed and the action dismissed with costs of
both instances against the plaintiff.

Moran, Paras, Feria, Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla,
Reyes, Jugo, Bautista Angelo, — J.J. concur.

Montemayor,
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Manila Herald Publishing Co., et al., Petitioners, vs. Hon. Simeon
Ramos, et al., Respondents, G. R. No. L-4268, January 18, 1951.

1.  PLEADING AND PRACTICE; DISMISSAL OF ACTION BY
COURT MOTU PROPIO.—Section 1 of Rule 8 enumerates the
grounds upon which an action may be dismissed, and it
specifically ordains that a motion to this end be filed. In
the light of this express requirement, the Court of First
Instance has no power to dismiss a case, wherein no mo-
tion to dismiss or an answer had been filed. Even if the
parties file memoranda upon the court’s indication in
which they discuss the proposition that the actien was
necessary and was improperly brought, this would not sup-
ply the deficiency. Rule 30 of the Rules of Court pro-
vides for the cases in which an action may be dismissed,
and the inclusion of those therein provided excludes any
other, under the familiar maxim, ‘“inclusio unius est ex-
clusio alterius.”” The only instance in which, according to
said rules, the court may dismiss upon the court’s own mo-
tion an action is, when the “plaintiff fails to appear at
the time of the trial or to prosecute his action for an un-
reasonable length of time or to comply with the Rules or
any order of the court.” To dismiss the case without any
formal motion to dismiss, would be acting with grave abuse
of discretion if not in excess of jurisdiction.

2. ID.; PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION; THIRD - PARTY
CLAIMS.—Section 14 of Rule 59, which treats of the steps to
be taken when property attached is claimed by any other
person than the defendant or his agent, contains the pro-
viso that “Nothing herein contained shall prevent such third
person from vindicating his claim to the property by any
proper action.” What is “proper action”? Section 1 of
Rule 2 defines action as “an ordinary suit in a court of
Jjustice, by which one party prosecutes another for the en-
forcement or protection of a right, or the prevention or
redress of a wrong,” while section 2, entitled “Commence-
ment of Action,”” says that ‘civil action may be com-
menced by filing a complaint with the court.” “Action” has
acquired a well-defined, technical meaning, and it is in
this restricted sense that the word “action” is used in the
above rule. In employing the word “Commencement” the
rule clearly indicates an action which originates an entire
proceeding and puts in motion the instruments of the court
calling for summons, answer, etc., and not any intermediary
step taken in the course of the proceeding whether by the
parties themsclves or by a stranger. It would be strange
indeed if the framers of the Rules of Court or the Legis-
lature should have employed the term “proper action” in-
stead of “intervention” or equivalent expression if the in-
tention had been just that. The most liberal view that can
be taken in favor of the attaching party’s position is that
intervention as a means of protecting the third-party claim-
ants’ right is not exclusive but cumulative and suppletory to
the right to bring a new, independent suit. It is signi-
ficant that there are courts which go so far as to tzke the
view that even where the statute expressly grants the right
to intervention in such cases as this, the statute does not
extend to owners of property attached, for under this
view, “it is considered that the ownership is not one of
the essential questions to be determined in the litigation
between plaintiff and defendant;” that “whether the pro-
perty belongs to defendant or claimant, if determined, is
considered as shedding no light upon the question in con-
troversy, namely, that defendant is indebted to plaintiff.”
(See 7 C.J.S. 545 and footnote No. 89 where extracts from
the decision in Lewis v. Lewis, 10 N.W. 586, leading case,
are printed.) .

ID.; ID.. — Separate action was indeed said to be the eor-
rect and only procedure contemplated by Act No. 190,
tervention being a new remedy intreduced by the Rules of
Court as addition to, but not in substitution of, the old
process. The new Rules adopted section 121 of Act No. 190
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and added thereto Rule 24(a) of the Federal Rules of Ci-
vil Procedure. (See I Moran’s Comments on the Rules of
Court, 3vd Ed., 238, 239.) Yet, the right to intervene, un-
like the right to bring a new action is not absolute but
left to the sound discretion of the court to allow. This
qualification makes intervention less preferable to an in-
dependent action from the standpoint of the third-party
claimants, at least.

. — Q filed a civil action against B and secured

ry 1 on B’s p M and P filed
with the sheriff separate third-party claims alleging that
they were the owners of the property atteched; and in-
stead of intervening in the case, M and P filed an inde-
pendent action jointly against the sheriff and Q. The first
case was pending before the branch of the court presided
over by Judge S, and the new action is before the branch
of the court presided over by Judge R. Can Judge R en-
tertain a motion to discharge the preliminary attachment
in the action pending before Judge S? Held: The sheriff
is not holding the properties in question by order of Judge S;
in reality this is true only to a limited extent. Judge S did
not direct the sheriff to attach the particular pro-
perty in dispute The order was for the sheriff to at.
tach B’s properties. He was not supposed to touch any
property other than that of B, and if he did, he acted
beyond the limits of his authority and upon his persanal
responsibility. It is true of course that property in cus-
tody of the law cannot be interferred with without the
permission of the proper court and property legally attached
is property in custodia legis. But for the veason just stated,
this rule is confined to cases where the property belongs to
B or one in which B has proprietary interest. When the
sheriff, acting beyond the bounds of his office, seizes M's
and P’s properties, the rule does not apply and interfe-
rence with his custody is not interference with another
court’s order of attachment. None of what has been said,
however, is to be construed as implying that the setting
aside of the'attachment prayed for in the case before Judge
R should be granted. The preceding discussion is in-
tended merely to point out that Judge R has jurisdiction
to act in the premises, not the way the jurisdiction should
be exercised.

Edmundo M. Reyes and Antonio Barredo for petitioners.

Bausa and Ampil for vespondents.

DECISION

perties.

TUASON, J.:

This is a petition for “certiorari with preliminary injunction’
arising upon the following antecedents:

Respondent Antonio Quirino filed a libel suit, docketed as
Civil Case No. 11531, against Aproniano G. Borres, Pedro Padilla
and Loreto Pastor, editor, managing editor and renorter, respec-
tively, of the Daily Record, a daily newspaper published in Ma-
nila asking dameges aggregating P90.000.00. With the filing of
this suit, the plaintiff secured a writ of preliminary attachment
upon -certain office and printing equipment found in the premises
of the Daily Record.

Thereafter the Manila Herald Publishing Co. Inc. and Printers,
Inc., filed with the Sheriff separate third-party claims, alleging that
they were the owners of the property attached. Whereupon, the
Sheriff required of Quirino a counterbond of P41,500 to meet the
claim of the Manila Herald Publishing Co., Inc., and another bond
of P39,500 to meet the claim of Printers, Inc. These amounts, upon
Quirino’s motion filed under Section 13, Rule 59, of the Rules of
Court, were reduced by the court to P11,000 and P10,000 respectively.

Unsuccessful in their attempt to quash the attachment, on Octo-
bex 7, 1950, the Manila Herald Publishing Co., Inc. and Printers,
Inc. commenced a joint suit against the Sheriff, Quirino and Alto
Surety & Insurance Co. Inc., in which the former sought (1) to
enjoin the latter from proceeding with the attachment of the pro-
perties above mentioned and (2) P45,000.00 damages. This suit
was docketed as Civil Case No. 12263,

Whereas Case No. 11531 was being handled by Judge Sanchez or
rending in the branch of the Court presided by him, Case No. 12263
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fell in the branch of Judge Pecson who issued a writ of preliminary
injunction to the Sheriff directing him to desist from preceeding
with the attachment of the said properties. &

After the issuance of that preliminary injunction, Antonio Qui-
rino filed an ex-parte petition for its dissolution, and Judge Si-
meon Ramos, to whom Case No. 12263 had in the meanwhile been
transferred, granted the petition on a bond of P21,000.00. However
Judge Ramos soon set aside the order just mentioned on a motion
for reconsideration by the Manila Herald Publishing Co. Inc. and
Printers, Inc. and set the matter for hearing for October 14, then
continued to Octcher 16,

Upon the conclusion of that hearing, Judge Ramos required
the parties to submit memoranda on the question whether “the
subject matter of Civil Case No. 12263 should be ventilated in an
independent action or by means of a complaint in intervention in
Civil Case No. 11531.” Memoranda having filed, His Honor de-
clared that the suit, in Case No. 12263, was ‘“‘unnecessary, super-
fluous and illegal” and so dismissed the same. He held that what
Manila Herald Publishing Co., Inc., and Printers, Inec., should do
was intervene in Case No. 11531

The questipns that emerge from these facts and the argu-
ments are: Did Judge Ramos have authority to dismiss Case No.
12263 at the stage when it was thrown out of court? Should the
Manila Herald Publishing Co., Inc., and Printers, Inc., come as in-
tervenors into the case for libel instead of bringing an independ-
ent action? And did Judge Pecson or Judge Ramos have juris-
diction in Case No. 12263 to quash the attachment levied in Case
No. 115317

In Case No. 12263, it should be recalled, neither a motion to
dismiss nor an answer had been made when the decision under
consideration was handed down. The matter then before the court

vas a motion seeking a provisi or remedy, d
with and incidental to the principal action. It was a motion to
dissolve the preliminary injunction granted by Judge Pecson res-
training the Sheriff from proceeding with the attachment in Case
No. 11531. The question of dismissal was suggested by Judge Ra-
mos on a ground perceived by His Honor. To all intents and pur-
poses, the dismissal was decreed by the court on its own initiative.

Section 1 of Rule 8 enumerates the grounds upon which an ac-
tion may be dismissed, and it specifically ordains that a motion
to this end be filed. In the light of this express requirement we
do not believe that the court had power to dismiss the case with-
out the requisite motion duly presented. The fact that the parties
filed memoranda upon the. court’s indication or order in which
they discussed the proposition that the action was unnecessary and
was improperly brought outside and independently of the case for
libel did not supply the deficiency. Rule 30 of the Rules of Court
provides for the cases in which an action may be dismissed, and
the inclusion of those therein provided excludes any other, under
the familiar maxim, inclusio inius est exclusio alterius. The only
instance in which, according to said Rules, the conrt may dismiss
upon the court’s own motion an action is, when the “plaintiff fails
to appear at the time of the trial or to prosecute his action for an
unreasonable length of time or to comply with the Rules or any
order of the court.” *

The Rules of Court are devised as a matter of necessity, in-
tended to be observed with diligence by the courts as well as by
the parties, for the orderly conduct of litigation and judicial rules
which gives the court jurisdiction to act.

We are of the opinion that the court acted with grave abuse
of discretion if not in excess of its jurisdiction in dismissing the
case without any formal motion to dismiss.

The foregoing conclusions shonld suffice to dispose of this pro-
ceeding for certiorari, but the parties have discussed the second
question and we propose to rule upon it if only to put out of the
way a probable cause for future controversy and consequent delay
in the disposal of the main cause.

Section 14 of Rule 59, which treats of the steps to be taken
when property attached is claimed by any other persons than the
defendant or his agent, contains the proviso that ‘“Nothing herein
contained shall prevent such third person from vindicating his claim
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to the property by any proper action.”” What is “proper action”?
Section 1 of Rule 2 defines action as “an ordinary suit in a court
of justice, by which one party prosecutes another for the enforce-
ment or protection of a right, or the prevention or redress of a
wrong,” while Section 2, entitled “Commencement of Action,” says
that “civil action may be d by filing a int with
the court.”

“Action” has acquired a well-defined, technical meaning, and
it is in this vestricted sense that the word ‘‘action” is used in the
akove rule. In i the word t” the rule
clearly indicates an action which originates an entire proceeding
and puts in motion the instruments of the court calling for sum-
mons, answer, etc., and not any intermediary step taken in the
court of the proceeding whether by the parties themselves or by
a stranger. It would be strange indeed if the framers of the Rules
of Court or the Legislature should have employed the term “proper
action” instead of “intervention’” or equivalent expression if the
intention had been just that. It was all the easier, simpler and
the more natural to say intervention if that had been the purpose,
since the asserted right of the third-party claimant necessarily
grows out of a pending suit, the suit in which the order of at-
tachment was issued.

The most liberal view that can be taken in favor of the res-
pondents’ position is that intervention as a means of protecting
the third-party claimants’ right is not exclusive but cumulativce
and suppletory to the right to bring a new, independent suit. It
is significant that there are courts which go so far as to take the
view that even where the statute expressly grants the right of in-
tervention in such cases as this, the statute does not extend to
owners of property attached, for, under this view, “it is considered
that the ownership is not cne of the essential questions to be deter-
mined in the litigation between plaintiff and defendant;”” that “whe-
ther the property belongs to defendant or claimant, if determined
is considered as shedding mo light upon the question in controversy,
namely, that defendant is indebted to plaintiff.” See 7 C.J. S. 545
and footnote No. 89 where extracts from the decision in Lewis v.
Lewis, 10 N.W. 586, a leading case, are printed.

Separate action was indeed said to be the correct and only
procedure contemplated by Act No. 190, intervention being a new
remedy introduced by the Rules of Court as addition to, but not
in substitution of, the old process. The new Rules adopted Section
121 of Act No. 190 and added thereto Rule 24 (a) of the Federal
Rules of Procedure. Combined, the two modes of redress are now
Section 1 of Rule 13(1) the last clause of which is the newly
added provision. The result is that, whereas, ‘“under the old pro-
cedure, the third person could not intervene, he having no interest
in the debt (or damages) sued upon by the plaintiff,” under the
present Rules, “a third person claiming to he the owner of such
property may, not only file a third-party claim with one sheriff,
but also intervene in the action to ask that the writ of attachment
be quashed.” (I Moran’s Comments on the Rules of Court, 3rd
Ed. 238, 239.) Yet, the right to intervene, unlike the right to bring
a new action, is not absolute but left to the sound discretion of
the court to allow. This qualification makes intervention less pre-
ferable to an independent action from the standpoint of the claim-
ants, at least. Because availability of intervention depends upon
the court in which Case No. 11531 is pending, there would be no
assurance for the herein petitioners that they would be permitted
to come into that case.

Little reflection should disabuse the mind from the assump-
tion that an independent action creates a multiplicity of suits.
There can be no multiplicity of suits when the parties in the suit
where the attachment was levied are different from the parties
in the new action, and so are the issues in the two cases entirely dif-
ferent. In the circumstances, separate action might, indeed, be
the more convenient of the two competing modes of redress, in that
intervention is more likely to inject confusion into the issues
between the parties in the case for debt or damages with which
the third-party claimant has nothing to do and thereby retard in-
stead of facilitate the prompt dispatch of the controversy which is
the underlying objective of the rules of pleading and practice. That
is why intervention is subject to the court’s discretion.

The same reasons which impelled us to decide the second ques-
tion, just discussed, urge us to take cognizance of and express an
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opinion on the third.

The objection that at once suggests itself to entertaining in
Case No. 12263 the motion to discharge the preliminary attach-
ment levied in Case No. 11531 is that by so doing one judge would
interfere with ancther judge’s actuations. The objection is superficial
and will not bear analysis.

It has been seen that a separate action by the third-party
who claims to be the owner of the property attached is appropriate.
If this is so, it must be admitted that the judge trying such action
may render judgment ordering the sheriff or whoever has in pos-
session the attached property to deliver it to the plaintiff-claimant
or desist from seizing it. It follows further that the court may
make an interlocutory order, upon the filing of such bond as may
be necessary, to release the property pending final adjudication of the
title. ~ Jurisdiction over an action includes jurisdiction over an in-
terlocutory matter incidental to the cause and deemed necessary
to preserve the subject matter of the suit or protect the parties’
interests. This is self-evident.

The fault with the respondents’ argument is that it assumes
that the Sheriff is holding the property in question by order of the
court handling the case for libel. In reality this is true only to a
limited extent. That court did not direct the Sheriff to attack
the particular property in dispute. The order was for the Sheriff
to attach Borres’, Padilla’s and Pastor’s property. He was not
supposed to touch any property other than that of these defend-
ants’, and if he did, he acted beyond the limits of "his authority
and upon his personal responsibility.

It is true of course that property in custody of the law can
not be interfered with without the permission of the proper court,
and property legally attached is property in custodia legis. But for
the reason just stated, this rule is confined to cases where the pro-
perty belongs to the defendant or one in which the defendant has
proprietary interest. When the sheriff acting beyond the hounds
of his office seizes a stranger’s property, the rule does not apply
and interference with his custody is not interference with another
court’s order of attachment.

It may be argued that the third-party claim may be unfounded;
but so may it be meritorious for that matter. Speculations are .
however beside the point. The title is the very issue in the case
fer the recovery of property or the dissolution of the attachment, and
pending final decision, the court may enter any interlocutory order
calculated to preserve the property in litigation and protect the
parties’ rights and interests.

None of what has been said is to be construed as implying
that the setting aside of the attachment prayed for by the plain-
tiffs in Case No. 12263 should be granted. The preceding discus-
sion is intended merely to point out that the court has jurisdiction
te act in the premises, not the way the jurisdiction should be exer-
cised. The granting or denial, as the case may be, of the prayer
for the dissolution of the attachment would be a proper subject
of a new proceeding if the party adversely affected should be dis-
satisfied.

The petition for certiorari is granted with costs against the
T d except the r d Judge.

Moran, Paras, Feria, Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla; Montemayor;
Reyes, Jugo, Bautista Angelo, J.J. concur.

(D Section 1. When Propes—A person may, av iny pecicd of a trial, he re
mtied by the court, in its dirction, to intervene tion .f e s |

fervet i the matter fn litigation or in the sucess of either of the
ainat both, of when ho Ia 5o sitanted a8 o he saversely Afiesied by @ dlstrie
h~ i "g or other disposition 0f Droperty in the iikady OF the #OUFG gb Of B SIfGe
thereof

RECOGNIZE THEIR RESPECTIVE
RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued from page 111)
(which, by the way, is represented not only by the Supreme Court
but also by the Court of Appeals, Court of First Instance, municipal
and justice of the peace courts, and even such other commissions and
boards as are exercising quasi-judicial powers). As this Convention
closes and the conventionists return to their own localities, it is my
fervent hope and plea that all concerned will ever be responsibility
conscious. '
Happy New Year to all.
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REPUBLIC ACTS

(REPUBLIC ACT NO. 847) b{
AN ACT TRANSFERRING THE MEDICAL ‘AND NTAL
SERVICES TO THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House
Philipvines in Congress assembled:

of Representatives of the

“SECTION 1. The~Medical and Dental Services in the Public
Schools which is now functioning as a division of the Bureau of
Health, since January first, nineteen hundred and fifty-one, is here-
by transferred or returned back to the Department of Education
as a division of that Dep where it origi; 1 d from
nineteen hundred and forty-six to nineteen hundred and fifty: Pro-
vided, That the supervision of hygiene and sanitation shall be exer-
cised by the Department of Health.

Sec. 2. All Jaws, acts, executive orders, or parts thereof.
consistent with provision of this act are hereby repealed.

See. 3. This Act shall take effect upon its approval.

Enacted on May 23, 1953, withcut the Executive approval.

in-

(REPUBLIC ACT NO. 837) A
AN _ACT REORGANIZING THE GENERAL
AUDITING OFFICE

Be it enucted by the Senate and House of Rpresentatives
of the Philippines in Congress assembled: X

Section 1. The Auditor General is hereby authorized to re-
organize with the approval of the President of the Philippines,
the General Auditing Office within six months from the date of
approval of this Act.

Sec. 2. The xemgamzatwn herein zuthorized shall be done
within the limits of the appropriation of the General Auditing
Office as provided in the General Appropriation Act in force at
the time of such reorganization. The Auditor General, is how-
ever, authorized to use savings from said appropriation to carry
out the provisions this Act: Provided, That the Deputy Auditor
General shall receive an annual salary not exceeding twelve thou-
sand pesos and each head of department and his assistant, not
exceeding seven thousand two hundred pesos and six thousand pesos,
respectively.

Sec. 3. Effective upon the approval of this Act, the salaries
of provincial and city auditors shall be paid in the same manner
as: they ave paid now from provincial and city funds, as the ease
may be, at rates not less than those fixed by law for provincial
and city treasurers in the respective places where they are appointed.

Sec. 4. The reorganization to be made by the Auditor General
pursuant to the provisions of this Act shall be reported, through
the President of the Philippines, ‘o the Congress not later than
thirty -days from the date it becomes effective and shall be valid
and subsisting until Congress shall provide otherwise in its next
regular - session in connection with the annual appropriation law.

Sec. 5. All laws or perts of laws which are or may be in conflict
with any of the provisions of this Act are hereby repealed.

“Sec. '6. This Act shall take effect upon its approval

Approved, March 20, 1953.

(REPUBLIC ACT NO. 945)
AN ACT TO AMEND SECTION ONE THOUSAND SIX
HUNDRED AND FIFTY-NINE OF THE REVISED \/
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, AS AMENDED.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Rpresentatwes
of the Philippines in Congress assembled:

Section 1. Section one thousand six hundred and fifty-nine
of the Revised Administrative Code, as ded, is hereby further
amended to read as follows:

“Sec. 1659. Chief Officials of Office of the Solicitor Genernl,
“The Office of the: solicitor General shall have one chief to be
known as the Solicitor General whose salary shall be twelve thou-
sand pesos per avnwm and shall have the rank of an Undersecretary
of a Department. He shall be assisted by one First Assistant So-
licitor General whose salary shall be ten thousand pesos per annum.
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When the Solicitor General is unable perform his duties or in case
of a vacancy in the office, the First Assistant Solicitor General
shall temporarily perform the functions of said officer, or, in his
absence, the next Assistant Solicitor General who is senior in the
service. There shall also be four Assistant Solicitors General each
of whom shall receive a salary of seven thousand eight hundred
pesos per annum, and twenty-four Solicitors whose salaries shall
be as follows:

“(a) Four Solicitors, six thousand six hundred pesos per an.
%iuwim each;

“(b) Four Solicitors, six thousand pesos per annum each;

“(¢) Five Solicitors, five thousand four hundred pesos per an-
num each;

“(d) Five Solicitors, five thousand one hundred pesos per un-
num each;

“(e) Six Solicitors, four thousand eight hundred pesos per

annum each.

“The qualifications for appointment to the posistion of Solici-
tor General, the First Assistant Solicitor General and the four Assis-
tant Solicitors General shall be the same as those prescribed for
Judges of Courts of First Instance and those of Solicitors shall
be the same as those prescribed for provincial fiscals.””

See. 2. To carry out the purposes of this Act and in addition
to such sum as may have been provided for under current appro-
priation there is hereby appropriated out of any funds in the National
Treasury not otherwise appropriated the amount of twenty-two
thousand nine hundred pesos for the fiscal year ninteen hundred
and fifty-four.

Sec. 8. This Act shall take effect on July first, nineteen hun-
dred and fifty-three.

Approved, June 20, 1953.

(REPUBLIC ACT NO. 912)

AN ACT TO REQUIRE THE USE, UNDER CERTAIN CONDI-
TIONS, OF PHILIPPINE MADE MATERIALS OR PRO-
DUCTS IN GOVERNMENT PROJECTS OR PUBLIC WORKS
CONSTRUCTION, WHETHER DONE DIRECTLY BY THE
GOVERNMENT OR AWARDED THRU CONTRACTS.

Be it enucted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the
I ines in Congress

SECTION 1. In construction or repair work undertaken by the
Government, whether done directly or thru contract awards, Philip-
pine made materials and products, whenever available, practicable
and usable, and will serve the purpose as equally well as foreign made
products or materials, shall be used in said construction or repair
work, upon the proper certification of the availability, practicability,
usability and durability of said materials or products by the Director
of the Bureau of Public Works and/or his assistants.

SEC. 2. For the purpose of carrying into effect the purposes of
this Act, the Director of Public Works shall prepare or cause to be
prepared, from time to time, a list of building and construction ma-
terials and products made in the Philippines that are available, dura-
blie, usable and practicable for construction and building purposes.

SEC. 3. No contract may be awarded under the provisions of
1his Act unless the contractor agrees to comply with the requirements
of this Act, and a contract already awarded may be rescinded for
unjustified failure to so comply.

SEC. 4. It shall be the duty of the Director of Public Works and/or
his assistants, including the district engineers, to see to it that the
requirements of this Act are faithfully complied with by the persons
cencerned, and failure on their part to do so shall subject them to
dismissal from the government service or other disciplinary action.

SEC. 5. The Director of Public Works, subject to the approval
of the Secretery of Public Works and Communications, is hereby
empowered to promulgate such rules and regulations as may be ne-
cessary to carry into effect the purposes of this Act.

SEC. 6. This Act shall take effect upon its approval.

Approved, June 20, 1953.
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MEMORANDUM OF THE CODE COMMISSION

e

(Continted from the February Issue)

proposed d ts te

This memorandum ts upon
Book III of the new Cvil Code. Except in regard to succession
the articles ave consecutively dealth with, thus: Arts. 712, 719, 721,
ete.

In the part concerning succession, the amendments ure com.
mented upon by placing togefher those that ave proposed by the
same proponent. Moreover, those suggestions not coming from ei-
ther Congressman Tolentino or Justice J. B. L. Reyes are discussed
together.

ARTICLE 712

Justice J. B. L. Reyes criticizes the placing of donation in
Book IIT as one of the modes of acquiring ownership.

The Code Commission knew that there were civilists who dis-
agreed with this arrangement, among them Sanchez Roman. How-
ever, after carveful consideration, the Commission perferred to
tain the arrangement of the Spanish Civil Code, for these reasons:

1. The reasonings of Sanchez Roman did not quite convince
the Commission. It should be noted that the Commission adopted
the solution of Sanchez Roman concerning intellectual ecreation
and prescription and therefore included these two subjects among
the modes of acquiring ownershin. However, in regard to dona-
tion, Sanchez Roman did not quite convince the Commission, and
preferred the reasons of Manresz found in Vol. 6 of his commen-
taries where he discusses the grounds for not placing’ donation
among the contracts. Manresa says:

“Atendiendo a estos preceplos, las donaciones entre vivos
sen indudablemente contratos, porque hay concurso de volun-
tades, hay objeto y causa. Son contratos gratuitos o de pura
beneficencia, cuyo objeto es la dacion de una cosa o de un
derecho sobre esa cosa

“Pero este argumento es de aquellos que, pro probar de-
masiado, nada prueban contra la idea del legislador, al se-
parar la donacion como un modo especial de adqui Con-
sentimiento, objeto y causa hay en las sucesiones, en el ma-
trimonio. et cetera, y podrian estimarse tambien contratos
dentro de estos limnamentos generales que tanto abarcan.
El Codigo no niega que pueda estimarse como contrato la
donacion, pero la estudia aparte y la considera como un
modo especial de adquirir, porque no ha podido mencs de ob-
servar que son demasiadas las especialidades que presenta res-
pecto a los demas contratos ordinarios, especialidades que la
acercan bastante a las sucesiones.

“A que obedece esa especialidad? La unica diferencia, dice
Savigny, entre el contrato y la donacion, consiste en que aque
puede aplicarse a toda clase de relaciones de derecho, mien-
tras que esta aplica solamente al derecho de bienes. Pero
no es esto solo: no obedece le especialidad de la donacion a
que sea su objeto la dacion de una cosa, y, por tanto, modo de
adquirir y transmitir la propiedad, porque lo mismo ocurre
en la compraventa, la permuta, el censo, etc., y a estcs actos
se les llama contratos y se incluyen como un modo distinto
de transmitir y de adqui No obedece tempoco la especiali-
dad a que constituyan las donaciones un acto de pura liberali-
dad, porque el mandatario que administra gratuitamente los
bienes de un amigo o pariente, el gestor de negocios, en iguales
casos, el que voluntariamente y sin premio ni interes alguno
presta un servicio cualquiera, obran tambien gratuitamente
y por mera liberalidad, y, sin embargo, estos actos son tra-
tados por el Codigo entre los contratos.

“El caracter especial de las donaciones nace de las dos
circunstancias reunidas a que nos hemos referido, no de una
sola de ellas. Notese que los actos gratuitos de que hemos
hecho mencion no constituyent modos de adquirir el dominio no,
consisten en la dacion de cosas. Notese que los otros modos
de adquirir que, como contratos, estudia el Codigo, tienen todos
Tng causa onerosa o remuneratoriz. Notese, por ultimo (arti-
culo 1,187) que la condonacion, unico acto que puede reunir
los expresados caracteres, sigue las reglas de las donaciones,
como que es una verdadera donacion.

“Hay, pues, un grupo especial de actos, o si se quiere de
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contratos, que al mismo tiempo tienen una causa gratuita y
constituyen un modo de adquirir. Este grupo esta formado ex-
clusivamente por las donaciones.

“Pero tambien es un modo de adquirir, con causa pura-
mente gratuita, la sucesion testada o intestada. Luego las do-
naciones tienen una naturaleza muy semejante a las sucesiones.
Pues de esta casi identidnd de naturaleza, de esta estrecha re-
lacion entre ambas instituci nace f y contra
la woluntad de todo legislador que intendra desconocerlo, la
especialidad de la donacion como modo de adquirir.

“Cierto que las donaciones producen sus efectos en vida
del donante, y en las sucesiones esos efectos se producen por
la muerte del que dispone de los bienes; cierto que, como una
consecuencia de los dicho, es irrevocable la donacion y puede
revocarse el testamento hasta la hora de la muerte. Pero pre-
cisamente por esos motivos, ambas instituciones sin dejar de
ser semajantes no son identicas. Si bien el heredero, continua
a veces la personalidad de causante no hacemos mencion de esta
circunstancia poraue no es un caracter distinto todas las suce-
siones, y que los legatarjos y aun los mismos herederos, si aceptan
la herencia a beneficio de inventario, suceden por testamento y

no confuden su personalidad con la del difunto.

“Desde el momento en que hay actos por los que se trans-
mite gratuitamente la propiedad en vida, y actos por los que
gratuitamente se transmite la propiedad para despues de la
muerte, la ley tiene que imporer a unos y otros actos iguales
limitaciones. Como va a prohibir a un testador que disponga

libremente de sus bienes para despues de su muerte, si con-
siente que se desprenda de ellos gratuitamente durante su
vida? O habia que suprimir las legitimas, o era necesario
limitar las donaciones.

“Ante esta idad, las reglas les de los
no podian sevir para las donaciones. Y mo se diga que cada
contrato tiene su modo de ser especial, debiendo forzosnmente
seguir reglas distintas la compraventa que la sociedad, el
mandato que la fianza, etc., porque ni nos referimos solo
a las reclas especiales, ni contrato alguno, como la donacion,
es. del mismo modo que las sucesiones modo de adquirir por
titulo gratuito.

“Asi es que empezamos por notar que muchos que pue-
den contratar no pueden hacer donaciones, y que, en cambio,
pueden ser donatarios y aun aceptar donaciones muchos que
no mneden contratar. Bajo el primer aspecto, como van a
justificar el padre o el tutor la necesidad o la utilidad de aue
el hifo o el menor nagan donacion simvle de sus bienes? Ba-
jo el segnndo, basta leer los articulos 625 y 626 para con-
vencerse de que la canacidad para adquirir por donacion se
acerca mas a la capacidad para adquirir por herencia o lesado,
y aun tiene menos trabas lecales, porque hay menos temor de
que sea onerosa la adquisicion.

“Continuamos viendo que una persona puede contratar
sobre todos sus bienes. mero mo todos nuede donarlos, v que
nadie nuede dar ni recibir por via de donacion mas de lo que
pueda dar recibir por testamento.

“Vemos, por ultimo, la especialidad de las reglas de la
donacion para su rescision en el caso de que haya fraude de
acreedores. sus causas de r ion, su rednecion
por inoficiosas, y, en fin, las reglas que llenan el Codico en
el tratado de los sucesion, v no se aplican a los contratos,
sino solo a Jas donaciones de las aue ofrecen ejemnlo los ar-
tienlos 811, 812 817, al 820, 325, 869, 968, 1.035, 1,089, 1.040,
1044, 1046 a 1.048, etc.

“Y como todas esta reglas no son caprichosas, como obe-
decen a una verdadera necesidad y arrancan de la naturaleze
misma de 1a donacion, no hay mas remedio que reconocer con
cuanta razon el Codigo espafiol, siguiendo el ejemplo de otros
muchos, ha considerado a las donaciones como un modo espe-
cial de adquirir y las ha estudiado separadamente de los con-
tratos.”
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2 Aside from the foregoing considerations of Manresa, the
Code Commission had in mind the distinction between actos juri-
dicos and contratos. The former arc more under the control of
law than of the will of the partics. Therefore, in adoption and
marriage, for example, the parties are not free to agree upon the
conditions of the marriage or adoption because the law steps in for
veasons of public policy to fix special conditions and limitations.
The same thing occurs in regard to donation; thus there is a limit
as to the amount that may be donated (Art. 750 to 752), incapa-
city to succeed by will is applicable to donations infer wvivos (Art.
740); donations have special ways of revocation aud reduction
(Chap. 1V, Title III, Book III.) in this comncction, Sanchez Ro-
man himself, in spite of his reasonings, had to define donation as
“un acto de liberalidad” and did not use the word “contrato.”
He also admits that:

“x x x si puede tener el acto independiente existencia juri-
dica por la sola voluntad del donante, y si bajo este punto de
vista, en sw origen la donacion, como consecuencia del derecho
que tenemcs a disponer de lo que es nuestro, es unica.y ex-
clusivamente un acto de nusetra liberrima voluntad, sin tener
para nada en cuenta, el consentimiento del donatavio, y en
este sentido hemos considerado la donacion en general, al de-
terminar su naturaleza x x @’

3. But Sanchez Roman says that: ‘“‘una vez concurriendo las
dos ‘voluntades de donante, y donatario por la aceptacion, ese-acto
unilateral viene a convertirse en una relacion contractual, y la do-
nacion de simple acto de beneficiencia o liberalidad, transformase
en un contrato,” Our comment is that the perfection of the act
of liberality by the donee’s acceptance does not give rise to 2 con-
tract but to a donation.

4. Lastly, there is something to be said in favor of Napo-
leon’s view that “el contrato impone cargas mutuas a los dos con-
tratantes, y por tanto esta expresion contrato mo puede convenir
a la donacion” A pure.gift being a sheer act of generosity im-
poses no obligations on the donee. Therefore, in the common
acceptance of the word “contract,” it can not properly be applied
to a simple donation. 5

With regard to the proposal of Justice Reyes that the title
of tradition should be dealt with separately and not merely undex
the Title on Sales, that suggestion should be discussed in con-
nection with the proposed amendment adding Title VI on tradition.

Title I. — OCCUPATION

Justice Reyes says that the Code fails to make an exception
of goods found and salvaged at sea, which are governed by special
rules. (Salvage Act). He further says that the Code also fails
to clarify the situation of the movables east ashore by the sca
waves and those sunk and lying in the water, at the bottom of the
sea or rivers.

OQur comment is that, as to the first point, this matter is gov-
erned by the Salvage Act and should not be covered again in the
new Civil Code.

With regard to the second class of cases, they should be the
subfect of special legislation. (See our comment under Art. 507.)
Title 1I. — INTELLECTUAL CREATION

Justice Reyes says that paragraph 4 should be amended so as
to read: “(4). The discoverer or inventor with regard to his dis-
covery or invention,” omitting the words “scientist or technologist”
in order that by the ejusden generis rule of interpretation the
sentence may not be limited to technologically trained men.

We are sorry to disagree with the proposed amendment hecause
the phrase “any other person’ is broad enough to cover any other
person. There is no ground to fear that if any layman, not a
scientist, should make a scientific discovery any court would deny
him the right to have a patent just because he is not a scientist.
Moreover, there is nothing in the law on Patents which limits the
right to give a patent to a scientist or technologist. In this con-
nection Art. 742 provides that special laws govern copyright and
patent.

ARTICLE 72}

Justice Reyes says that this article should include. trade-marss
and trade-names. The suggestion is accepted. Moreover, the word
“service-mark” should also be included. As amended, the article
should read as follows:

‘ART. 724. Special laws govern copyrights, patents, trade-
marks, service-marks and trade-names.”
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Title 11II. DONATION
ARTICLE 725

Justice Reyes reiterates his suggestion that this entire title
should be transferred to an appropriate place in Book IV on Ob-
ligations and Contracts. Reference is made to our comment under
Art. 712,

ARTICLES 733 and 754

Justice Reyes suggests the amendment of Art. 733, by ecalling
donations with a burden, onerous donations, so that the article
will not confliet with Art. 754.

There is no contradiction between Arts. 733 and 754 because
they refer to the same kind of donation with a burden, although
the donation in Art. 788 is looked at from the standpoint of the
cause, while the donation in Art. 754 is viewed from the stand-
point of effect. In both articles the thing donated is worth more
than the burden. .

Castan divides donations on the basis of their cause, into sim-
ple and remuneratory; and on the basis of their effect, into pure,
conditional and onerous. The very wording of Art. 733 shows
that a remuneratory donation may carry with it a burden, that
is to say, a donation motivated by a desire to reward services
may impose a burden on the donee. This makes Art: 733 entirely
consistent with Art. 754 where an onerous donation, viewed from
the standpoint of its effect, also implies a burden.

In support of the foregoing, we quote Castan’s “Derecho Civil
Espaiiol,” in his exposition of “Donacion” (vol. 3, pp. 96-99):

“3. Sus clases.—

XXX

“B. Por su causa o motivo. — Se dividen a este res-
pecto las donaciones en simples y remuneratorias. Son simples
las que no reconocen otras causa que la. liberalidad del donante;

y remumeratorias acquellas a que alude el art. 619 del codigo

civil, al decir que es tambien donacion la que se hace a una

persena. por sus meritos o por los servicios prestados al do-

nante, siempre que no constituyan deudas exigibles x x x

“C. Por sus efectos. — Se dividen las donaciones en pu-
ras, condicionalis y onerosas. EIl Codigo se refiere a estas
ultimas al decir que son tambien donaciones aquellas en que
se impone al donatario un gravamen inferior al valor de lo
donado (art. 619), y que las donaciones con causa onerosz se
vigen por las veglas de los contratos. (art. 622). Pero esta
ultima disposicion hay que e¢ntender sera solo apicable a las

i {ones impropras que 1 un wal

al walor de lo donado; pues en las otras es matural que al

de la d ion sobre el g se le li

las reglas de la donacion.”

Our comment is that this last is a donacion remunerctoria by
ils causa or motivo.

ARTICLE 787

Congressman Arturo M. Tolentino suggests that Art. 737 be
amended so as to read as follows: “The donor must have the
capacity to donate at the time he makes the donation and when
he learns of its acceptance.”

Atty. R. M. Jalandoni also makes the same proposal.

The reason adduced is that inasmuch as under Art. 734 do-
nation is perfected from the moment the donor knews of its ac-
ceptance by the donee, therefore, the capacity of the donor must
also exist at the said moment in order that the donation may be valid.

However, the Code Commission does not believe that Art. 734
should require the capacity of the donor at the time of the accept-
ance by the donee is conveyed, because if, for example, the donor
has become insane, his guardian’s knowledge of the acceptance
should be sufficient. In the case the donor should become a bank-
rupt, the k ledge of the a icated to the as-
signee should like be sufficient.

Justice Reyes proposes that it should be made clear that bank-
1uptey or civil interdiction of the donor after making the donation
does not bar the effectivity.

However, it is quite clear from the wording of the article, that
if the donor loses his capacity after making the donation, that does
not rescind the donation, because it is expressly stated that the
donor’s capacity shall be determined as of the time of the making
of the donation. In other words, subsequent incapacity dees not
affect the donation.
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ARTICLE 739

Justice Reyes says that the word ‘“void” should be changed
te ‘““voidable”.

However, the intention of the Code Commission is to make these
donations void from the beginning, because they are immoral or
against public policy. The fact that the last paragraph refers
to an action for declaration of nullity does not mean that the do-
nation is only voidable, because even if a contract is void from
the beginning, a judicial declaration to that effect is necessary.
Art. 1410 provides: “The action or defense for the declaration
of the inexistence of a contract does not prescribe.”

In this connection, Art. 1409 provides: “The following con-
tracts are inexistent and void from the beginning:

Uxix xx X

“(7). Those exprbssly prohibited or declared void by law.”

ARTICLE 760 Par. 8

Justice Reyes asks why adoption in paragraph 2 should refer
orly to a minor child, whereas Art. 337 permits adoption of a person
of legal age.

The intention of the Commission is that the subsequent adop-
tion of a minor child should be the only case where adoption may
cause the revocation or reduction of the donation, for these reasons:

1. The adeption of a person of legal age is usually not to
have an heir but only for purpose of expressing the adopter’s af-
fection.

2. The subsequent adoption of a person of age should not give
the latter a chance to ask the donee for the revocation or redue-
tion of donations previously made, because this would give him
an opportunity to meddle with, or inquire into, past generosities
of the adopter. The Code Commission believes that such would be

The donations il Art. 739 are among the tr:
or declared void by law.” This is clear from the fact that the first
line of Art. 739 clearly states, “The following donations shall be void.”'

ARTICLE 749

Justice Reyes proposes that the words *“‘and vice vsrm” shonld
be added to accord with Art. 1028. The latter arlicle provides:
“The pxohibit\ons mentioned in article 739, conceming donations
inter vivos shall apply to testamentary provisions.”

In view of the clearness of Art. 1028, the words “and »ice versa”
need not be added to Art. 740.

ARTICLE 742

There is no vagueness in Art. 742 because Arts. 311, 316 rmd 320,

clearly state who represent the child.
ARTICLE 719, Lost Par.

Justice Reyes asks who is supposed to make the notification te
the donor that his donation has been accepted. He states that it
is doubtful if notaries have the power undér the Administrative
Code, to make the notification.

The last paragraph of this article states that the donor shall
be notified “in an authentic form.” The notification need not be
done by the notary; it may be done by the donee himself in writing
signed by him, transmitting the separate instrument of acceptance,
which shall be in a public document, according to paragraph 2

k ARTICLE 750

Justice Reyes proposes that donations exceeding, sey P500,
be approved by the court in order to be valid. He says this would
save ulterior litigation.

The Code Commission believes that such requirement would
be an expensive red-tape and would hamper the generosity of bene-
factors. Before the donation is approved, creditors and heirs
would appear and make objections which may not be well founded

With regard to the possibility of fraud on creditors, if any
person wants to perpetrate such fraud, he usually makes a simu-
lated sale of his property. Therefore, to he logical, it should also
be required that all sales shall be approved by the court, because
they may be intended to defraud the creditors.

We believe that the requiremment herein proposed by Justicc
Reyes will be an undue interference with the citizen’s freedom of
action. If he is violating the law, the statutes both penal and
civil are sufficiently comprehensive to make him suffer the con-
sequences.

ARTICLE 753

Justice Reyes suggests that the last part of the first paragraph
ba amended to read: “There shall be no right of accretion among
them by reason of a donee’s incapacity, refucal or failure to accept
the dcnation, unless the donor has otherwise provided.”

His reasons are as follows:

1. That predecease is not applicable unless the death takes
place before the donation is perfected.

2. It is rare to meet an express repudiation of donations;
most of the time, the donee will simply fail to,accept.

With regard to the first reason, inasmuch as Justice Reyes
himself admits that death before the donation is perfected may
give rise to accretion, therefore, predecease is one of the possibili-
ties foreseen in the article. The first paragraph, therefore, vrovides
that in such a case there shall be no right of accretion, unless the
donor has otherwise provided.

With regard to the second veason, failure to act is an im-
plied repudiation.
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hensible act of interference on the part of the adopted person.
ARTICLE 761

Justice Reyas proposes that the fourth and fifth lines of this
article be eliminated, that is to say, “taking into account the
whole estate of the donor at the time of the birth, appearance or
adoption of a child.”

The question involved is whether the basis of computation
should be the property of the donor at the time of the birth, ap-
pearance or adoption of a child, or at the time of the donor’s death.

Justice Reyes says that it sheuld be the latter. But inasmuch
as the action is usually brought during the lifetime of the denor,
there is no way of computing his property at the time of his
death, therefore, the only way to have an approximate cemputa-
tion is to take intc account the property of the donor at the time
of the birth or appearance or adoption of the child.

But, Justice Reyes says, that testator may acquire sufficient
assets after the appearance of the child to render revocation or re-
duction of the donation unnecessary. In such a case the revocation
may be rescinded or the reduction modified upon petition of the
donor.

There is some similarity in this way of computation to the
case of the compulsory dowry under the old Civil Code. In ac-
cordance with Art. 1841 of the old Code, the compulsory dowry.
consisted in one-half of the presumptive strict legitime.

ARTICLE 762-763

Justice Reyes proposes the elmination of these two articles
for the reasons he stated in Art. 761.

Inasmuch as the reasons have been refuted, these two artlcles
should be retained

a repr

ARTICLE 163

Atty. R. M. Jalandoni proposes that the words ‘“ or from his
legitimation, recognition” be eliminated from Art. 763 because,
he says, the mere birth of a child of the dJdonor, whether
the child be legitimate or illegitimate, is a ground for a revocation.

It is true that even a spurious child is entitled to a legitime
under the new Civil Code. However, the relation of parent and
child, that is to say, paternity and filiation, must be judicially
declared in order that the spurious child may be entitled to a
legitime. For this reason, the words “from the judicial declara-
tion of filiation” are used in Art. 763.

The words “birth of the first child” refer to a legitimate
child; “or from his legitimation” refer to a legitimated child;
“‘recognition” refers to an acknowledged natural child or a mne
tural child by legal fiction; “or adoption” refer to an adopted
child. And, lastly, the words “or from the judicial declaration
of filiation” refer to a spurious child.

Therefore, the amendment would not be necessary or in order.

ARTICLE 765

Justice Reyes proposes that this article should make reference
to Art. 107 as an additional ground for revoking donations by
reason of ingratitude.

Art. 107 provides: “The innocent spouse, after a decree of
legal separation has been granted, may revoke the donations by
reason of marriage made by him or by her to the offending spouse-
Alienations and mortgages made before the notation of the com-
plaint for revocation in the Registry of Préperty shall be valid.

“This action lapses after four years following the date the
decree become final.”
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It is not necessary to refer expressly to Art. 107 because par.
1 of Art. 765 says: “(1) If the donee should commit some offense
against the persom, the honor or the property of the donor, or of
his wife or children under his parental auihority.”” Art. 107 is
a mere applicaticn of the principle in par. 1 of Art. 765, so that
revocation under Art. 107 may be effected under Art. 765, par.

1, without the necessity of resorting to Art. 107.

Respectfully submitted,
JORGE BOCOBO
Chairman, Code Commission

Manila, February 24, 1951 °

MEMORANDUM ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE
PROVISIONS THE NEW CIVIL CODE ON SUCCESSION
(BOOK IID EMBODIED IN HOUSE BILL NO. 1019.

ARTICLE 779

This article defines testamentary succession but fails to de-
fine legal or intestate succession. It is proposed to have this arti-
cle amended so as to give the concept of legal or intestate succes-
sion. In the original draft of the Code Commission, legal or in-
testate succession is defined in Article 799 thus:

“Legal or intestate succession takes place by operation
of law in the absence of a valid will.”

The Code Commission agrees with the amendment so that Arti-
cle 799 will give the concept of both testamentary and intestate
successions, while Article 780 provides for mixed succession.

ARTICLE 78%

An amendment to this article is proposed to read thus:

“Art. 782. An heir is a person called to the WHOLE OR
AN ALIQUOT PORTION OF THE INHERITANCE either by
the provisior of a will or by operation of law.

“Devisees and legatees are persons to whom gifts of real
and personal property ave respectively given by virtue of a will.”
The proposed amendment is not necessary because the word

“succession” as used in this article does not mean “property”
but @ right, and an heir ‘may not be entitled to the “whole or an
aliquot portion of the inheritance” because of disinheritance or
unworthiness.

ARTICLE 815

It is proposed to amend this Article so as to read, thus:

“Art. 815." When a Filipino is in a foreign country, he
is authorized to make will in any of the forms established by
the law of the country in which he may be. Such will may
be probated in the Philippines, AS IF EXECUTED IN ACCORD-
ANCE WITH ITS LAWS.”

There is no serious objection to the proposed amendment, al-
though it seems that there is no necessity for the same inasmuch as
if the will may be probated in the Philippines, it goes without say-
ing that said will shall be considered as if executed in accordance
with the laws of this country.

ARTICLE 838

The last paragraph of this Article is sought to be amended
by adding the following: “THE RIGHT OF THE TESTATOR
TO REVOKE HIS WILL, HOWEVER, SHALL NOT BE BARRED
BY ITS ALLOWANCE DURING HIS LIFETIME.”

The proposed amendment is a superfluity because of the pro-
visions of Article 828, which ordains that a “will may be revokea
by the testator at any time before his death’”, and which is in ac-
cordance with the principle that every will is revocable. ~More-
over, Article 777 provides that “the right to the succession are
transmitted from the moment of the death of the decedent.”

ARTICLE 878

The following amendment to this Article is suggested:

“Art. 878. A suspensive term OR CONDITION IN A
TESTAMENTARY DISPOSITION does not prevent the in-
stituted heir from acquiring his rights and transmitting them
to his heirs even before the arrival of the term OR THE HAP-
PENING OF THE CONDITION.”

The Code Commission begs to disagree with the proposed
amendment for the following reasons:

1. This Article of the new Civil Code avoids the conflict be-
tween Articles 759 and 799 of the Spanish Civil Code.

2. Article 878 of the new Civil Code speaks only of a “sus-
pensive term” which does not prevent the instituted heir from ac-
quiring and transmitting his rights to his own heirs ever before
the arrival of the term.
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The law allows the acquisition and transmission of rights be-
fore the arrival of the term because the “term” or period is surc
to come although the exact arrival may not be ascertained.

Condition is an uncertain event, so uncertain that it may not
happen; hence, the instituted heir should not acquire nor trans-
mit any right to his own heirs before the fulfillment of such sus-
pensive condition — which fulfillment gives rise to his right to
succeed.

3. Article 884 of the new Civil Code provides that “condi-
tions imposed by the testatox upon }us hens shall be governed
by the rules blished for di i in all matters
not provided for by this Section.” In uccordance with the pro-
visions of the mnew Civil Code on conditional obligations, the
fulfillment of suspensive condition gives rise to. an obligation ox
right as the case may be. Hence, if the said suspensive condition
is not fulfilled, no right or obligation arises.

ARTICLE 1027

No. (4) of this Article is proposed to be amended to read as
follows:

“(4) Any attesting witness to the execution of a will, the
spouse, parents, or children, or any one claiming under such
witness, spouse, parents, or children, UNLESS THERE ARE
THREE OTHER COMPETENT WITNESS TO THE WILL.”
The Code C has no to the d amend-

ment. '
This Article is also proposed to be amended by adding No. (5)
which reads:

“(5) THE NOTARY PUBLIC BEFORE WHOM THE
WILL IS ACKNOWLEDGED.”

The Code Commission also accepts the proposed amendment.

An amendment to Article 1035 is proposed to read as follows:

“Art. 1035. The person excluded from the inheritance by
reason of incapacity SHALL LOSE HIS RIGHT TO THE LE-
GITIME, BUT SHOULD HE be a child or descendant of
the decedent and should have children or descendants, the
latter shall acquire his right to the legitime.

“The person so excluded shall not enjoy the usufruct and
and administration of the property thus inherited by his chil-
dren.””

We cannot accept the above amendment for three reasons:

1. The use of the word “person” in the first line may im-
ply that there may be persons entitled to the- legitime although
they are not compulsory heirs.

2. The causes of deprivation of succession by reason of in-
capacity may apply to persons other than compulsory heirs. (See
Article 1027 and 1032).

3. The provisions of Article 1035 as they are in the new
Civil Code do not need any clarification.

ARTICLES ON SUCCESSION PROPOSED TO BE

REPEALED IN HOUSE BILL NO. 1019
ARTICLE 793

This Article of the new Civil Code provides:

“Art. 793. Property acquired after the making of a will
shall only pass thereby, as if the testator had possessed it
at the time of making the will, should it expressly appear by
the will that such was his intention.””

The Code Commission believes that the above provisions should
remain in the Code for the following reasons:

1. Tt is necessary to prevent the occurrence of mixed suc-
cission,

2. The

law should favor testate succession as much as
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PUBLIC CORPORATIONS

(Continued from the February Issue)

[§ 261] 5. Particular regulations. — a. In general. “While
{here is some conflict as to what grent of authority will justify
particular regulations, under the power to regulate and control
markets municipal corporations may enact and enforce all regu-
lations which are desirable for the protection of public health, and
they may adopt and enforce any reasonable and proper rules and
regulations in regard to the market and the business transacted
therein. The corporation may enact any reasonable regulation mne-
cessary to preserve the cleanliness of market places; may confine
the sale of particular articles to certain designated stands or por-
tions of the market and prevent their sale elsewhere; may limit
the sales in 2 market to specific articles; may forbid delivering
within the municipal limits meat that has not been exposed for
sale in the public market; may prohibit the sale of groceries in
meat and vegetable markets; may prohibit the sale of less than a
specified quantity of meat outside of market stalls; may prohibit
the standing wagons containing perishable produce within the mar-
ket limits for over a specified period of time between specified
hours unless permitted by a designated market official; may pro-
hibit the selling of provisions at the public market which have
been previously purchased within the municipal boundaries out-
side of the markets; may regulate market hours; or may require
diseased or unwholesome articles to be removed. The corpora-
tion cannot prohibit the sale of perishable articles entirely within
the municipal limits.

“The ordinary rules of construction apply to the construction
of statutes and ordinances or regulations relating to the establish-
ment and regulation of markets.”’128

Illustration. The municipal council of Daet, Province of Ca-
marines Norte, passed Ordinance No. 7, which was duly approved
by the provincial board on June 12, 1948, “prescribing the zonifi-
cation of the public markets, and rules and regulations with re-
gard to the rights to occupy space in the market buildings, and
penalties therefor.” The pertinent portions of said ordinance are
as follows:

“Sec. 2. All cecupants in the building publicly known as mar-
ket proper, should observe strictly the regulations with regards to
the zonification in the following manner:

“Zone 1. Market Building No. 1. — Opposite Market Tiendas
block A and B will be designated to all merchants or dealers of
dry goods and general merchandisc;

“Zone 2. Market Building No. 2. — Opposite Market Tiendas
block C and D will be designated to all merchants dealing in “Cafe-
terias’,) ‘Carenderias’ and ‘Sari-Sari’; and

“Zone 3. Market Building No. 3 — New Market Building
will be designated to all merchants of dry and fresh fishes, meat
and vegetable vendors.

Sec. 8. It is hereby prohibited for any merchants or dealers
in goods to sell his goods and wares in the zone not allocated for
the purpose as regulated above.

It appears that prior to the passage of said Municipal Ordi-
nance No. 7 and the approval of Resolution No. 104 of the muni-
cipal council of Daet, the public market of the municipality con-
sisted of only two buildings designated as Nos. 1 and 2. A third
building known as building No. 8 having been completed, the muni-
cipal council passed the ordinance in question and by said Resolu-
tion No. 104 decided to enforce the provisions of said ordinunce
by requiring the merchants and vendors occupying the places in

128 43 C. J. 396-397.

Buildings Nos. 1 and 2 to transfer their places of business in accord-
ance with the classification provided for in section 2 of the ordinance,
so that “dealers or merchants of dry goods and general merchandise”
shall be located in Zone 1 (Building No. 1) ; “merchants operating ca-
feterias, carenderias and sari-sari” are assigned to Zone No. 2 or
Market Building No. 2; and merchants dealing in “dry and fresh
fishes, meat and vegetables” shall operate their place of business
in Zone 3, known as Market Building No. 8. The akove-quoted
section 3 of the Ordinance expressly prohibits “any merchants or
dealer in goods to sell his goods and wares in the zone not allocated
fer the purpose as regulated above.”

Prior to the completion of Building No. 3 and the passage in
1948 of Municipal Ordinance No. 7, the petitioners, engaged in the
business of carenderia and cafeteria, were located in Building No.
1, and they contended that Municipal Ordinance No. 7 which re-
quired and compelled them to transfer to another building, is un-
constitutional, illegal, null and void, because it is unjust, discri-
minatory, unreasonable and confiscatory in so far as it refers to
the plaintiffs and their business in the market stall occupied hy
them in the Market Building No. 1 of the municipality of Daet.
They filed a complaint against the municipality of Daet, praying
that said Ordinance No. 7 be declared uncenstitut'onal, illegal null
and void, and that, pending the determination of this case, a writ
of preliminary injunction be issued against the defendants, its ins-
trumentalies, agents, officers and representatives, enjoining them
from evicting, removing or throwing out the plaintiffs from their
market stalls in Market Building No. 1 of Daet, and that after
trial of said case the injunction be made permanent.

After hearing, the Court of First Instance of Camarines Norte
upheld the constitutionality and legality of the ordinance in question
and declared that the municipal council of Daet, being empowered
to enact said ordinance and the same having been enacted for the
good of the public, the same is not null, void and unconstitutional
and consficatory as contended by the petitioners. The court, there-
fore, dismissed the laint without pr as to costs.

In the appeal, the plaintiffs-appellants, besides assailing the
constitutionality and .legality of the ordinance, contend that the
court should have found that the plaintiffs are entitled to con-
tinue in the occupancy of their stalls in the markei of Daet in
accordance with Republic Act No. 87 and should have perpetually
enjoined the defendant, its officers and representatives, from evict-
ing and throwing them out from their market stalls in Building No. 1.

There is no dispute as to the facts. It has been established at
the hearing that these appellanis were occupants of stall in Build-
ing No. 1 of the market of the municipality of Daet, and were en-
gaged in the business of conducting cafeterias and carenderias
prior to the passage of Resolution No. 104, series of 1948, wnercby
the municipal council of Daet seeks to enforce the provisions of
Municipal Ordinance No. 7.

With reference to the contention of appellants that Republic
Act No. 37 is applicable to them, our perusal thereof shows that
it can not be of any help to their case, because said act has for
its purpose the ‘‘granting preference to Filipino citizens in the
lease of public market stalls:” In the case at bar, the issue of the
nationality of the stallholders has not been raised by appellants, and is
not at all mentioned in the provisions of Ordinance No. 7 and Re-
solution No. 104 of the municipal council of Daet, 2and under the
provisions of said ordinance the appellants are not divested of the

None

possible, and the provisions of this article have this policy in mind.

3. There may be cases where a person intends to have prop-
erty which he may acquire subsequent to the making of his will
to be distributed according to his own perscnal wishes.

Section 615 of the Code of Civil Procedure contains the same
provisions although on real eslate only. (See also Article 596,
Lower Canada).

ARTICLE 891

This Article provides for the “Reserva Troncal” which was
eliminated from the original draft of the Code Commission, but
inserted by the House of Representatives.
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The Code Commission would be glad to see this Article elimi
nated and repealed as recommended in the House Bill No. 1019.
The presence of this article in the new Civil Code contravenes
the fundamental philosophy of the law on succession — socializa-
ticn of ownership of property, economic stability, and elimination
of feudalistic heirarchy, as explained in the Report of the Com-
mission, p. 116-117.

Respectfully submitted,
PEDRO Y. YLAGAN
Member, Code Commission
Manila, February 20, 1951.

155



possession of their stalls in the market.

Held: Regarding the alleged unconstitutionality and illegality,
ete.,, of the ordinance in question, upon close scrutiny of its pro-
visions, its wording and its purpose, we find nothing that would
support the contentions of appellants. They can not deny that
under the general welfare clause contained in section 2238 of the
Revised Administration Code, the municipal council of Daet, is
empowered to ‘“‘enact ordinances and make regulations, not repug-
nant to law, as may be necessary and proper to carry into effect
and discharge the powers and duties conferred upon it by law and
such as shall seem necessary and proper to provide for the health
and safety, promote the prosperity, improve the morals, peace,
good order, comfort, and convenience of the municipality and the
inhabitants thereof, and for the protection of property therein.”

“Ordinance No. 7 provides for the good, comfort, and con-
venience of the public and the market vendors as well. By the
zonification and classification provided for by its provisions, the
public, the consumers, can easily locate the place where they can
find the particular goods or commodities they want to buy. 'Even
the merchants and vendors oceupying the stalls are likewise be-
nefited by the zonification and classification provided for in the
ordinance, in that they will be placed where they should belong,
instead of being mingled in the same building with vendors or
merchants dealing in goods or merchandise or foodstuffs or goods
in which they are dealing. To be sure, these appellants who ac-
cording to the petition, are dealing in cafeterias and carenderias,
and consequently their customers, will not feel happy to be among
fish vendors or the like.

““That the act performed by the municipality of Daet in enact-
ing Municipal Ordinance No. 7, is entirely within the power of the
municipal corporation, is decided by the Supreme Court in various
similar cases (Seng Kee & Co. vs. Earnshaw, 56 Phil,, 204). In
U.S. Salaveria (39 Phil. 102) which holds that the presumption
is all in favor of the validity of the ordinance, the Supreme Court
held:

“Although such regulation often interferes with an owner’s
desire as to the use of his property and hamper his freedom in
regard to it, they have generally been sustained as valid exercise
of the police power, provided that there is nothing arbitrary or
unreasonable in the laying out of the zones, and that no uncon-
trolled discretion is vested in an officer as to the grant or refusal
of building permits.

“Not only the State effectuates its purpose through the exer.
cise of the police power, but the municipalities does also. Like the
State, the police power of a municipality extends to all 1atters
affecting the peace, order, health, morals, convenience, comfort,
and safety of its citizens — the security of social order — the
best and highest interests of the municipality. The best considered
decisions have tended to broaden the scope of action of the muni-
cipality in dealing with police offenses. The public welfare is
rightly made the basis of construction.””129 P

[§ 262] 6. Sales outside markets. “As a general rule 2 muni-
cipal corporation may prohibit by crdinance or by-law the sale of
marketable articles within certain limits or during certain hours
except at the established market. And it is within the power of
the legislature to authorize municipal corporations to do so. While
there are decisions which deny the right of a municipal corpsration
te prohibit selling outside of the public markets, under a general
power to regulate and control markets, it is ordinarily held that
such restrictive regulations as to selling outside of market limits
may be made under a general power to establish and regulate mar-
kets, and that, where adequate market facilities are furnished, such
regulations arz not unreasonable or in restraint of trade but a
proper regulation of it, although the rule is otherwise where mar-
ket facilities are not furnished. 1In some cases such ordinances
or by-laws have Leen held void on the ground that they were un-
reasonable and in restraint of trade. The validity of such ordi-
nances and by-laws as being in restraint of trade obviously de-
pends very largely upon the extent of the prohibition or regula-
tion contained in the particular ordinance or by-law, it being well
settled that such ordinances or by-laws must be reasonable. The
ordinance or by-law must fall within the scope of the power grant-
ed. More particularly municipal corporations may, when duly au-

129 Ebona et als. vs. Mun. of Daet, 47 O.G. 3479-3482.
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thorized, regulate private markets, prohibit the maintainance of
private markets within certain distance of a public market, prohi-
Lit the sale of anything but fruit by keepers of fruit stands with-
in two thousand one hundred feet of the market, or prescribe such
regulations as to the time and place of selling outside of the
market limits as the general welfare of the municipality may de-
mand. It seems to be uniformly held that under a power to re-
gulate the vending of meats, etc., a municipality may prevent their
being retailed outside of the public markets. A municipality may
also, under & power to prevent the obstruction of streets, prchi.
bit the standing of wagons for the sale of market produce within
certain limits, or prevent any street vending without a permit. It
may prescribe that huckster wagons shall not stand in the market
place longer than a preseribed time.”’130

Illustration. A woman and two other persons were prosecuted
and convicted in the Court of First Instance of Samar for having
sold meat at a place other .tha'n the public market in violation of
a municipal ordinance of Catarman, Samar.

They appealed, contending that the said ordinance was dis-

i , unr ble and opp: ive: discrimi: v, because
its provisions applied exclusively to the defendant Maria Vda. de
Sabarre as may be seen from a reading of article 1, which prohi-
bited butchers and any other person from selling meat in any place
except the public market;.and from that of article 2, which pro-
hibited fishermen or any other person from selling fresh fish and
olher commodities in the public streets of the poblacion, thereby
permitting their sale in other places; because the public market
of Catarman was located in an unsanitary place, in the outskirt
of the town and amidst muddy, dirty, and obnoxious surroundings
to which nobody went to sell foodstuffs. The municipality having
failed to keep it in proper condition for lack of funds, and its lo-
cation not being easily accessible to the health authorities for their
inspection; and oppressive because the prohibition to sell meat in
any place other than the public market compelled the meat ven-
dors to offer their goods for sale in one determined place with-
out taking into account the peculiar conditions prevailing in the
small town of Catarman, the insanitary condition of its market, and,
ahove all, the absence of vendors and buyers therein, thus forcing
said meat vendors to move their business to another place where
there were no people, no other vendors, merchants or customers.

Held:  “Although the ordinance in question makes a distinc-
tion by prohibiting in its article 1 butchers and meat vendors from
selling meat outside of the public market and in article 2 the
fishermen and fish vendors from selling fish in the public streets
of the poblacion, said distinction is not unreasonable because in so
far as the public health is concerned there is a great difference
between meat and fish in their susceptibility to decay, especially
where no ice is used to preserve them.

“In the case of People vs. Montil (53 Phil, 580), this court
laid down the following doctrine:

“‘1. MUNICIPAL CORPORATION MAY PROHIBIT. — As
a general rule, a municipal corporation may prohibit by ordinance
the sale of marketable articles within certain limits or during cer-
tain hours outside of an established market.

“‘2. WHAT MAY BE DONE UNDER A GENERAL POWER.
— Under a general power to regulate and control markets, restrictive
regulations as to selling outside the market limits may be made
under a general power to establish and regulate markets, and
where adequate market facilities are furnished, such regulations
arc not unreasonable or in restraint of trade, although the rule is
ctherwise where market facilities are not furnished.’

“The ordinance in question, therefore, is not unconstitutional
inasmuch as the classification is based on a substantial distinction,
which constitutes a real difference; is germane to the purposes of
the ordinance; is not confined to existing conditions only; and ap-
plies equally to all fishermen and fish vendors and to all butchers
and meat vendors (People vs. Chan, 38 Off. Gaz., 1539; 12 Corpus
Juris, 1128, sec. 855.)

“The fact that the public market is dirty and unsanitary and
is located in a muddy and filthy place to which no people go to
make purchases, does not render the ordinance oppressive and un-
reasonable. It being a duty of the municipality to maintain its
public market in sanitary condition and the municipal council be-

130 43 C.J. 397-398.
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The section in which the above-quoted provnsmn is to be found

mg made up of persons chosen by the people to administer their

is entitled “Certain leglslatwe powers of har
[§ 2691 (2) Muxi n li o'rgamzcrl provinces.
“The municipal council shall have power by ordinance or resolution:
ok * * *7

“(aa) Nuisonces. — To declare, prevent, and abate nuisances.
* = *?:

[§270] (8) Municipalities in i wized pr
“The mumclpnl council sha.ll have power by ordmance or resolution:
P

"(cc) Ringing of Lells. — To regulate ;md restrain the ringing

of bells and the making of loud or unusual noises.
i * * #7139

[§ 2711] (4 City of Manila. “The Municipal Board shall have
the fo]lowing legislative powers: '

“ | * #1134

“(ee) To declare, prevent, and" ,provide for the ak of

and d the health of the inhabitants, the latter
have a remedy, if then' officials are neglectful in the discharge of
their duties, by complaining to the higher authorities.””131
[§ 263] c. Inspection. “A municipal corporation, in the exer-
cise of its power now under consideration, may provide for the ins-
pection of the quality of articles sold within the market and the
weights and measures employed in making sales. It also may pro-
vide that the market itself shall be regularly inspected by desig-
nated public officials, and impose the cost of inspection upon the
owner or operator of such markets. The governing body of the
corporation exercises a wide discretion in determining the amount
of the fee for inspection, but such fee cannot be unreasonable or
arbitrary; the fee must be in proportion to the amount necessary
to meet the expense and cost of the service.”’32
[§ 264] 6. Boards and officers. “In the exercise of the power
cor] tions may create administrative offices for the

nuisances; to regulate the ringing of bells and the making of loud
or unusual noises; to provide that owners, agents, or tenants of
buildings or premises keep and maintain the same in sanitary con-
dition, and that in case of failure to do so, after sixty days from
the date of serving of a written notice, the cost thereof be assessed
to the owner to the extent of not to exceed sixty per centum of
the assessed value, which cost shall constitute a lien -against the
property . . .

i * ® #7140

[§ 272] 2. What i 3 by muni-
cipal authorities. “The Civil Code defines and classify nuisances.14!

“For purposes of municipal regulahnn and suppression, as,
generally ki in other i may thus be class-
ified: (1) those which in their nature are nuisances per se, or
are so denounced by the common law or by statute; (2) those
which in their nature are not nuisances, but may become so by
reason of their locality, surroundings, or the manner in which they
may be conducted, managed, ete.; (3) those which in their nature
may be nuisances, but as to which there may be honest differences
of opinion in impartial minds. With reference to things which
fall into the first and third classes — that is, things which in
their nature are nui and are so r ized by the law, and
things which are of such a character that in their nature they
may he nuisances but as to which honest differences of opinion
may exist among men of impartial minds as to whether they are
actually nuisances — it is settled that a municipality may appro-
priately deal with them by legislative police ordinances and enact-
ments under grant of power from the legislature. On the other
hand, as to things which fall into the second class — that is,
things which in their nature are not in themselves nuisances,
but which may become such by reason of their locality, surround-
ings, or the manner in which they are conducted — a municipal
corporation has no power conclusively to declare them to be nui-
sances, but can only declare such of them to be nuisances as are
se factually, because general authority to define and abate nui-
sances does not empower a municipality to declare that to be a
nuisance which is not a nuisance in fact, or which is not a nuisance
rer se and does mot come within the common-law or a statutury

deter

enforcement of their market regulations, and may prescribe the
duties of market officials, and their salaries. Ordinarily the selec-
tion of market officials, following the general rule, in the absence
of provision to the contrary, is made by the municipal governing
body. Market regulations are enforceable by, and only by, those
officials or the board in whom the power to enforce such regula-
tions has been vested. The fact that a board of health is author-
ized to regulate markets in regard to their ‘cleanliness, ventilation
and drainage,” and is the supreme authority in regard to matters
affecting the public health, does not prevent the department having
the general control of markets from making regulations in further-
ance of the same objects; but a board of health invested only with
powers necessary to the preservation of the public health and life
cannot, irrespective of these i i order the removal of
stands or stalls attached to the public market on the ground that
they are obstructions upon the public street.”’13?

[§ 265] P I\/cedy sta!utam/ statement as to Philippine muni-
cipal corp lities in regular provinces. “The
municipal council shall have authority to exercise the following dis-
cretionary powers:

i * * *7

“(h) To make provisions for the care of the poor, the sick or
persons of unsound mind.
“x * * #7134
[§266] 2. City of Manila. *“The Municipal Board shall have
the following legislative powers:
o * * #77
“(f) To authorize the free distribution of medicine by the city
physician to the employees and laborers of the city, and of fresh
native milk, if available, to indigent mothers residing in the city.
i - % #1135

[§ 2671 Q. Nuisences. — 1. In general. — a. Generally. ““It
is definitely settled, without dissent, that a state legislature may
lawfully delegate to municipal corporations, to be exercised within
their corporate boundaries, the power to declare what shall con-
stitute nuisances, and to prevent or abate them; such power is, as
a matter of fact, generally given to the municipalities, either in
their specific charters or general state statutes. The regulation

definition of a nuisance. There has been a d in
councils to imagine that by declaring a certain use of property
to be a public nuisance all discussion is foreclosed, and that by
virtue of such declaration, the power of the municipality to sup-
press such use is unquestionable. Such a notion, however, rests
upon a failure to distinguish between the different classes of sub-
jects which may under some conditions fall within the category of
nuisances.’”’142

[§ 273] 3. Method of abatement
thod of abating i
Civil Code.143

[§ 2741 R. Newspapers. — 1. In general. “Municipal cor-
porations may within reasonable limits regulate the sale of news-
papers or similar publications. But such regulations must be rea-
scnable,”144

Tt would seem that the me-
is now g d by the new

138 Sec. 2628, Rev. Adm. Code.
189 Sec. 2625, Rev, . Code.
140 See. 18, Rep. et R 409,

141 Sce Arts, 694 & 605 N. C.’ Code.
142 37 Am Jur. 935-938
165 See mne) Seq., N.C. Code,

144 43 C. J, 399,
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and ab of nui is one of the ordinary functions of the
pelice power, and municipalities are generally considered as having
been given the right, in connection with their exercise of such
power, to suppress them. It has been held or stated on numerous
occasions, however, that municipal corporations have no control
over nuisances within their corporate limits except such as is con-
ferred upon them by their charters or by general laws, and can
exercise no powers in this regard beyond those expressly given or
necessarily implied.”136

[§ 268] b. Statutory st as to Philippi icipal
corporations, — (1) Municipalities in regular provinces. “It shall

be the duty of the municipal council, conformably with law:
“k * * *7

“(h) To declare and abate nuisances.
“ox * =

#7137
131 People of the Philippines vs. Sabarre, 65 Phil. 634, 68-650.
132 43 C.J. 399, i
133 43 C.J. 399,
134 Sec. 2242, Rev. Adm.
185 Sec. 18 Rep. Act No. 409,
136 37 Am. Jur. 933-934.
137 Sec. 2242, Rev. Adm. Code.
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“E'stablishment of municipal gazette. It has been held within
the powers of a municipal corporation to establish a paper or gazette
for the purpose of giving information to its inhabitants upon mat.
ters of general interest affecting the municipal welfare 145

[§ 275] 2. Prohibition. “It is generally held that it 1s with-
out the powers of municipal corporations to prohibit the publica-
tion of newspapers.’’146

Reasons for, and discussion of, rule. *“The power to prohibit
the publication of newspapers is not within the compass of legis-
lative action in this State, and any law enacted for that purpose
would clearly be in derogation of the Bill of Rights. ‘The con-
stitutional liberty of speech and of the press, as we understand it,”
says Mr. Cooley, ‘implies a right tc freely utter and publish what-
ever the citizen may please, and to be protected against any res-
ronsibility for se dmng, except so far as such publications, from
their blasph dal character may be a pub-
lic offense, or as by tl\exr falsehond and malice they may injuricus-
ly affect the standing, reputation, or pecuniary interests of in-
dividuals. Or to state the same thing in somewhat different words,
we understand liberty of speech and of the press to imply rot only
liberty to publish, but complete immunity from legal censure and
punishment for the publication, so long as it is not harmful in
its character, when tested by such standards as the law affords.’
Cool. Const. Lim., 518. To prevent the abuse of this privilege as
affecting the public, the Legislature has prescribed penalties to
be enforced at the suit of the State, leaving the matter of private
injuries to be determined between the parties in civil proceedings.
We are not informed of any authority which sustains the doc-
trine, that a municipal corporation is invested with the power to
declare the sale of newspapers a nuisance. The power to suppress
one concedes the power to suppress all, whether such publications
are political, secular, religious, decent or indecent, obscene or other-
wise. The doctrine of the Constitution must prevail in this State,
which clothes the citizen with liberty to speak, write, or publish his
opinion on any and all subjects, subject alone to responsibility for
the abuse of such privilege.””147

[§ 276] S. Obscenity. — 1..In general. ~ “While municipal
corporations may enact ordinances forbidding particular acts of
obscenity which are' unlawful or which tend to corrupt the public
morals, the power to forbid particular acts of obscenity must be
expressly granted or necessarily incident to a power expressly
granted. By force of statute municipal corporations may prohi-
bit the publication of obscene matter. A publication of articles
in a paper, attacking the Jews as a race, is not indecent, obscene,
or scandalous, within a municipal ordinance prohibiting the offer-
ing for sale of a publication containing indecent, obscene or scan-
dalous articles. The limit of the power to enforce an ordinance
prohibiting the sale of obscene or scandalous publications is to con-
duct a prosecution for the specific offense thus committed. The
corporation cannot, by establishment of 2 censorship in advanece
of future publications, prohibit generally the sale thereof upon
the streets.’148

[§ 27171 2. S y provisions as to P cor-
porations. — a. Municipalities in organized p: . “The
municipal council shall have power by ordmn.nce or resolutlon’

x ”

gg) . to prohlbxt the prmtmg, sale, or exhlb)tmn of
immoral pictures, books, or publications of any description.
o * * %7140
[§$ 278] b. City of Manila. *“The Municipal Board shall have
the following legislative powers:
ux * *n
“(r) To provide for the prohibition and suppression of .
the printing, circulation, exhibition or sale of obscene pictures, books,
or publications, and for the maintenance and preservation of peace
and good morals.
» #9150

[§ 2791 T. Patrnl serm or duty from male residents; sta.

tutory p ions as to lities in regular provi . “When
the province or municipality is infested with outlaws, the municipal
15 1d. s90-400,

146 C. J. 4

i Ne!ll 82 Tex. Cr. 25, 22 SW 926.

148 43 C. J.

s See. 2055, Rev. Adm. Code.

150 Sec. 18 Rep. Act No. 409.
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council, with the approval of the provincial ', may

the mayor to require able-bodied male of the

between the ages of eighteen and fifty years, to assist, for a period
not exceeding five days in any one month in apprehending out-
laws or othcr lawbreakers and suspicious characters, and to act as
patrols for the protection of the municipality, not exceeding cne
day in each week.

“Nothing herein contained shall authorize the mayor to re-
quire such service of officers or employees of the National Govern-
ment, or the officers or servants of companies or individuals en-
gaged in the business of common carriers on sea or land, or priests,
ministers of the gospel, physicians, practicantes, druggists or prac-
ticantes de farmacia actually engaged in business, or lawyers when
actually engaged in court proceedings.”’15!

Illustration. A resident of the municipality of Iloilo was in
1914 charged with having criminally and without justifiable motive
failed to render service on patrol duty, in violation of the muni-
cipal ordinance of Iloilo on the subject patrol duty.

The accused contended that the ordinance upon which the cri-
minal complaint was based was unconstitutional, for the reason
that it was contrary to the provisions of the then Organic Act of
the Philippines, the Philippine Bill, which guaranteed the liberty
of the citizens.

The said ordinance appeared to have been adopted in accord-
ance with Act No. 1309, which amended section 40 of Act No. 82
(5the Municipal Code at the time). The amendment empowered
the municipal council, by ordinance, to authorize the president:
(z) To require able-bodied male residents of the municipality, be-
tween the ages of 18 and 55, to assist, for a period not exceeding
five days in any one month, in apprehendmg ladrones, robbers,
and other law and 's, and to act as
patrols for the of the ici not ding one
day each week; (b) To require each householder to report certain
facts, enumerated in said amendment.

Held: “Is there anything in the law, organic or otherwise, in
force in the Philippine Islands, which prohxblts the central Gov-
ernment, or any gov al entity ith, from
adopting or enacting rules and lati for the i of
peace and good government? May not the people be called upon,
when necessary, to assist, in any reasonable way, to rid the state
and each community thereof, of disturbing elements? Do not in-
dividuals whose rights are protected by the Government, owe some
duty to such, in protecting it against lawbreakers, and the disturb-
ers of the quiet and peace? Are the sacred rights of the individual
violated when he is called upon o render assistance for the pro-
tection of his protector, the Government, whether it be the local
or general Government? Does the protection of the individual, the
home, and the family, in civilized communities, under established
government, depend solely and alone upon the individual? Does
not the individual owe something to his neighbor, in return for
the protection which the law affords him against encroachment
upon his rights, by those who might be inclined so to do? To
answer these questions in the negative would, we believe, admit
that the individual, in i ZOVe in civilized society,
where men are governed by law, does not enjoy the protection af-
forded to the individual by men in their most primitive relations.

“If tradition may be relied upon, the primitive man, living
in his tribal relations before the days of constitutions and states,
enjoyed the security and assurance of assistance from his fellows
when his quiet and peace were violated by malhechores. Even
under the feudal system, a system of land holdings by the Teu-
tonic nations of Europe in the eleventh, twelfth, and thirteenth
centuries the feudal lord exercised the right to call upon all his
vassals of a certain age to assist in the protection of their individ-
ual and collective rights. (Book 2, Cooley’s Blackstone’s Com-
mentaries, 44; 8 Kent’s Commentaries, 487; Hall, Middle Ages;
Maine, Ancient Law; Guizot, History of Civilization; Stubbs’ Con-
stitutional History of England; Chisholm vs. Georgia, 2 Dall. (U.
S.) 419; DePeyster vs. Michael, 6 N. Y., 467.) Each vassal was
obliged to render individual assistance in return for the protection
efforded by all.

“The feudal system was carried into Britain by William the
Conqueror in the year 1085 with all of its ancient customs and
usages.

51 See. 2275, Rev. Adm. Code,
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MR. BROWNELL'S . . . (Continued from page 120)
in addition to the naval reservations and fueling stations, any
and all reservations of the United States as he may deem necessary
for the mutual protection of the Philippire Islands and the United
States, and by such means as he finds appropriate. In addition,
he has been authorized by the same joint resolution to 2cquire
bases and to retain them for the same purpose and by the same
means. As a result, the President was and is vested with complete
discretionary authority to retain or convey to the Philippire gov-
ernment the title in and to any military bases of the United
States in the Philippines.

The language of the joint resolution of Jume 29, 1944, 58 Stat.
625, referring to ‘“‘bases” without qualification and “in addition to
any provided for by the Act of March 24, 1934, is comprehen-
sive enough to include the naval reservations and fueling stations
as well as military reservations, so that the President’s earlier
authority- as to naval reservations and fueling stations is reinforced
by the joint resolution.

Again, as in the case of the naval reservations and fueling sta-
tions, there is no obligation on the part of the President to transfer
title to the bases without comvensation. Likewise, there 1s no
cbligation on the part of the President to demand compensation
in connection with a transfer. His discretion is complete.

A further question has been raised in regard to those proper-
ties of the United States which have been or are being used as
“temporary installations” under Article XXI of the Military Bases
Agreement in contrast to the Annexes A and B bases under_that
agreement. It is said that because of their temporary nature
it might be iinplied that upon tcrmination of thelr use the tem-
porary installations would be conveyed to the Philippine govern-
ment without compensation. But there is nothing in the agreement
making provision for such conveyance of title; and as noted
earlier in this opinion, the contempcraneous exchange of notes
accompanying the Militaty Bases agreement was intended to re-
serve the whole issue of title to properties involved in the bases
agreement for future settlement in accordance with the acts and
joint resolution of the congress. Article XXI, like the rest of ‘the
agreement pertaining to the Annexes A and B bases, is concerned
with the use for niilitary purposes of the property involved, rather
than its owmership.

The memorandum of the legal adviser points out that the num-
ber of temporary installations has been greatly reduced by the spe-
cific, formal conveyances to the Philippine government of most of
the United States military propeities coming under the head of
temporary installations. In the category of real property consti-
tuting a temporary installation there remains, he says, only the
Fort McKinley reservation, and the Prrt of Manila, reservation as

to which Article XXI makes special provision. The past con-
veyances ¢f almost all of temporary installations without com-
pensation in 1947 and 1949 might be claimed to be some evidence
of a “moral obligation” to convey the remainder of the temporary
installation without compensation. 1 do not find any legal ob-
ligation requiring the United States to convey title to the remainder
of the temporary installations; nor 1s there any provision of law or
agreement dealing differently with those titles than is provided
in the case of the Annexes A and B bases and the naval reserva-
tions and fueling stations. If in the past the President was moved
to convey to the Philippine government title to the military in-
stallations which were surplus to the United States needs, without
compensation, he was well within his authority, as has been already
described. As the history of the period indicates, he may well have
heen motivated by the desire to obtain Philippine cooperation in
supplying other properties or facilities for United States use.
Equally, the President may find today that those expectations
have not been realized, in view of the fdct that at the present
time the United States is having difficulty obtaining property from
the Philippine government needed for expansion of the bases. But
these are reasons of policy, calling for the exercise of the disere-
tion vested in the President. They do not constitute legal obligations.

1 therefore conclude that there is no different law governing the
disposition of United States titles to properties comprising the Arti-
cle XXI temporary installations than is provided for disvosition
of the titles to the Annxes A and B bases of the Military Bases
Agreement.

As to all three categories of base property, viz, Annexes A
and B bases, naval reservations und fueling stations, and Article
XXI installations, there is no obligation on the part of the United
States to transfer presently to the Philippine government title to
any such properties, with or without compensation. However, the
President is authorized in his diseretion, to make transfers of such
base property as he deems to he in the interest of the United
States on such terms and conditions as he may deem advisable,
in agreement with the government of the Philippine Republic.

In view of the possible negotiations with the Philippine govern-
ment, which lie ahead, it is my understanding that you do not want
this opinion to be published. Therefore, for the present, I am’
maintaining the same classification for this opinion as has been
assigned tc be the incoming material.

I am sending copies of this opinion to the director of the
bureau of the budget, the secretary of the navy, and the secretary
of the amr force.

Sincerely,
HERBERT .BROWNELL, JR.
Attorney General

“We find in the days of the ‘hundreds,’ which meant a division
of the state occupied by one hundred free men, the individual was
liable to render service for the protection of all. (Bcok 8, Cooley’s
Flackstone’s Commentaries, 160, 245, 293, 411) In these ‘hun-
dreds’ the individual ‘hundredor,’ in case of the commission of a
crime within the country or by one of the ‘“hundredors,’ as against
another ‘hundred,’ was obliged to join the ‘hue and cry’ (hutesium
et clamor) in the pursuit of the felon. This purely customary
ancient obligation was later made obligatory by statute. (Book 4,
Cooley’s Blackstone’s Commentaries, 294; 3 Edward I., Chapter 9;
4 Edward I, Chapter 2; 13 Edward I, Chapters 1 and 4.

“Later the statute provided and directed: ‘That from thence-
forth every county shall be so well kept, that, immediately upon
rchberies and felonies committed, fresh suit shall be made from
town (pueblo) to town, and from county to county; and that ‘hue
and cry’ shall be raised upon the felons, and they that keep the
town (pueblo) shall follow with ‘hue and cry, with all the tewn
(pueblo), and the towns (pueblos) near; and so ‘bue and cry’ shall
be made from town (pueblo) to town, until they be taken and de-
livered to the sheriff.

“Said statute further provided that in case the ‘hundred’ failed
te join the ‘hue and ery’ it should he liable for the damages
done by the malhechores. Later, by statute (27th Elizabeth, chap-
ter 13) it was provided that no ‘hue and cry’ would be sufficient
unless it was made with both horsemen and footmen. The “hue
ond cry” might be raised by a justice of the peace, or by any peace
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officer, or by any private person who knew of the commission of the
crime.

“This ancient obligation of the individual to assisi in the pro-
tection of the peace and good order of his community is still re-
cognized in all well-organized governments in the ‘posse comitatus’
(power of the county, poder del condado). (Book I Cooley’s Black-
stone’s Commentaries, 342; Book 4, 122.) Under this power, these
persons in the state, county, or town who were charged with the
maintenance of peace and good order were bound, ex officio, to
pursue and to take all persons who had violated the law. For
that purpose they might command all the male inhabitants of a
certain age to assist them. This power is called ‘posse comitatus’
(power of the county). This was a right well recognized at com-
mon-law. Act No. 1309 is a statutory recognition of such com-
mon-law right. Said Act attempts simply to designate the cases
and the method when and by which the people of the town (pueblo)
may be called upon to render assistance for the protection of the
public and the preservation of peace and good order.

* * * * % *

“We are of the opinion, and so hold, that the power exercised
under the previsions of Act No. 1309 falls within the police power
of the state and that the state was fully authorized and justified
in conferring the seme upon the municipalities of the Philippine
Islands, and that, therefore, the provisions, of said Act are con-
stitutional and not in violation nor in derogation of the rights
of the persons affected thereby.”’!52

vs. Pompeya, 31 Phil. 245, 250-252.
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“LAUGHTER IS LEGAL”

CROSS-COUNTRY CLASSIC

Have you heard a story about the man in the market for a
new car who saw an ad in a Long Island paper offering a 1952
Cadillac for sale for $50? The first day he passed it up as a joke,
but when it appeares for the third time he went to look at the car.
The address given turned out to be a beautiful estate. The owner,
an attractive middle-aged woman, showed him the car and let
him drive it. It was in perfect condition, and he promptly clinched
ths deal. After the bill of sale was in his hand, he couldn’t sup-
press his curiosity any longer. “Would you mind,” he asked the
woman,” telling me why vou are selling a beautiful car for $50
when you could have gotten at least $4,000?"

“Not at all.” she replied.” In my husband’s will he left ins.
tructions to deliver the proceeds from the sale of his cadillac™to his
secretary, who had been so kind to him.”

SLIM CHANCE

In Manchester, Eneland, after Mrs. Maude Mitchell produce
photogranhs to show her husband’s allezed crueltv had canse her
to lose 2 ponnds in two years, the judee remarked that the loss
of weight had enh d her denied her ion plea.

GOOD OLD MOUNTAIN JUSTICE

In Kentucky hill country, a man was on trial for beine drunk,
end the jndre couldn’t find an unprejudieed fury. The fellow had
too many friends and too manv enemies. and there was only one man
in town who said he was neutral. So the iudere decided on a one-man
jury. The trial ended. and the iury went off to concider its verdict.

After an hour went by without a word. the judee told the elark
to 2o and see what was hanpening. Tha twelve furv men all rolled into
one sent a message: “We ain’t decided, Judre.” The jndee kent
sending new messeneers every hour and alwavs eot the same answer.
Finallv abont midnight he was pretty mad and went to the jury
room himself. .

The fellow was sitting there. looking worried. “Judge, T was just
coming to tell you, the jury can’t argree.”

WITNESS NEEDED

“Wonld you like an adiournment to ob*ain an attornev?”’ the
Judge asked a bewildered foreign-born defendant who stood before
him.

“No thanks, Judge.”

“Have you money for a lawyer?”

“I ain’t got no money.”

“Wonld you like the court to apmoint a lawyer who wi'l protect
your interest and represent you — without any cost to vou?”’

“Thanks, your honor, Judge. This is a wonderful country. You
are so eood to men — vou offer me a lawyer, hut. Judge. to tell yon
the truth. T don’t need a l»wyer so much — what I need right now
is a helluva good witness!”
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“What is your age?” asked the judge.
under oath.”

“Twenty-one years and some months,” the woman answered.

“How many months?” the judge persisted.

“One hundred and eight.”

THE BI; QUESTION

When Henry Norris Russell, the Princeton astronomer. con-
cluded a lecture on Milky Way, a woman asked him: “If our
world is sc little and the universe is so great, can we really be-
live that God pays any attention to us?”’

“That, madame,” replied Dr. Russell, “depends entirely on how
big a God you helieve in.”

“Remember you’re

SALARY

-
Two years ago my son, who was then 13, proudly announced

160
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one day: “I was the only one.in our class that got a 100 in social
living test.””

“That’s fine,” I said. “Were the questions hard?”

“Well, the only one I didn’t know the answer to was ‘what
is the salary of the chief Justice of the United States? but T
figured it out. I knew that Ted Williams got $100,000 a year
from the Red Sox, and I decided that a Chief Justice would prob-
ably get about a fourth as much. So I put down $25,000, and it
was right.”

WASHINGTON WONDERLAND

A busy man forgot to file his income tax return until a few
days after the deadline. “I have no excuse,” he confessed to the
Government in an accompanying note. “I just forgot. I am en-
closing the required five percent fine.” Shortly, he received a pon-
derous and official letter. Would he be good enough to fill ont
enclosed form. setting forth the reasons for his delinquency, and
have it notarized?

“No excuse,” he wrote back. “Have paid fine.”

Last week he got another letter: No excuse, it said in es.
sence. is not an excuse. “Please file notarized affidavit testify-
ng that you had no Excuse.”

WISE Gls

The Commandine General of a line divis'on in Korea was ins-
pecting one sunny afternoon when three sniper bullets from near-
by hill whizzed over his head. Jumning into a bunker that was
occupied by a sergeant, he barked, “Locate that sniper!”

“We know exactly where he is,” the sergeant replied calmly.

“Why in the devil don’t you shoot him then?® demanded the
general.

“Sir. that fellow has been snining at th's hill for weeks now
and hasn’t hit anyhody vet. We’'re afraid if we kill him, they
night replace him with someone that can shoot.” &

EMERGENCY
“How do vou know you were ooing anly 15 miles an hour?” the
judge asked the driver accused of sneeding.
“I was on my way to the dentist!”

TEXAS TALK

When a woman having dinner in a Dallas restaurant save
the waiter a $500 hill to pay for her check. the manager suggested,
“See if she doesn’t have something smaller.”

“Yes, sir”’, said the waiter.” but I don’t think she do, boss.
She had to rummage around in her money to find this.”
THEY ASKED FOR IT
The -owner of a $10.000 limousine, pulling up at a light beside
a small car driven by a friend, couldn’t resist the chance to heckle.

“Gosh sakes man,” he said, ‘“what is that dreadfull rattling
sound in your car?”’

“Oh. that? said the small car’s driver calmly.
$9,000 jingling around in my pocket!”

QUOTABLE QUOTES

That’s just

Herbert Hoover: All Presidents go fishing because they want
to be alone to think once in a while. . Except for prayer, fishing
is about the only time people respect the privacy of the President.

APOLOGIA

We wish to apolomize to our natron, the WORLD-WIDE INSURANCE
& SURETY COMPANY INC., for having failed to publish the name
of the said insurance company in the advertisement of the January
Issne of the Lawyers Journal on account of an oversight on the
part of the Printers.
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